I‘I B L ASSET MANAGEMENT LTD.
:.u.nJ |_u.n;_u_4:l 1_|.l_u.|.l|

Annual Report
2019-20

MO VANG-TOMARD S

EXCELLENCE






TABLE OF CONTENTS

Vision / Mission
Corporate Values
Corporate Information

Report of the Directors of Management Company

HBL ISLAMIC MONEY MARKET FUND

Fund Information

Fund Manager’s Report

Performance Table

Trustee Report to the unit holders

Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Review Report of Shariah Advisor

Independent Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on
the Statement of Compliance with Shariah Principles
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders
Statement of Assets & Liabilities

Income Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Fund

Cash Flow Statement

Note to the Financial Statements

HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Fund Information

Fund Manager’s Report

Performance Table

Proxy Voting Disclosure

Trustee Report to the unit holders

Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Review Report of Shariah Advisor

Independent Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on
the Statement of Compliance with Shariah Principles
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders
Statement of Assets & Liabilities

Income Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Fund

Cash Flow Statement

Note to the Financial Statements

a L N W

17
18
21
22
23
24

25
26
31
32
33
34
35
36

58
59
62
63
64
65
66

67
71
78
79
80
81
82
83

HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

Fund Information

Fund Manager’s Report

Performance Table

Proxy Voting Disclosure

Trustee Report to the unit holders

Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Review Report of Shariah Advisor

Independent Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on
the Statement of Compliance with Shariah Principles
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders
Statement of Assets & Liabilities

Income Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Fund

Cash Flow Statement

Note to the Financial Statements

HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Fund Information

Fund Manager’s Report

Performance Table

Trustee Report to the unit holders

Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Review Report of Shariah Advisor

Independent Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on
the Statement of Compliance with Shariah Principles
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders
Statement of Assets & Liabilities

Income Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Fund

Cash Flow Statement

Note to the Financial Statements

Annual Report-2020

116
117
119
120
121
122
124

122
124
129
130
131
132
133
134

162
163
166
167
168
169

170
175
177
178
179
180
181
182



HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND

Fund Information

Fund Manager’s Report

Performance Table

Proxy Voting Disclosure

Trustee Report to the unit holders

Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Review Report of Shariah Advisor

Independent Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on
the Statement of Compliance with Shariah Principles
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders
Statement of Assets & Liabilities

Income Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Fund

Cash Flow Statement

Note to the Financial Statements

HBL ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND

Fund Information

Fund Manager’s Report

Performance Table

Trustee Report to the unit holders

Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Review Report of Shariah Advisor

Independent Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on
the Statement of Compliance with Shariah Principles
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders
Statement of Assets & Liabilities

Income Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Cash Flow Statement

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Fund

Note to the Financial Statements

Annual Report-2020

212
213
216
217
218
219
220

221
226
228
229
230
231
232
233

262
263
268
269
270
271

272
276
278
279
280
281
282
286

HBL ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND

Fund Information

Fund Manager’s Report

Performance Table

Proxy Voting Disclosure

Trustee Report to the unit holders

Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Review Report of Shariah Advisor

Independent Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on
the Statement of Compliance with Shariah Principles
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders
Statement of Assets & Liabilities

Income Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Cash Flow Statement

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Fund

Note to the Financial Statements

316
318
320
321
322
323
324

325
328
329
330
331
332
333
334










CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors (Composition as of August 27, 2020)

Chairman

Directors

Audit Committee
Chairman
Members

Human Resource Committee
Chairman
Members

Risk Management Committee
Chairman
Members

Technology Committee
Chairman
Members

Company Secretary &
Chief Financial Officer
AMC Rating

Legal Advisors

Website

Head Office & Registered Office

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Mr. Mir Adil Rashid

Ms. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Ms. Ava Ardeshir Cowasjee
Mr. Rizwan Haider

Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal
Mr. Muhammad Afag Khan
Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mir

Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Ms. Ava Ardeshir Cowasjee
Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Ms. Ava Ardeshir Cowasjee
Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
Mr. Rizwan Haider
Mr. Muhammad Afag Khan

Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mir
Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Mr. Muhammad Afag Khan

Mr. Noman Qurban

AM2+ (Positive Outlook)

(Independent Director)

(Chief Executive Officer)
(Independent Director)
(Independent Director)
(Non-Executive Director)
(Non-Executive Director)
(Non-Executive Director)
(Non-Executive Director)
(Independent Director)

(Independent Director)
(Non-Executive Director)

(Independent Director)
(Independent Director)
(Independent Director)
(Non-Executive Director)

(Independent Director)
(Non-Executive Director)
(Non-Executive Director)

(Non-Executive Director)
(Independent Director)
(Non-Executive Director)

Mandviwalla & Zafar, Advocates and Legal Consultants,
Mandviwalla Chambers, C-15, Block-2, Clifton, Karachi.

www.hblasset.com

7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block-5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi

Annual Report-2020



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF
THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

For the year ended June 30, 2020

The Board of Directors of HBL Asset Management Limited is pleased to present its report together with Financial Statements
ofHBL Islamic Money Market Fund, HBL Islamic Income Fund,HBL Islamic Stock Fund, HBL Islamic Equity Fund,HBL Islamic
Asset Allocation Fund, HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund and HBL Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund(the Funds) for the year
ended June 30, 2020.

Economic Review - FY20

Policy steps taken over the last two years led to improvement in the macros as the economy showed signs of recovery in the
shape of decline in Current Account deficit, better FX reserves position and stable exchange rate. These were at the cost of
GDP growth which witnessed a slowdown. However the recent COVID-19 epidemic has disrupted short term growth outlook
and necessitated large fiscal concessions by the government to support the economy. It also led to outflow of money from the
country which was mitigated by inflows from IMF and others multilateral and bilateral creditors.

The PKR depreciated by around 5.4% during FY20taking Real Effective Exchange Rate to 93 indicating that the currency is
trading below fair value. After the COVID-19 outbreak Central bank has decreased the SBP policy rate by a cumulative 625 bps
from 13.25% to 7.0% to support the economy. On the external front export declined by7.2% compared to decline in import by
18.2%, dragging FY20 trade deficit by 27.9% to USD 20.0bn. Remittances also showed encouraging trend as it witnessed an
uptick of 6.3% in FY20 clocking at USD 23.1bn. These factors led the Current Account Deficit (CAD) for FY20 to decrease by
77.9%YoY to USD 3.0bn (1.1% of GDP) compared to USD 13.4bn (4.8% of GDP) during same period last year. Slowdown in CAD
was a welcome effect but it was coupled with overall slowdown in domestic economy which is reflected in10.2% decline in
LSM in FY20. The overall Foreign exchange reserves increased to USD 17.9bn compared to USD 14.5bn at the end of FY19.

Average headline CPI inflation was 10.8% in FY20, much higher than the 6.3% recorded during same period last year due to
electricity and gas tariff hike coupled with second round impact of currency depreciation. However we expect inflation to
taper down due to high base effect. On the fiscal side, fiscal Deficit for FY20 clocked at 8.1% of GDP compared to 9.1% in FY19.
This was due to low tax collection due to lockdown and economic slowdown post spread of Covid-19.

Moving ahead, we believe the in the near term GDP is likely to remain subdued in line with the rest of the world in view of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The focus would remain on recovery post resolution of the crisis which would require sustained policy
actions by the government.

Money Market Review

FY20 was a tale of two half for the money market. SBP continued its monetary tightening stance in the first half of FY20 to
control the rising current account deficit and anchor increasing inflationary pressures. However post the Covid-19 pandemic
SBP turned dovish and decreased the interest rate by a cumulative 625bps to revive the economy.

As per latest data available, Islamic Banking industry assets posted 20.4% growth and stood at PKR 3,360 billion by Mar-20.
Similarly, deposits of Islamic banks also witnessed a sharp growth of 22.4% YoY and reached PKR 2,692 billion by Mar-20. The
government has issued Energy Sukuk-Il of PKR 200bn to partially retire the circular debt. This was a long term instrument and
SLR Eligible which helped the Islamic banks to park their excess liquidity. During the year the SBP conducted three “Variable
Rental Rate” ljara Auctions. The total offered amount was PKR 420bn, out of which PKR 198bn was accepted.

During the FY20, Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through domestic sources, and largely from
commercial banks. Government borrowed PKR 2,302bn from scheduled banks compared to retirement of PKR 875bn during
same period last year. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP declined by PKR 135bn during the period against
borrowing of PKR 3,078bn during same period last year. This shift in borrowing took place as IMF has restricted borrowing
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from the central bank to avoid inflationary pressure. Going forward the government will continue to meet additional
borrowing requirements from the commercial banks.

In the monetary policy held in June-20, SBP decreased the policy rate by a further 100bps to 7.0%. Going forward, we feel that
the bulk of monetary easing has taken place and we are close to the bottom of the interest rate cycle. However, SBP has
indicated its monetary policy would remain data driven and we may witness another 50-100bps reduction in interest rate in
the calendar year.

Stock Market Review

The market remained volatile during FY20 as a result of the macroeconomic adjustment undertaken under the IMF program
and the subsequent Covid-19 pandemic. After a brief spell of bearish performance at the start of the year, the market depicted
a sustained rally on the back of macroeconomic stability after entry into the IMF program. However the recovery was cut short
by the Covid-19 pandemic. This led the market to decline in line with the global markets. The market rebounded in the last
quarter on the back of 1) Aggressive monetary easing, 2) Receipt of loans from multilateral and bilateral sources and 3)
announcement of construction package by the government.

The benchmark KMI-30 index recorded 771 points increase (+1.42%) during FY20 to close at 54,995 points. During the year
cyclical sectors and construction linked industries (Cement, Steel, and Glass) rallied on the back of the monetary easing done
by the SBP. Technology sector also remained in limelight due to increasing focus on technology post Covid-19 pandemic. On
the other hand, banking sector remained laggard due to decrease in earnings post multiple interest rate cuts. On the flows
side, foreigners were the net sellers during the FY20 and sold shares of worth USD284mn, compared to net selling of
USD356mn during FY19. However, it is important to note that foreign selling was skewed towards 2HFY20 post covid-19 as
foreigners were net buyers in 1HFY20.

Pakistan equities are likely to be rebound due to cheaper valuation (trading at a Forward P/E of 6.8x against peer average
16.8x) and slowdown in covid-19 cases. Market participants would closely follow trend of coronavirus cases and the ensuring
macro numbers. Cyclical sectors (Cement, Steel, OMCs) would perform due to decline in interest rates. Textile will also garner
investor’s attention due to huge export potential. Technology sector will also remain in favor due to increased digitalization
post covid-19 pandemic. We will maintain our strategic focus towards "bottom-up" approach and align exposure towards
stocks with strong earnings potential.

FUND’S PERFORMANCE AND PAYOUTS
HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 313.01 million and Rs. 283.66 million respectively during the year
endedlJune 30, 2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 101.1744 per unit as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs.
100.9968 per unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 10.7689 per unit, thereby giving an annualized
return of 11.38%. During the year the benchmark return (3 Month bank deposit rates) was 5.37%. The size of Fund was Rs.
8.42 billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 1.05 billion at the start of the year.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed AA(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.
HBL Islamic Income Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 198.51 million and Rs. 161.68million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 101.5299 per unit as on June 30, 2020as compared to Rs.
101.4883 per unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 10.45 per unit, thereby giving an annualized return
of 10.31%. During the same year the benchmark return (6 Month bank deposit rates) was 6.33%. The size of Fund was Rs. 1.42
billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 3.10 billion at the start of the year.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has upgraded Fund Stability Rating of the Fund to A+(f).
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HBL Islamic Stock Fund

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 32.25 million and Rs. 5.84 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 93.6583 per unit as on June 30, 2020as compared to Rs. 91.2924per unit
as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 0.32 per unit, therebygiving areturn of 2.95%during the year, against
the benchmark return (KMl 30 Index) of1.62%. The size of Fund was Rs. 0.56billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs.
0.64 billion at the start of the year.

HBL Islamic Equity Fund

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 51.12million and Rs. 33.19 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 77.5699per unit as on June 30, 2020as compared to Rs. 76.7854 per unit
as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 0.10 per unit, therebygiving areturn of 1.15%during the year, against
the benchmark return (KMl 30 Index) of1.62%. The size of Fund was Rs. 0.23billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs.
0.26 billion at the start of the year.

HBL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 107.96 million and Rs. 82.05 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 103.6330 per unit as on June 30, 2020as compared to Rs. 103.2688 per
unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 6.25per unit, thereby giving areturn of6.42% during the year,
against the benchmark return (Weighted average daily return of KMI 30 Index & 6 months deposit rate of A rated or above
banks) of5.60%. The size of Fund was Rs. 0.31 billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 1.13 billion at the start of the
year.

HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund

HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund comprises of four sub funds (plans) namely Active allocation plan, Conservative allocation
plan, Strategic allocation plan and Islamic Capital Preservation Plan.

The Fund as a whole earned a total and net income of Rs. 86.79 million and Rs. 78.18 million respectively during the year
under review. The fund size of the fund stood at Rs. 0.45 billion. Performance review for plan is given below:

Active Allocation Plan

During the year under review, the Active allocation plan earned a total and net income of Rs. 8.98 million and Rs. 8.30 million
respectively. The net assets of the Active allocation plan stood at Rs. 94 million representing Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs.
95.3020 per unit as at June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 93.3275 as at June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 3.80
per unit. The plan earned a return of 6.21% for the yearunder review against the benchmark return of 6.63%. The plan is
invested to the extent of 49% in equity funds &50% infixed income funds.

Conservative Allocation Plan

During the year under review, the Conservative allocation plan earned total and net income of Rs. 1.39 million and Rs. 1.29
million respectively. The net assets of the Conservative allocation plan stood at Rs. 7 million representing Net Asset Value
(NAV) of Rs. 109.3637 per unit as at June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 101.4641 as at June 30, 2019, after incorporating
dividend of Rs. 2.10 per unit. The plan earned a return of 9.86% for the year under reviewagainst the benchmark return of
6.33%. The plan is invested to the extent of 19% in equity funds &77%in fixed income funds.
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Strategic Allocation Plan

During the period from July 01, 2019 to June 16, 2020, the Strategic allocation plan earned a totaland net income of Rs. 17.53
million and Rs. 16.74 million respectively. The plan marked its maturity on June 16, 2020.

Islamic Capital Preservation Plan

During the year under review, the Islamic Capital Preservation Plan earned a total income and net income of Rs. 58.90 million
and Rs. 51.85 million respectively. The net assets of the Islamic Capital Preservation Plan stood at Rs. 350million representing
Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 105.1185 per unit as at June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 98.4840 per unit as at June 30, 2019,
after incorporating dividend of Rs. 6.80 per unit. The plan earned a return of 12.50% for the year under review against the
benchmark return of 10.99%. The plan is invested to the extent of 8% in equity funds & others in cash.

HBL Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund

During the year under review, the Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund earned a total and net income of Rs. 38.64 million and Rs.
30.09 million respectively. The net assets of the Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund stood at Rs. 27.44 million representing Net
Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 87.5443 per unit as at June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 83.8322 per unit as on June 30, 2019. The
Fund earned a return of 4.43% for the year under review against the benchmark return of 1.62%.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY RATING

The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has reaffirmed the management quality rating to ‘AM2+’ (AM Two Plus) to
the Management Company and the outlook on the assigned rating has been assessed as ‘Positive’.

AUDITORS

M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants existing auditors of HBL Islamic Stock Fund and HBL Islamic Dedicated Equity
Fund retired and being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, has re-appointed M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of these funds for the next
term.

M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants existing auditors of HBL Islamic Income Fund and HBL Islamic Equity Fund
retired and being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment.The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has re-appointed M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants as Auditors of these funds for the next term.

M/s KPMG TaseerHadi& Co., Chartered Accountants existing auditors of HBL Islamic Money Market Fund, HBL Islamic Asset
Allocation Fund and HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fundretired and being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment.The
Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has re-appointed M/s KPMG TaseerHadi& Co., Chartered
Accountants as Auditors of these funds for the next term.

PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

The details regarding the pattern of unit holding are provided in the respective financial statements of the Funds. Breakup of
unit holding by size is provided in the relevant section of the Fund Manager Report of the respective Funds.
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund




NAME OF FUND

NAME OF TRUSTEE

NAME OF AUDITORS

NAME OF SHARIAH ADVISORS

NAME OF BANKERS

HBL ISLAMIC MONEY MARKET FUND

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants

Al - Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Summit Bank Limited
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FUND MANAGER'’S REPORT —

As at June 30, 2020

Type and Category of Fund
Open end Islamic Money Market Fund
Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek high liquidity, competitive return and maximum possible preservation of
Capital for investors by investing in low risk Shariah Compliant securities. The investment objective is achieved.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark

The Fund’s benchmark is average 3 Months average deposit rates of 3 AA rated Islamic Banks or Islamic Windows of
Conventional Bank as selected by MUFAP.

The comparison of the fund return with benchmark is given below:

Month Re:z:; i Benchmark
Jun-20 7.39% 4.45%
May-20 7.33% 5.06%
Apr-20 8.58% 5.46%
Mar-20 11.75% 5.58%
Feb-20 11.95% 5.52%
Jan-20 11.86% 5.45%
Dec-19 12.84% 5.19%
Nov-19 11.62% 5.72%
Oct-19 11.98% 5.81%
Sep-19 12.33% 5.85%
Aug-19 11.31% 5.42%
Jul-19 10.99% 4.93%

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

The Fund continued to remain majorly invest in bank deposit due to absence of investment opportunities in Islamic universe.
During the year investment in short term Islamic commercial papers and short term Sukuk were initiated by the fund manager
to support the bottom line of the fund. However, this mode of investment is limited to a few issuers because Money Market
Schemes have duration and rating limitations. At the end of period, asset allocation comprises of 87.62% investment in DPA
accounts and remaining 11.99% in Islamic Commercial Papers compared to 87.68% investment in bank deposit and 11.16%
exposure in commercial papers in June, 2019. Going ahead, we will explore further options to invest the funds in short
maturity commercial papers and Sukuk.

Asset Allocation

ommera

Others
Commercial Orthers,
al Pa 1%
TFCs / Sukuks P Paper. Lig
A% 111

7.99%
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Fund Performance

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 313.01 million and Rs. 283.66 million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 101.1744 per unit as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs.
100.9968 per unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 10.7689 per unit, thereby giving an annualized
return of 11.38%. During the year the benchmark return (3 Month bank deposit rates) was 5.37%. The size of Fund was Rs.
8.42 billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 1.05 billion at the start of the year.

Money Market Review

FY20 was a tale of two half for the money market. SBP continued its monetary tightening stance in the first half of FY20 to
control the rising current account deficit and anchor increasing inflationary pressures. However post the Covid-19 pandemic
SBP turned dovish and decreased the interest rate by a cumulative 625bps to revive the economy.

As per latest data available, Islamic Banking industry assets posted 20.4% growth and stood at PKR 3,360 billion by Mar-20.
Similarly, deposits of Islamic banks also witnessed a sharp growth of 22.4% YoY and reached PKR 2,692 billion by Mar-20. The
government has issued Energy Sukuk-1l of PKR 200bn to partially retire the circular debt. This was a long term instrument and
SLR Eligible which helped the Islamic banks to park their excess liquidity. During the year the SBP conducted three “Variable
Rental Rate” ljara Auctions. The total offered amount was PKR 420bn, out of which PKR 198bn was accepted.

During the FY20, Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through domestic sources, and largely from
commercial banks. Government borrowed PKR 2,302bn from scheduled banks compared to retirement of PKR 875bn during
same period last year. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP declined by PKR 135bn during the period against
borrowing of PKR 3,078bn during same period last year. This shift in borrowing took place as IMF has restricted borrowing
from the central bank to avoid inflationary pressure. Going forward the government will continue to meet additional
borrowing requirements from the commercial banks.

In the monetary policy held in June-20, SBP decreased the policy rate by a further 100bps to 7.0%. Going forward, we feel that
the bulk of monetary easing has taken place and we are close to the bottom of the interest rate cycle. However, SBP has
indicated its monetary policy would remain data driven and we may witness another 50-100bps reduction in interest rate in
the calendar year.

Distribution

The Fund has distributed cash dividend up-to Rs. 10.7689 per unit for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the period under review.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From —To Number of Unit Holders Total Number of Units Held
(Number of units)
1-100 1,647 24,856
101 -500 129 28,383
501 -1,000 37 25,993
1,001 - 10,000 225 1,028,177
10,001 - 100,000 271 8,338,898
100,001 - 500,000 43 8,015,222
500,001 - 1,000,000 4 2,780,808
1000,0001 - 5,000,000 5 10,388,872
5,000,001 and above 2 52,608,780
Total 2,363 83,239,789
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Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders
Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE -

HBL ISLAMIC MONEY MARKET FUND

As at June 30, 2020

Net assets at the period end(Rs'000)

NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - RUPEES
Redemption
Offer

OFFER / REDEMPTION DURING THE PERIOD - RUPEES
Highest offer price per unit
Lowest offer price per unit

Highest redemption price per unit
Lowest redemption price per unit

RETURN (%)

Total return
Income distribution
Capital growth

DISTRIBUTION

Final dividend distributation- Rs

Date of Income Distribution

Total dividend distribution for the year/ period

AVERAGE RETURNS (%)

Average annual return 1 year
Average annual return 2 year
Average annual return 3 year

Weighted average portfolio during (No. of days)
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)

Percentage of Total Assets as at 30 June:

Bank Balances

Commercial paper

Placement with Banks and DFIs
TFCs / Sukuks

Others

Note:
The Launch date of the Fund is May 10, 2011

Disclaimer:

2020

8,423,242

101.1744

103.2023
102.1381
102.0491
100.9968

11.38%
0.00%
11.38%

10.7689

Different Dates

10.77

11.38%
9.73%
7.90%

87.62%
3.75%
0.00%
7.99%
0.64%

2019

1,050,315

100.9968
102.1381

110.0993
100.8796
108.8691
100.8796

8.11%
0.00%
8.11%

8.00

28-Jun-19

8.00

8.11%
6.20%
5.53%

87.68%
11.16%
0.00%

1.16%

2018

957,109

104.9735
104.9735

104.9735
100.6620
104.9735
100.6620

4.32%
0.00%
4.32%

4-Jul-18

4.15

4.32%
4.26%
4.27%

90.67%

8.82%

0.51%

2017

835,282

100.6277
100.6277

104.7144
100.5319
104.7144
100.5319

4.19%
0.00%
4.19%

4.20

20-Jun-17

4.20

4.19%
4.25%
5.06%

100%

2016 2015
506,741 457,348
100.6132 100.4237
100.6132 100.4237
104.6150 106.5827
100.4203 100.3186
104.6150 100.9653
100.4203 100.0852
4.29% 6.70%
0.00% 0.00%
4.29% 6.70%
4.10 6.50
22-Jun-16 26-Jun-15
4.10 6.50
4.29% 6.70%
5.50% 6.78%
5.95% 7.34%
99% 99%
1% 1%

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office :

CDEC House, 99-B, Block '/
S.M.C.H.5. Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachl - 74400, Pakistan,

Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021/~ 23

URL: wwow.cdcpakistan,com

Email: info@cdopak.com
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and Clause 9 of Schedule ¥V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Islamic Asset
Allocation Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, being the
WManagement Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year
emded June 30, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(ii)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iti)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

wA- [ |
Badiuddin Akber

Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 21, 2020
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HBL Asset Managment Limited
Head Office

7th Floor

Emerald Tower

G-19 Block-5,

Main Clifton Road,

Clifton, Karachi

UAN (02I) I11-425-262
Fax (02I) 35168455
www.hblasset.com

IHBL

ASSET MANAGEMENT LTD.
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Al-Hilal

- Shariah Advisors

September 23, 2020

The purpose of this report is to provide an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the Fund's investment
and aperational activities with respect to Shariah guidelines provided.

It is the core responsibility of the Management Company to operate the Fund and invest the amount
of money in such a manner which is in compliance with the Shariah principles as laid out in the Shariah
guidelines, In the capacity of the Shariah Advisor, our responsibility lies in providing Shariah guidelines
and ensuring compliance with the same by review of activities of the fund. We express our opinion
based on the review of the information, provided by the management company, to an extent where
compliance with the Shariah guidelines can be objectively verified.

Our review of Fund’s activities is limited to enquiries of the personnel of Management Company and
various documents prepared and provided by the management company.

Keeping in view the above; we certify that:

We have reviewed all the investment and operational activities of the fund including all transactions
and found them to comply with the Shariah guidelines. On the basis of information provided by the
management company, all operations of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 comply with the
provided Shariah guidelines. Therefore, it is resolved that investments in HEL Islamic Money Market
Fund (HBL-IMMF) managed by HBL Asset Management Company Limited are halal and in accordance
with Shariah principles.

May Allah (SWT) bless us and forgive our mistakes and accept our sincere efforts in accomplishment
of cherished tasks and keep us away from sinful acts.

For and on behalf of Shariah Supervisory Council of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited.

Member Shariah Council

Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt) Limited

Suite BOT, B™ Floor, Morkien Towen, Com 26, Eheysban-e-Saadi,
Block 03 Clitton, Karachi

Twl = 52-21-RE305001-37, Winh: wwes aihlabus coem
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Unit holders of HEL Islamic Money Market Fund
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial staterments of HBL Islamic Money Market
Fund ("“tha Fund”), which comprize the staterment of assets and liabilitias as at June
30, 2020, income staterment, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
moverment in unit holders® fund and cash flow staterment for the year then ended, and
nates, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund as at June 30, 2020, and of its financial perfarmance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {154As)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
descrived in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters
ware addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
mattars. We have determined that there are no key audit matters 1o communicate in
our report.

HPAG Tadsar Has & G B Parsssrsfep Sm iepriered o Pakis
bt wwtbe brees ol ksted sl KW rosrtansd &

it i i B of e K1 nptaocs of
rafven KPR nageonal L @ Bt ebily
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report for the year ended June 30,
2020 but does not include the financial staterments and our auditors’ report theraaon,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 10 read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is
materally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowladge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to ba materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other
information, we are required 1o report that fact, We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statarments in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and for such internal control 85 management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are frea from matarial
misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or arror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liguidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for oversesing the Fund’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives ara to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a8 whaola are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
aceordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
risstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are




KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,

considered material if, individually or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thasa
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 545 as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgrment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements,
wheather due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audil evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting
from fraud is higher than for cne resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreprasentations, or the averride of
internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit proceduras that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal contral,

» Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriatenass of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncaerainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” repart to the
ralated disclosures in the financial staterments or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our apinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ repart. However, future events
of conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continua as a going concearm,

+« Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statamants, inciuding the disclosuras, and whether the financial statements
raprasant the underlying transactions and events in a mannar that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
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all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the beard of directors, we determine those
mattars that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are tharefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in
our auditors” report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
rmatter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in aur report because the adverse consequences of doing so
wiould reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prapared in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Reguiation Rules, 2003} and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008,

Other Matter

The Financial Statements of the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2018 were audited
by another firm of auditors whose report dated 27 September 2019 expressed an

unmodified opinion.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Zeashan Rashid.
Rerte T 1L €4
Date: 24 Septamber 2020 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building Mo. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

Independent Reasonable Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on the
Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles

We wera engaged by the Board of Diractors of HBL Asset Management Limited,
Managerment Company of HBL Islamic Money Market Fund {the Fund), to report on
Fund's Compliance with the Shanah principles as set out in the annexed statemeant
prepared by the Management Company for the year ended June 30, 2020, in the form
of an independent reasonable assurance conclusion about whether the annexed
statement presants fairly the status of the Fund's compliance with Shariah principles
specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor, in all
rraterial respects.

Applicable Criteria

The criteria against which the subject matter information (the Statement) is assessad
comprise of Shariah principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by
the Shariah Advisor.

The above criteria were evaluated for their implementation on the financial statements
of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020,

Responsibilities of the Management Company

The Managerment Company is responsible for preparation of the annexed statemeant
that is free from material misstaterment and for the information contained therein.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining intamal controls
relevant to the preparation of the annexed statement that is free from material
migstatament, whethar due to fraud or error. The Management Company is also
responsible to ensure that the financial arrangements and transactions having Shariah
implications enterad inte by the Fund are in substance and in their lagal form are in
compliance with the Shariah principles specified in the Trust Deed and guidelines
issued by the Shariah Advisor.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code
of Ethics for Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity,
prafessional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior.

The firm applies International Standard on Cuality Control 1 *Quality Control for Firms
That Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Infermation, and Other
Assurance and Pelated Services Engagements” and accordingly maintaing a
comprehensive system of quality control including decumented policies and

PR Thasdet Hati & O, 3 Pamsacsig Lim mgietams it Dabisn nd & mamber frm of the KPRG rsbvoi of
Iralepandeny rasber bives il Wi BRI mlernationsl Cosperivive (PR lemationdl], @ Swod ety
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Assets
Bank balances 4 7,397,036 955,111
Investments 5 991,839 121,627
Accrued mark-up on bank deposits 6 53,814 12,495
Advances, deposits and prepayment 7 876 109
Total Assets 8,443,565 1,089,342
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 8 3,389 1,269
Payable to the Trustee 9 517 156
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 10 616 790
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11 17,307 36,811
Total Liabilities 21,829 39,026
Net Assets 8,421,736 1,050,316
Unit Holders' fund (as per statement attached) 8,421,736 1,050,316
Contingencies and commitments 12
Number of units in issue 13 83,239,789 10,399,489
Net assets value per unit 101.1744 100.9968
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
Income
Profit on deposits with banks calculated using the
effective yield method 279,458 91,932
Profit on term deposit receipts calculated using
the effective yield method - 456
Return on investments calculated using the effective
yield method 14 33,555 9,777
Total income 313,013 102,165
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 8.1 16,160 10,899
Remuneration of the Trustee 9.1 2,261 1,703
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 616 790
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 8.3 1,858 1,053
Selling and marketing expense 1,490 -
Auditors' remuneration 15 352 352
Settlement and bank charges 358 259
Fee and subscription 468 359
Printing and stationery 4 13
Legal and professional charges - 249
23,567 15,677
Net income from operating activities 289,446 86,488
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 11 (5,789) (1,730)
Net income for the year before taxation 283,657 84,758
Taxation 16 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 283,657 84,758
Allocation of net income for the year:
Net income for the year after taxation 283,657 84,758
Income already paid on redemption of units (36,280) (34,922)
247,377 49,836
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains - -
- Excluding capital gains 247,377 49,836
247,377 49,836
Earning per unit 18
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Net income for the year after taxation 283,657 84,758

Other comprehensive income for the year -

Total comprehensive income for the year 283,657 84,758

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2020

For the year ended June 30,

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Capital  Undistributed Total Capital Undistributed Total
value income value income
Net assets at beginning of the year 1,042,487 7,829 1,050,316 926,994 30,116 957,110
Issuance of 149,842,468 units (2019: 18,022,440 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit
at the beginning of the period) 15,133,610 - 15,133,610 1,817,086 - 1,817,086
- Element of income 44,596 - 44,596 60,539 - 60,539
Total proceeds on issuance of units 15,178,206 - 15,178,206 1,877,625 - 1,877,625
Redemption of 77,002,168 units (2019: 16,740,572 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit
at the beginning of the period) (7,776,973) - (7,776,973) | (1,687,844) - (1,687,844)
- Element of loss (4,962) (36,280) (41,242) (29,781) (34,922) (64,703)
Total payments on redemption of units (7,781,935) (36,280) (7,818,215) (1,717,625) (34,922) (1,752,547)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 283,657 283,657 - 84,758 84,758
Interim distribution 13.2 - (233,738) |  (233,738) - (72,123) (72,123)
Refund of Capital 13.2 (38,490) - (38,490) (44,507) - (44,507)
Total distribution (38,490)  (233,738)  (272,228) (44,507) (72,123)  (116,630)
Net assets at end of the year 8,400,268 21,468 8,421,736 1,042,487 7,829 1,050,316
Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised income 7,829 30,116
- Unrealised income - -
7,829 30,116
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains - -
- Excluding capital gains 247,377 49,836
247,377 49,836
Interim distribution 13.2 (233,738) (72,123)
Undistributed income carried forward 21,468 7,829
Undistributed income carried forward
- Relating to realised gain 21,468 7,829
- Relating to unrealised gain - -
21,468 7,829
———————————————————————— (Rupees) -------mmmmmmmmmmmmeeee
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 100.9968 104.9735
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 101.1744 100.9968
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the year before taxation 283,657 84,758
Adjustments for:
Mark-up on bank deposits (279,458) (91,932)
Mark-up on term deposit receipts - (456)
Return on investments calculated using effective yield method (33,555) (9,777)

(29,356) (17,407)
Increase in assets
Prepayments (767) (49)
Investments (870,212) (121,627)

(870,979) (121,676)

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 2,120 591
Payable to the Trustee 361 36
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (174) 181
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (19,504) 31,815

(17,197) 32,623
Mark-up received on deposit with banks 271,694 94,533
Net cash used in operating activities (645,838) (11,927)
Cash flows from financing activities 19
Amount received on issue of units 15,139,716 1,877,625
Payments against redemption of units (7,818,215) (1,752,547)
Cash dividend paid (233,738) (116,630)
Net cash generated from financing activities 7,087,763 8,448
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,441,925 (3,479)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 955,111 958,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4 7,397,036 955,111
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Islamic Money Market Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated November 23, 2010,
executed between HBL Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) as a unit trust scheme on December 10, 2010.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
NBFC Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services.
The registered office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main
Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The units of the Fund were initially offered for public subscription at 'par from May 9, 2011 to May 10,
2011.

The fund has been categorised as a Shariah Compliant Money Market fund as per the criteria laid down by SECP for
categorisation of open-end Collective Investment Scheme (CISs).

The objective of the Fund is to seek high liquidity and competitive Shariah Compliant return for investors by
investing in low risk securities of shorter duration and maturity.

VIS Credit Rating Agency has assigned management quality rating of 'AM2+' positive outlook to the Management
Company and the fund stability rating of AA(f) to the Fund.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as a trustee
of the Fund.

Impact of COVID 19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHQ") declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (known as
COVID-19) as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around the world to
implement stringent measures to help control its spread, including, without limitation, quarantines, "stay-at-home"
or "shelter-in-place" orders, social-distancing mandates, travel restrictions, and closures or reduced operations for
businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other institutions. The industry, along with global economic
conditions generally, has been significantly disrupted by the pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had certain effect on the operational and
financial condition of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 due to increase in overall credit risk pertaining to
the corporate debt instruments’ portfolios of mutual funds, subdued equity market performance due to overall
slowdown in economic activity and continuity of business operations. However, to reduce the impact on the
economy and business, regulators / government across the country have introduced a host of measures on both
the fiscal and economic fronts from time to time.

The management of the Fund is closely monitoring the situation, and in response to the developments, the
management has taken action to ensure the safety of its employees and other stakeholders, and initiated a number
of initiatives.

The Management Company of the Fund expects that going forward these uncertainties would reduce as the impact
of COVID-19 on overall economy subsides and have concluded that there is no impact on current financial
statements of the Fund.
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance
2.2 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Compa-
nies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) and Non-Bank-
ing Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC
Rules and the NBFC Regulations have been followed.

2.3 Standards and amendments effective during the year

There are number of new standards and amendments that are effective from July 01, 2019 however these do not
have a significant effect on the Fund's financial statements.

2.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards, that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 01 July 2020:

- Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2020).
The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines wheth-
er it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an
acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that togeth-
er significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concen-
tration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on
past financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Account-
ing Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020). The amendments
are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the
underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to
make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Standards.
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

- On March 29, 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direc-
tion for IFRS in the future. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop
standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the
requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the
usual due process — this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallize.
The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of
specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new guidance
retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs.

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 is applicable for annual financial
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020. The G20 asked the Financial Stability Board (FSB) to undertake
a fundamental review of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review, the FSB published a report
setting out its recommended reforms of some major interest rate benchmarks such as IBORs. Public authorities
in many jurisdictions have since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in turn led to
uncertainty about the long-term viability of some interest rate benchmarks. In these amendments, the term
'interest rate benchmark reform' refers to the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark including its
replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, such as that resulting from the FSB's recommendations set
out in its July 2014 report 'Reforming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks' (the reform). The amendments made
provide relief from the potential effects of the uncertainty caused by the reform. A company shall apply the
exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments
are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Fund.

- Amendments to IFRS-16- IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief
for lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after
June 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s previous requirements, lessees assess
whether rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease
modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a
revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are apply-
ing the standard for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical
expedient for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent
concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if they were not lease
modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021; and
- thereis no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) effective for the annual period
beginning on or after January 01, 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify
when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as
non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the
settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amend-
ments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2.5

- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual period begin-
ning on or after January 01, 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the
cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is
onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date
of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require
an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the open-
ing balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for the annual
period beginning on or after January 01, 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in
accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement
requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from
cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and
equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

- The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2022:

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to
derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is
to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 —The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2020 and are not likely
to have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Fund’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

3.5

(a) classification of financial assets (Note 3.6)
(b) impairment of financial assets (Note 3.6)
(c) provisions (Note 3.14)

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the investments
which are stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and presentation
currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market
convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell
assets.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and where the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the statement of assets and

liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and there is intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

3.6 Financial assets
i. Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Fund makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular,
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Fund’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about
future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Fund’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how
cash flows are realised.
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Notes to the financial statements
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Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment on debt securities, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Fund considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment,
the Fund considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Fund’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

ii. Subsequent measurement
The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest / markup or dividend income, are
recognised in income statement.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in income
statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in income statement unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never
reclassified to income statement.

The fair value of financial assets are determined as follows:
a) Debt securities (other than Government securities)

The debt securities are valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology prescribed by SECP for valuation of debt securities vide its Circu-
lar No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012. In the determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into account the
holding pattern of these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The
circular also specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provi-
sioning of non-performing debt securities.
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b) Government securities

The government securities are valued on the basis of rates announced by the Financial Markets Association of
Pakistan.

iii. Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Fund
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

iv. Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Provision for non performing debt securities and other exposure is made in accordance with the criteria specified
in Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 issued by SECP. The provisioning policy has been duly formulated
and approved by the Board of Directors of the Fund.

3.7 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. They are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
3.8 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of
operations of the Fund and include underwriting commission, commission to the bankers to the issue, brokerage
paid to the members of the stock exchange and other expenses. These costs are amortised over a period of three
years in accordance with the requirements set out in the Trust Deed of the Fund and NBFC regulations,2008.

3.9 Unitholders' fund

Unitholders' fund representing the units issued by the Fund, is carried at the redemption amount representing the
investors’ right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets.

3.10 Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications
received, by the distributors / Management Company during business hours, as of the close of the previous day on
which the applications were received. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of
previous day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for duties and charges,
if applicable.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units as of the close of the previous day. The
redemption price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of the previous day on which the
applications were received less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for
transaction costs, if applicable.
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3.11 Revenue recognition

- Mark-up on deposits with banks and mark-up / return on investments in debt securities are recognised using
effective yield method.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established i.e. on the date of book closure
of the investee company / institution declaring the dividend.

- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the Income Statement on the date
at which the transaction takes place.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on marking to market of investments classified as 'Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' are included in the Income Statement in the year in which they arise.

3.12 Taxation

The Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by
capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among the unit holders. Provided that for the purpose
of determining distribution of atleast ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, the income distributed
through bonus units shall not be taken into account.

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences
between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition,
the Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax losses to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised. However, the Fund has not recognised any amount in respect of taxation in
these financial statements as the Fund distributes more than ninety percent of its accounting income for the
current year and intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing at least ninety
percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit
holders' every year.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

3.13 Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses (namely management fee, trustee fee, annual fee payable to the SECP
and selling and marketing expense) are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

3.14 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.15 Element of income

Element of Income represents the difference between net assets value on the issuance or redemption date, as the
case may be, of units and the Net asset Value (NAV) at the beginning of the relevant accounting period.
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Element of Income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to
unit holders' fund; however, to maintain same ex-dividend net assets value of all units outstanding on accounting
date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units (refund of
capital) in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution. As per guideline
provided by MUFAP (MUFAP Guidelines consented upon by SECP) the refund of capital is made in the form of
additional units at zero price.

MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified methodology for determination of income paid on units
redeemed (income already paid) during the year under which such income is paid on gross element received and is
calculated from the latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability during the year. The income already
paid (Element of Income) on redemption of units during the year are taken separately in statement of movement
in unitholders' fund.

3.16 Net assets value per unit

The net assets value per unit as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing the net
assets of the Fund by the number of units outstanding at the year end.

3.17 Zakat Payable
Zakat payment is the responsibility of each unit holder. Nevertheless, the Fund follows the provisions of Zakat and
Ushr Ordinance, 1980. Units held by individual resident Pakistani unit holders are subject to Zakat at 2.5% of the par
value of unit under the said Ordinance, except those exempted from Zakat. Zakat is deducted at source from
dividend or from redemption proceeds, if units are redeemed during the Zakat year before the payment of Zakat.

3.18 Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit based on cumulative weighted average units for the period has not been disclosed as in the
opinion of the Management Company the determination of the same is not practicable.

3.19 Distributions

Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by
the SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the year.
The distribution per unit is announced based on units that were held for the entire period. The rate of distribution
is adjusted with effect of refund of capital if any based on the period of investment made during the year.
Resultantly, the rate of distribution per unit may vary depending on the period of investment.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the year in which such distributions are declared and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Management Company.

3.20 Other assets

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
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2020 2019
4. BANK BALANCES Note ~ --—-——-- (Rupees in '000)----------
Balances with banks in:
Savings accounts 4.1 7,397,036 955,111
Term deposit receipt - -
7,397,036 955,111
4.1 This represent bank accounts held with different banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts ranges between 5.97% -
14.5% (2019: 4 % - 13%) per annum.
2020 2019
5. INVESTMENTS Note ~ ------me-- (Rupees in '000)----------
Investment by catergory
Financial assets at amortised cost
Commercial paper 5.1 316,839 121,627
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Sukuk certificates 5.2 675,000 -
991,839 121,627
5.1 Commercial papers - at amortised cost
Maturity date  AsatlJulyl, Placements Income Matured /  As at June 30, Market value as a percentage of
Note 2019 made during accrued Sold during 2020 Total investments Net Assets of
the year the year of fund fund
(Rupees in '000) (%)
K - Electric Limited Sep 2, 2020 121,627 - 2,373 124,000
K - Electric Limited Feb 28, 2020 - 46,402 3,598 50,000
K - Electric Limited Mar 19, 2020 - 69,702 5,298 75,000 - - -
K - Electric Limited 51.1 Aug 14, 2020 - 115,544 6,364 - 121,908 12.29 1.45
K - Electric Limited 5.1.2 Aug 26, 2020 - 60,578 3,046 - 63,624 6.41 0.76
K - Electric Limited 513 Sep 10, 2020 - 84,213 3,490 - 87,703 8.84 1.04
K - Electric Limited 514 Oct 6, 2020 - 42,411 1,193 - 43,604 4.40 0.52
121,627 418,850 25,362 249,000 316,839 31.94 3.77
5.1.1 This commercial paper has been placed at a mark-up rate of 14.13% and is being amortised over a year of 137 days.
5.1.2 This commercial paper has been placed at a mark-up rate of 14.13% and is being amortised over a year of 125 days.
5.1.3 This commercial paper has been placed at a mark-up rate of 13.19% and is being amortised over a year of 112 days.
5.1.4 This commercial paper has been placed at a mark-up rate of 11.82% and is being amortised over a year of 85 days.
5.2 Sukuks certificate - At fair value through profit or loss
As at Purchased Matured/ AsatJune30, Amortised Market value Market value as a percentage of
Note July 1, 2019 during the Sold during 2020 cost as at June as atJune 30, Total investments Net Assets of
year the year 30, 2020 2020 of fund fund
(Rupees in '000) (%)
HUB Power Company Limited 521 - 675,000 - 675,000 675,000 675,000 68.06 8.01
675,000 - 675,000 675,000 675,000 68.06 8.01
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5.2.1 Significant terms and conditions of Sukuk certificates outstanding as at June 30, 2020 are as follows:
Remaining Mark-up rate (per annum) Date of Issue Maturity Date
Name of Security Principal (per
Sukuk)
HUB Power Company Limited 1,000,000 6 months KIBOR + 1.5%. 19-May-20 19-May-21
2020 2019
6. ACCRUED MARK-UP Note - (Rupees in '000)---—----
Mark-up accrued on bank deposits 46,188 12,495
Mark-up accrued on Sukuk certificates 7,626 -
53,814 12,495
7. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT
Prepaid annual rating fee 66 9
CDC security deposit 100 100
Advance Tax 7.1 710 -
876 109
7.1 This pertains to tax erroneously collected by bank on markup on bank deposits which will be claimed on filing of tax

return of the Fund.

2020 2019
8. PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY Note  momeeeeees (Rupees in '000)-—----—
In respect of:
Management fee 8.1 2,113 1,014
Sindh Sales Tax on management fee 8.2 275 132
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 8.3 352 101
Sales load payable 48 22
Selling and Marketing expense payable 601 -
3,389 1,269
8.1 As Per SECP S.R.0. 639 (1)/2019 dated June 20, 2019, there has been amendment in NBFC regulation no. 61, in

which limits over management fee had been removed and directed that the asset management company shall
disclose in the Offering document the maximum rate of management fee chargeable to Collective Investment
Scheme within allowed expense ratio limit. Further, the asset management company may charge variable fee or
fixed fee or the combination of both which shall not exceed the limit disclosed in the Offering Document and such
actual rate shall be disclosed in Fund manager report. The management fee expense charged by the asset
management company varried between 0.30% to 1.00% (2019: 2%) during the year. Currently at the rate of 0.30%
of average annual Net Asset of the Fund

8.2 The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13 percent (2019: 13 percent) on
the remuneration of the Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

8.3 As Per SECP S.R.O. 639 (1)/2019 dated June 20, 2019, there has been amendment in NBFC regulation no. 60 (3)

point (s) and (v), in which limits to allocate fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting, operation,
valuation services and selling and marketing expenses had been removed.
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2020 2019
Note = ------mme- (Rupees in '000)----------
9. PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Trustee fee 9.1 458 138
Sindh Sales Tax 59 18
517 156
9.1 The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the

Trust Deed as per the tariff specified in, based on the daily Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund.
With effect from July 01, 2019 the tariff is 0.065% per annum of Net Assets as at June 30, 2020.

9.2 The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax on services at the rate of 13% (2019: 13%) on the remuneration
of Trustee through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

2020 2019
10. PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Note —oee (Rupees in '000)--———
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee 10.1 616 790
10.1 Under the provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 a collective

investment scheme categorised as a money market scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, an amount equal to 0.02% of the average annual net assets of the scheme. The
fee is payable annually in arrears.

2020 2019
Note = ------mme- (Rupees in '000)----------
11. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Auditors' remuneration 298 264
Federal Excise Duty 11.1 2,185 2,185
Withholding tax payable 3,135 3,282
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 11.2 9,722 3,933
Other payables 867 1,187
Capital gain tax payable 683 4,242
Dividend payable 417 21,719
17,307 36,812
11.1 As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16 percent on the

remuneration of the Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management
Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED
results in double taxation, which does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed
by the Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan along-with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited with the
Sindh High Court (SHC) on September 04, 2013.

While disposing the above petition through order dated July 30, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be
ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities
subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the
decision.
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The Finance act 2016, excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016, therefore, no
provision was charged during the year ended June 30, 2020.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company has made a
provision on FED on remuneration of the Management Company, aggregating to Rs. 2.185 million. Had the
provision not being made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Rs. 0.0262
(2019: Rs. 0.2101) per unit.

11.2 The Finance Act, 2008 introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) Ordinance, 1971 whereby the
definition of industrial establishment was extended. The amendments were challenged at various levels and
conflicting judgments were rendered by the Lahore High Court, Sindh High Court and Peshawar High Court. The
Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its judgment dated November 10, 2016, has upheld the view of Lahore
High Court and decided that WWF is not a tax and hence the amendments introduced through Finance Act, 2008
are ultra-vires to the Constitution. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed Civil Review Petitions in respect of above
judgment with the prayer that the judgment dated November 10, 2016 passed in the Civil Appeal may kindly be
reviewed in the interest of justice.

Furthermore, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) had written to few mutual funds in January 2016 to register and pay
Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) for the accounting year closing on or after December 31, 2013. MUFAP
reviewed the issue and based on an opinion decided that SWWF is not applicable on mutual funds as they are not
financial institutions as required by SWWF Act, 2014. MUFAP wrote to SRB that mutual funds are not
establishments and are pass through vehicles hence, they do not have any worker and no SWWEF is payable by
them. SRB responded back that as mutual funds are included in definition of financial institutions in the Financial
Institutions (Recovery of Finance) Ordinance, 2001, therefore SWWF is applicable on mutual funds. MUFAP has
taken up this matter before the Sindh Finance Ministry to exclude mutual funds from SWWF.

In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of WWF and SWWF on CISs / mutual funds and
considering the legal opinion obtained on these matters, MUFAP has recommended the following to all its
members on January 12, 2017:

The above decisions were communicated to the SECP and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on January 12, 2017
and the SECP vide its letter dated February 01, 2017 has advised MUFAP that the adjustments relating to the above
should be prospective and supported by adequate disclosures in the financial statements of the CISs / mutual
funds. Accordingly, Managment reversed the provision for WWF amounted to Rs. 2.80 million on January 12, 2017
and started recording a provision for SWWF with effective from July 01, 2014. Thereafter, the provision for SWWF
is being made on a daily basis. Had the SWWF not been provided, the NAV per unit would have been higher by Rs.
0.1168 (2019: Rs. 0.378) per unit respectively.

12, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Other than already disclosed in the financial statements, there are no contingencies and commitments as at June

30, 2020.
2020 2019
13. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE Note oo (RUpEes in '000)--------
Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 10,399,489 9,117,621
Add: Units issued during the year 13.1 149,842,468 18,022,440
Less: Units redeemed during the year (77,002,168) (16,740,572)
Total units in issue at the end of the year 83,239,789 10,399,489
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13.1 This includes 381,092 units issued at zero value as refund of capital.
13.2 Date of Distribution Payout per Cash Units issued at
unit Distribution zero value
Rupees Rupees in '000
August 5, 2019 1.0687 11,791 5,150
September 4, 2019 0.9399 10,698 3,387
October 3, 2019 0.9978 11,713 17,094
November 5, 2019 1.0792 12,703 12,986
December 4, 2019 0.9389 10,910 6,731
January 3, 2020 1.0726 13,966 51,756
February 6, 2020 1.1059 16,205 18,318
March 4, 2020 0.8977 17,407 94,748
April 6, 2020 1.0465 20,613 58,415
May 11, 2020 0.7911 41,076 81,150
June 8, 2020 0.5503 45,126 26,056
June 22, 2020 0.2803 21,530 5,299
233,738 381,090
2020 2019
14. MARK-UP / RETURN ON INVESTMENTS [NC ] — (Rupees in '000)---—--—
Sukuk certificates 7,626 -
Commercial Paper 25,362 9,777
GoP ljarah Sukuks 567 -
33,555 9,777
15. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Annual audit fee 253 253
Fee for half yearly review 40 40
Sindh Sales Tax 23 23
Shariah Compliance Audit fee 5 5
Out of pocket 31 31
352 352
16. TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of the accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also
exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. During the year, Management Company has distributed cash dividend of atleast 90
percent of the aforementioned accounting income to the unit holders. Accordingly, no provision for taxation has
been recognised in these financial statements.

Annual Report-2020



HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

17. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide directive no. SCD/PRDD/Direction/18/2016 dated
20 July 2016, requires that Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) shall disclose Total Expense Ratio (TER) in the
financial statements of CIS / the Fund. As per S.R.0 639 (1)/2019, the limit towards expense ratio has been revised
from 2.00% to 2.50% for Income, aggressive income, Capital protected, Index and Commodity Schemes (cash
settled) schemes. The total expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June,30 2020 is 0.95% (June 30, 2019 :
1.65%) which includes 0.27% (2019: 0.37%) representing government levy, Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund and SECP
fee.

18. EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of Management company determination of
cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

19. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING OUT OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receivable against sale of Payable against Total
units redemption of

units

Opening balance as at July 1, 2019 - - -

Receivable against issuance of units 15,139,716 - 15,139,716
Payable against redemption of units - 7,818,215 7,818,215
Amount received on issuance of units (15,139,716) - (15,139,716)
Amount paid on redemption of units - (7,818,215) (7,818,215)

(15,139,716) (7,818,215) (22,957,931)

Closing balance as at June 30, 2020 - - -

20. TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited,
being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective
investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company,
directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms
determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in financial
statements are as follows:
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2020 2019

20.1 Transactions during theyear (Rupees in '000)----------
HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company
Management Fee including sales tax 16,160 10,899
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services - 1,053
Issuance of 699,213 units (2019: 2,767 units) 70,563 290
Redemption of 700,961 units (2019: 28,596 units) 71,769 2,911
Dividend Paid 733 127
Selling and Marketing expense 1,490 -
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Issuance of Nil units (2019: 118,711 units) - 11,969
Redemption of Nil units (2019: 762,765 units) - 80,649
Bank charges paid 266 80
Profit on bank deposits received 69,592 17,467
Dividend paid 24,122 29,889
Executive and Key management personnel
Issuance of 56,750 units (2019: 524,693 units) 5,720 55,282
Redemption of 68,054 units (2019: 388,122 units) 7,332 41,072
Dividend paid 506 912
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Trustee remuneration 2,261 1,703
MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Capital Preservation Plan - Associate
Issuance of Nil units (2019: 1,521 units) - 161
Redemption of 1,521 units (2019: Nil units) 154 -
Dividend Paid - 11
Artistic Milliners Pvt Limited - Connected Person Due To
holding 10% or more units.
Issuance of 29,703,911.41 units 3,000,000 -
Dividend Paid 48,171 -
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited - Connected Person Due To
holding 10% or more units.
Issuance of 34,771,689.28 units 3,492,500 -
Redemption of 11,866,820.71 units 1,200,861
Dividend Paid 26,948
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2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
Jubliee Life Insurance Company Limited - Connected Person
due to holding 10% or more units.
Purchase of GoP ijarah Sukuks : 203 units (2019: Nil units) 203,000 -
20.2 Balances outstanding as at year end
HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company
Management fee 2,113 1,014
Sindh Sales Tax 275 132
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 352 101
Investment held in the Fund: Nil units (2019: 1,748 units) - 177
Sale load payable 48 22
Selling and marketing cost 601 -
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Investment held in the Fund: 2,240,000 units (2019: 2,240,000 units) 226,631 226,233
Bank balances 1,947,811 7,510
Sale load payable 568 814
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable including sales tax thereon 517 156
Executive and Key management personnel
Investment held in the Fund: 48,155 units (2019: 137,318 units) 4,871 13,869
MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Capital Preservation Plan - Associate
Investment held in the Fund: Nil units (2019: 1,521 units) - 154
Artistic Milliners Pvt Limited - Connected Person Due To
holding 10% or more units.
Investment held in the Fund: 29,703,911.41 units 3,005,275 -
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited - Connected Person Due To
holding 10% or more units.
Investment held in the Fund: 22,904,868.57 units 2,317,386 -

* Investors who were reported as Connected Persons due to holding more than 10% units of Fund in the
comparative period but does not hold at least 10% units of the Fund at the end of current period are not reported
as related party.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's
risk management policies.
The Fund's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Fund's activities.
The Fund primarily invests in a portfolio of equity and money market investments such as shares of listed
companies, government securities and in other money market instruments. These activities are exposed to a
variety of financial risk, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

21.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure in marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee of the Fund
and the regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk; currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

21.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its operations are
geographically restricted to Pakistan and all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

21.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

a) Cash flow interest rate risk
Presently, the Fund holds balances in savings bank accounts as at June 30, 2020, that could expose the Fund to
cash flow interest rate risk. The net income for the year would have increased / (decreased) by Rs. 73.97 million
(2019: Rs. 9.5511 million) had the interest rates on savings accounts with the banks increased / (decreased) by
100 basis points.

b) Fair value interest rate risk

Presently, the Fund only holds fixed rate instrument having short term maturity at June 30, 2020, that could not
expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk.
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21.1.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.

The fund, currently, does not have any financial instruments which are subject to price risk.
21.2 Credit risk

The Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
they fall due. Credit risk arises from the inability of the counter party to fulfil their obligations. There is a possibility
of default by participants or failure of the financial markets / stock exchanges, the depositories, the settlements or
clearing system, etc.

The Fund's credit risk is primarily attributable to its investment in debt securities, balances with banks and
advances, deposits and other receivables. The credit risk of the Fund is limited as the investments are made and
balances are maintained with counter parties that are financial institutions with reasonably high credit ratings.

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management policies and
investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee. In addition, the risk is managed through the
assignment of credit limits and by following strict credit evaluation criteria laid down by the Management
Company.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before considering any collateral as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 is the
carrying amount of the financial assets. Investments in debt securities, however, are not exposed to credit risk.
None of these assets are 'impaired' nor 'past due but not impaired'.

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's bank balances, accrued mark-up and other
receivable as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019:

2020 2019
Note = —--ooeee- (Rupees in '000)----------
Sukuk certificates 675,000 -
Accrued mark-up 53,814 12,495
Advances, deposits and prepayment 876 109
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Balances with banks by rating category

2020
Name of bank Rating agency Rating Amount
(Rupees in
'000)

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS AA 4,476,148
Habib Bank Limited VIS AAA 1,947,811
Askari Bank Limited PACRA AA+ 23
Meezan Bank Limited VIS AA+ 12
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA AA+ 13
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA AA+ 18
Allied Bank Limited PACRA AAA 972,311
Faysal Bank Limited VIS AA 11
Summit Bank Limited VIS N/A 8
MCB Bank Limited PACRA AAA 681

— 7,397,036

2019
Name of bank Rating agency Rating Amount
(Rupees in
'000)

Habib Bank Limited VIS AAA 952,754
Askari Bank Limited PACRA AA+ 11
Meezan Bank Limited VIS AA+ 11
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA AA+ 13
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA AA+ 2,079
Allied Bank Limited PACRA AAA 76
Faysal Bank Limited VIS AA 157
Summit Bank Limited VIS BBB- 10

___ 955111

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. The
Fund's portfolio of financial instruments is mainly concentrated in equity securities which are primarily subject to
price risk. The Fund's portfolio of other financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with
diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

21.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle it's obligations
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of units. The Management Company manages the liquidity risk by

monitoring maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities and investing a major portion of the Fund's assets
in highly liquid financial assets.
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In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of
10% of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption request qualifying for being processed
on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down
to a level below 10% of the units then in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions during the year.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows;

2020
Upto three More than More than Total
months three months one
and upto one year
year
Rupees in '000
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 3,389 - - 3,389
Payable to the Trustee 517 - - 517
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,582 - - 1,582
5,488 - - 5,488
Unit holders' Fund 8,421,736 - - 8,421,736
2019
Upto three More than More than Total
months three months one
and upto one year
year
Rupees in '000
Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company 1,269 - - 1,269
Payable to the Trustee 156 - - 156
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 23,170 - - 23,170
24,595 - - 24,595
Unit holders' Fund 1,050,316 - - 1,050,316
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

22. FAIR VALUE AND CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying
values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on the quoted market prices at
the close off trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is
current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy;

2020
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value At Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through profit cost
or loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial instruments
Financial assets not measured
at fair value 22.1
Investments 675,000 316,839 991,839 675,000 - - -
Bank balances - 7,397,036 7,397,036
Accrued mark-up on bank deposits - 53,814 53,814
Deposit - 100 100

675,000 7,767,689 8,442,789

Financial liabilities not measured

at fair value 22.1
Payable to Management Company - 3,389 3,389
Payable to Trustee - 458 458
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 1,582 1,582

- 5,429 5,429
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HBL Islamic Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2019
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value At Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through profit cost
or loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial instruments
Financial assets not measured
at fair value 22.1

Commercial papers - 121,627 121,627

Bank balances - 955,111 955,111

Accrued mark-up - 12,495 12,495

Deposit - 100 100

- 1,089,333 1,089,333

Financial liabilities not measured

at fair value 22.1
Payable to Management Company - 1,269 1,269
Payable to Trustee - 156 156
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 23,170 23,170
- 24,595 24,595
22.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short

term in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

22.2 Net assets attributable to unitholders. The Fund routinely redeems and issues the units at the amount equal to the
proportionate share of net assets of the Fund at the time of redemption, calculated on a basis consistent with that
used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net assets attributable to unitholders
approximates their fair value. The units are categorized into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
2020
At fair value At Amortised Total
through profit or cost
loss
(Rupees in '000)
Assets
Commercial paper - 316,839 316,839
Sukuk Certificates 675,000 - 675,000
Bank balances - 7,397,036 7,397,036
Accrued mark-up on banks - 53,814 53,814
Deposit - 100 100
675,000 7,767,789 8,442,789
2020
At fair value At Amortised Total
through profit or cost
loss
(Rupees in '000)
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 3,389 3,389
Payable to the Trustee - 517 517
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 1,582 1,582

- 5,488 5,488
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2019
At fair value At Amortised cost Total
through profit or
loss
(Rupees in '000)

Assets
Commercial papers - 121,627 121,627
Bank balances - 955,111 955,111
Accrued mark-up on banks - 12,495 12,495
Deposit - 100 100

- 1,089,333 1,089,333

2019
At fair value At Amortised cost Total
through profit or
loss
(Rupees in '000)

Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 1,269 1,269
Payable to the Trustee - 156 156
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 30,694 30,694

- 32,119 32,119

24, UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The amount
of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily
issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. These unit holders of the Fund are entitled to
distributions and to payment of a proportionate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the
redemption date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unit holders' fund.

- Monitor the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of distri-
butions the Fund pays to the unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's
ability to restrict redemptions; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer of the Management
Company critically track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated
regarding key performance indicators e.g., yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each

quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current year.
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For the year ended June 30, 2020

25. PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund as on June 30, 2020, are as follows:

S.no. Name Designation Qualification Experience in years
1 Mr. Mir Adil Rashid Chief Executive Officer BSc 21
Mr. Muhammad Wamiq Acting Head of Fixed Income MBA 10
Sakrani / Fund Manager
3 Mr. Raza Inam Acting Head of Research Bsc (Hons), CFA 7
4 Mr. Karim Khawaja Head of Risk MBA, CMA 17

* He is Jointly Fund Manager of all other HBL Funds managed by Management company.

26. PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
2020
Number of Units Investment Percentage
unit holders held amount investment
(Rupees in '000)
Individuals 2,309 14,803,696 1,497,755 17.78
Associated company 1 2,240,000 226,631 2.69
Trust 7 786,708 79,595 0.95
Insurance Companies 6 900,046 91,062 1.08
Retirement funds 15 721,690 73,017 0.87
Banks / DFls 2 5,993,720 606,411 7.20
Others 23 57,793,929 5,847,265 69.43
2,363 83,239,789 8,421,736 100.00
2019
Number of unit Units Investment Percentage
holders held amount investment
(Rupees in '000)
Individuals 1,802 6,292,045 635,476 60.50
Director 1 110 11 0.00
Associated company 2 2,241,746 226,409 21.56
Trust 5 982,651 99,245 9.45
Insurance Companies 3 308,817 31,190 2.97
Retirement funds 9 164,356 16,599 1.58
Banks / DFIs 1 9 1 0.00
Others 14 409,755 41,385 3.94
1,837 10,399,489 1,050,316 100.00
27. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on August 29, 2019, October 29, 2019, February 13, 2020, March
02, 2020 and April 29, 2020 respectively. Information in respect of the attendance by the Directors in the meetings
is given below:
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Number of meetings

S.No. Name of Director Held Attended Leave granted Meetings not attended
1 Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan* 1 1 - -
2 Mr. Mir Adil Rashid** 4 4 - -
3 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 5 5 - -
4 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 5 5 - -
5 Mr. Rizwan Haider 5 5 - -
6 Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi 5 5 - -
7 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 5 5 - -
8 Mr. Aamir Hasan Irshad**** 5 5 - -
9 Mr. Atif Aslam Bajwa*** 2 2 - -

* Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan resigned as CEO on September 15, 2019.

** Mr. Mir Adil Rashid appointed as CEO on September 16, 2019.

*#% Mr. Atif Aslam Bajwa appointed as of October 29, 2019 and resigned on February 24, 2020.
**x* Resigned on May 14, 2020.

28. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 27, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

29. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation the effect of which is not material.

30. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

Annual Report-2020



IdABL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund




NAME OF FUND IHBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

NAME OF TRUSTEE Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
NAME OF AUDITORS KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants
NAME OF SHARIAH ADVISORS Al - Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited

NAME OF BANKERS Habib Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Askari Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Summit Bank Limited

Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT —

HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
As at June 30, 2020

Type and Category of Fund
Open end Shariah Complaint Asset Allocation Fund
Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

The objective of the Fund is to provide superior returns through investments in Shariah Complaint equity securities and
Shariah Compliant income /money market instruments.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark

The Fund’s benchmark is Weighted average daily return of KMI30 and 6M deposit rate of A rated (and above) Islamic Banks or
Islamic Banking windows of scheduled commercial banks, based on the actual proportion held by the scheme.

The comparison of the fund return with benchmark is given below:

Return of Fund

Month HBL-IAAF | Benchmark HBL-1AAF vs. Benchmark

Jun-20 0.15% 0.28% 8.00%

May-20 -0.56% 0.06% 6.00%

Apr-20 5.32% 6.05% 4.00%

Mar-20 -6.45% -5.96% 2.00%

Feb-20 -2.41% -3.23% 0.00%

Jan-20 1.23% 0.86% -2.00%

Dec-19 1.92% 1.72% -A.00%

Nov-19 4.24% 3.74% -5.00%

Oct-19 3.26% 2.87% -B.00%

Sep-19 3.98% 3.18%

Aug-19 237% -1.89% e UM Of HEL IAAF s Rt urn of Benchmark
Jul-19 -1.42% -1.59%

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

During the year under review the Fund has increased its exposure in equity securities from 23% as on June 30, 2019 to 30%
as on June 30, 2020. Furthermore, sector wise allocation was continuously reviewed and revisited throughout the year to
ensure optimum return to the investors. Accordingly, exposure in cements and pharmaceuticals was increased. The Fund
gradually decreased its exposure in Commercial paper/Sukuk, while increasing Cash holding with banks.

Asset Allocation

Power
generation, As o Jun 2020 Pharmacautic As on Jun 2019
2.66%_ oth als, 0.75%  Power
_ Ers, seneratian, Others, 5.70%
FhEFITIEEE':ItI 7.51% 0il & Gas 2 71% Cash, 19.81%
cals, 2.47%_ Exploration, ! =
Oil & Gas Lash, 35.33% 8.75%
Exploration, | Fertilizer, _
2.32% 3.91%
Fertilizer, » Cement, _
5.83% ) 1.2
Cement, _"’ Others _—
3.20% Including
Receivables,
Dthers 3.64%
Including
Receivables, —GoP Sukuk,
3.51% B8
Commercial ' ~—Sukuk, oo _ Sukuk, 37 3%
Paper, 7.74% 20.58% Paper, 1605%
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Fund Performance

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 107.96 million and Rs. 82.05 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 103.6330 per unit as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 103.2688 per
unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 6.25 per unit, thereby giving a return of 6.42% during the year,
against the benchmark return (Weighted average daily return of KMI 30 Index & 6 months deposit rate of A rated or above
banks) of 5.60%. The size of Fund was Rs. 0.31 billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 1.13 billion at the start of the

year.
Significant Changes in Asset Allocation during the Year

Following table shows comparison of sector wise allocation of equity investments of Fund as on June 30, 2020 and June 30,
2019:

Sector Name As on Jun 2020 As on Jun 2019
Cash 35.33% 19.81%
GoP Sukuk 2.85% 0.00%
Sukuk 20.58% 37.39%
Commercial Paper 7.74% 16.05%
Others Including Receivables 3.51% 3.64%
Cement 3.20% 1.29%
Fertilizer 5.83% 3.91%
Oil & Gas Exploration 8.32% 8.75%
Pharmaceuticals 2.47% 0.75%
Power generation 2.66% 2.71%
Others 7.51% 5.70%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Review of Market invested in

Money Market Review

SBP continued monetary tightening in FY19 to control the rising current account deficit and anchor increasing inflationary
pressures.

As per latest data available, Islamic Banking industry assets posted 19.5% growth and stood at PKR 2,790 billion by Mar-19.
Similarly, deposits of Islamic banks also witnessed a sharp growth of 14.8% YoY and reached PKR 2,199 billion by Mar-19.
Despite the massive growth in assets and deposits, SBP did not issue any fixed or floating rate GOP ljarah Sukuk in FY18 and
in FY19. During FY19, PKR 314bn of GoP ljara matured while government conducted “Bai-Muajjal” transaction of PKR 237bn
carried out with the banks so that banks could park their excess liquidity. The “Bai-Muajjal” was SLR Eligible which ensured
that the Islamic banks continue to meet the SLR requirement.

The government has issued Energy Sukuk-I of PKR 200bn to partially retire the circular debt. This was a long term instrument
and SLR Eligible fetching increased investment flows from Islamic banks. Moreover, Government is planning another Energy
Sukuk-II of PKR 200bn in 1QFY20 to settle outstanding circular debt with similar pricing and characteristics.

During the FY19, Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through domestic sources, and largely from
central bank. Government retired PKR 893bn from scheduled banks compared to retirement of PKR 210bn during same period
last year. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP increased by PKR 2,596bn during the period against borrowing of PKR
1,469bn during same period last year. Moreover, we expect that Government borrowing will shift from SBP towards
Commercial banks under IMF program. It is important to note that IMF staff report suggests that incremental borrowing
requirements have to be met via commercial banks as borrowing from SBP will remain limited to avoid indirect inflationary

pressures.

In the monetary policy held in May-19, SBP increased the policy rate by a further 150bps to 12.25%. Going forward, we expect
that large part of monetary tightening has been done, however upward risk to inflation emanate from higher than expected
impact of electricity and gas price hike.

Stock Market Review

The equity markets’ performance during FY20 can be described as a tale of two halves.
1HFY20 was dominated by continued reforms in light of the Extended Fund Facility from the IMF; market determined

exchange rate mechanism, high inflation, regular adjustments in energy tariffs and rising interest rates. However, investor
sentiment subsequently improved on account of 1) progress on FATF front, 2) reduction in current account deficit, 3) stability
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in PKR/USD parity, and 4) declining long-term yields in the secondary market due to expectation of lower future inflation
outlook. Hence the benchmark KMI30 index increased by 22% during 1HFY20 to close at 66,032 points on December 31, 2019.

2HFY20 continued with the same momentum as the benchmark KMI30 index made a high of 70,790 on January 10, 2020.
However, the positive momentum was broken with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in lockdowns globally
and in Pakistan. This led to a steep decline in the KMI30 index as it fell to a low of 41,365 points on March 26, 2020. The local
bourse saw a dip, in line with global markets, driven by expectations of hampered economic activity. International QOil prices
witnessed new lows as global storages overflowed. Global Trade and shipping also witnessed huge downturns. Domestic
companies with already weak business outlook due to ongoing economic environment and high leverage witnessed further
uncertainty.

The market rebounded in April 2020 where despite a complete lockdown and uncertainty surrounding its potential timeline
and impact, the KMI30 witnessed a sharp uptick on the back of unexpectedly aggressive monetary easing by the SBP
(cumulative 625bps reduction in the Policy Rate) , approval of Rapid Financing Instrument of USD 1.4bn by the IMF,
announcement of fiscal stimulus measures by the GoP to reduce the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the economy and
Government’s decision to ease off lockdown restrictions for certain industries. The KMI30 index closed the year at 54,995
points (up 1.62%).

In terms of flows, foreign investors remained net sellers with an outflow of USD 284mn (compared to outflow of USD 356mm
in FY19).

Pakistan equities are likely to continue this momentum as cheaper valuation (trading at a Forward P/E of 6.8x against peer
average 16.8x) and slowdown in covid-19 cases will lead to improvement in Investor sentiment. Market participants would
closely follow trend of coronavirus cases and the ensuing macro numbers. Cyclical sectors (Cement, Steel, OMCs) are expected
to perform well due to decline in interest rates and pick-up in economic activity. Textile sector is also expected to garner
investor’s attention due to huge export potential. Technology sector will also remain in limelight due to increased
digitalization post covid-19 pandemic. We will maintain our strategic focus towards "bottom-up" approach and align exposure
towards stocks with strong earnings potential.

Distribution

The Board of Directors approved dividend distribution of up to Rs. 6.25 per unit to the unit holders for the year ended June
30, 2020.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
There were no changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From - To Number of Unit Total N umber of Units

(Number  of units) Holders Held
1 - 100 27 1,227
101 - 500 28 6,677
501 - 1,000 9 6,581
1,001 - 10,000 48 228,344
10,001 - 100 ,000 43 1,047,664
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 2 300,657
500,001 - 1,000,000 - -
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 1 1,404,025
5,000,001 and above - -
Total 158 2,995,175

Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders
Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE -

HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
As at June 30, 2020

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Net assets at the period end (Rs'000) 310,399 1,130,868 2,469,559 2,623,318 1,349,890
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - RUPEES
Redemption 103.6330 103.2688 104.7748 105.5962 102.5411
Offer 105.9751 105.6027 107.1427 108.3890 105.2531
OFFER / REDEMPTION DURING THE PERIOD - RUPEES
Highest offer price per unit 118.2841 109.9945 108.8114 118.9345 106.8742
Lowest offer price per unit 100.7388 103.5444 102.4066 100.6004 100.0000
Highest redemption price per unit 115.67 107.5636 106.4066 116.3060 104.1204
Lowest redemption price per unit 98.5124 101.256 100.1434 100.6004 100.0000
RETURN (%)
Total return 6.42% -1.15% -0.78% 9.83% 3.35%
Income distribution 6.25% 0.00% 0.30% 6.50% 0.80%
Capital growth 0.17% -1.15% -1.08% 3.33% 2.55%
DISTRIBUTION
First Interin dividend distribution
Second Interin dividend distribution
Third Interin dividend distribution
Final dividend distributation- Rs 6.25 0 0.3 6.50 0.80
Date of Income Distribution 26-Jun-20 - 03-Jul-18 22-Jun-17 28-Jun-16
Total dividend distribution for the year (Rs) 6.25 - 0.30 6.50 0.80
AVERAGE RETURNS (% )
Average annual return 1 year
Average annual return 2 year
Average annual return 1 year 6.42% -1.15% -0.78% 9.83% 3.35%
Average annual return 2 year 2.57% -0.97% 4.24% 8.94% -
Average annual return 3 year 1.44% 2.51% 3.94% - -
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June:
Bank Balances 35.33% 19.81% 43.05% 73% 22%
GoP ljarah Sukuks 2.85% - - - 15%
Certificate of Modaraba 7.74%
Commercial Paper 0.00% 16.05% - - -
TFC / Sukuks 20.58% 37.39% 28.69% 2% 3%
Stock/Equities 29.99% 23.11% 27.31% 25% 1%
Others 3.51% 3.64% 0.96% - 59%

Note:
The Launch date of the Fund is January 08, 2016

Disclaimer:

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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PROXY VOTING DISCOLUSRE-

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Summary of Actual Proxy voted by CIS

(h)

HBL IAAF Meetings Resolutions For Against
Number 1 6 6 -
(%ages) 100% 100% -
AMC did not participate in shareholders' meetings
Investee Company AGM Meeting Dt EOGM Meeting Dt
Amreli Steels Limited 23/10/2018
AGP Limited 17/4/2019 06-07-18
Engro Corporation Ltd (3/12/2018)(24/4/2019)(13/5/2019)(17/6/2019) (25/09/2018)(28/5/2019)
Engro Fertilizer Ltd (2/10/2018)(26/11/2018)(28/3/2019) 27/5/2019
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd (18/09/2018)(1/4/2019)
Fauji Fertilizer Co Ltd (19/12/2018)(26/3/2019)(23/6/2019)
Hub Power Company Ltd (30/4/2019) (16/4/2019)
Hascol Petroleum (19/11/2018) 10-10-18
International Industries Ltd (28/09/2018)(22/3/2019)
International Steels Limited (25/09/2018)(22/3/2019)
Kohat Cement Co Ltd 25/10/2018 29/6/2019
Kohinoor Textile Mill Ltd 27/10/2018)(21/3/2019)
Lucky Cement Ltd (28/09/2018)(27/10/2018)
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Ltd (18/4/2019)
Maple Leaf Cement Factory 27/10/2018
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries 27/10/2018
Mari Petroleum Company Ltd 18/10/2018)(20/3/2019)
Meezan Bank Ltd 2/10/2018)(28/3/2019)(20/5/2019 17/11/2018
Mughal iron & Steel 27/10/2018
Millat Tractors Limited (30/10/2018)(8/3/2019)
Nishat Mills Ltd 27/10/2018)(17/4/2019)
Oil & Gas Development Co Ltd (25/10/2018)(20/12/2018)(18/4/2019)(17/6/2019)
Packages Limited 18/4/2019
Pakgen Power Ltd 30/4/2019 25/10/2018
Pakistan Petroleum Ltd 26/10/2018
Pakistan Oilfields Ltd (25/09/2018)(20/3/2019)
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd (02/10/2018)(16/10/2018)(19/6/2019)
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Ltd 23/5/2019
Thal Limited (22/10/2018)(20/3/2019)
The Searle Company Ltd 22/11/2018
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office :
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Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 3432602 1)- 29

URL: www.cdcpakistan com
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HRBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and Clause 9 of Schedule ¥ of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Islamic Asset
Allocation Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Assel Management Limited, being the
WManagement Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year
emded June 30, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(ii)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carred out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iti)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,

the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Rezulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

wA- [ |
Badiuddin Akber

Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 21, 2020

)
(€
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HBL Asset Managment Limited
Head Office

7th Floor

Emerald Tower

G-19 Block-5,
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Fax (02I) 35168455
www.hblasset.com
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Al-Hilal

——Shariah Advisors——

2t :
P UL )

September 23, 2020

The purpose of this report is to provide an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the Fund’s investment
and operational activities with respect to Shariah guidelines provided.

It is the core responsibility of the Management Company to operate the Fund and invest the amount
of money in such a manner which is in compliance with the Shariah principles as laid out in the Shariah
guidelines, In the capacity of the Shariah Advisor, our responsibility lies in providing Shariah guidelines
and ensuring compliance with the same by review of activities of the fund. We express our opinion
based on the review of the information, provided by the management company, to an extent where
compliance with the Shariah guidelines can be objectively verified.

Our review of Fund’s activities is limited to enquiries of the personnel of Management Company and
various documents prepared and provided by the management company.

Keeping in view the above; we certify that:

We have reviewed all the investment and operational activities of the fund including all transactions
and found them to comply with the Shariah guidelines. On the basis of information provided by the
management company, all operations of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 comply with the
provided Shariah guidelines. Therefore, it is resolved that investments in HBL Islamic Asset Allocation
Fund (HBL-IAAF) managed by HEL Asset Management Company Limited are halal and in accordance
with Shariah principles.

May Allah (SWT) bless us and forgive our mistakes and accept our sincere efforts in accomplishment
of cherished tasks and keep us away from sinful acts,

For and on behalf of Shariah Supervisory Council of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited.

uwmmua_; A —//
Ember Shariah Council Chief Executive

Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt) Limited

Suiibe BOT, 8™ Floor, Moriton Towen, Cam 16, Eheyaban-e-Saadi,
Block 03 Chitton, Karachi

Tl =82 239-35305831-37, Wb sww alhilslus com
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Unit holders of HBL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of HBL Islamic Asset Allocation
Fund ("the Fund"”), which comprise the staterment of assets and lisbilties as at Juna
30, 2020, income statement, staterment of comprehansive income, statement of
rmoverment in unit holders® fund and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund as at June 30, 2020, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {I5As]
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staternants
section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
Imternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, ware of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the currant year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our cpinion thereon, and wea do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Ve have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in
our report,
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Other Information

Managerment is responsible for the ather information, The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report for the year ended June 30,
2020 but does not include the financial staternents and our auditors’ report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In eennection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
riaterially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be maternally misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. \We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
staterments in accordance with accounting and repaorting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and for such internal control ag management determines is necessany to
anahle the praparation of financial staternents that are free from maternal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statemeants, management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
gither intands to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
altarnative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting
process,

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with |54s as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatemant when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individuglly or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

&s part of an audit in accordance with |SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We
also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of matanal misstaterment of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design
audit procadures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of exprassing an opinion on tha effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concemn basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report, However, future events
or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Ewvaluate the overall presantation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
reprasent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencias in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
ralevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them

Annual Report-2020



Annual Report-2020

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of tha
current period and are therafore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
rmatter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of deing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, tha financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
relevant provizions of the Mon-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation Rules, 2003) and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008.

Other Matter

The Financial Statemants of the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2018 were audited
by ancther firm of auditors whose report dated 27 September 2019 expressed an

unmodified opinion.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Zeeshan Rashid.

el To 111 €

Date: 24 September 2020 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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Independent Reasonable Assurance Report to the Unit Holders on the
Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles

We were engaged by the Board of Directors of HEL Asset Management Limited,
Management Company of HBL Islamic Assat Allocation Fund {the Fund), to report on
Fund’s Compliance with the Shariah principles as set out in the annexed statement
prepared by the Management Company for the year ended June 30, 2020, in the form
of an independent reasonable assurance conclusion about whether the annexed
staterment presents fairly the status of the Fund’s compliance with Shariah principles
specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor, in all
material respects.

Applicable Criteria

The criteria against which the subject matter information (the Statement] is assessed
compriga of Shariah principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by
tha Shariah Advisor.

The above criteria were evaluated for thair implermeantation on the financial staternants
of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Responsibilities of the Management Company

Tha Management Company is responsible for preparation of the annexed statement
that iz free from material misstaternent and for the information contained therein,

This responsibility includes designing, implemanting and maintaining internal controls
rolevant to the preparation of the annexed statement that is free from material
misstatament, whether due to fraud or arror. The Management Company is also
responsible to ensure that the financial arrangements and transactions having Shariah
implications enterad into by the Fund are in substance and in their legal form are in
compliance with the Shariah principles specified in the Trust Deed and guidelines
issued by the Shariah Advisor.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code
of Ethics for Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity,
professional competence and dus care, confidentiality and professional behavior,

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Contrel 1 "Quality Control for Firms
That Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintains a
comprehensive system of quality control including decumentad policies and

HPRAG Tassar bk h D, 0 Pongnibeg bom mgeitanst i Paboslin ard 5 resber b of B BPRS rnebwort of
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proceduras regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards
and applicabla legal and regulatory requirements.

Our responsibilities

Qur responsibility is 1o examing the annexed statermant and to report theraon in tha
form of an independent reasonable assurance conclusion based on the evidence
obtained. We conducted our engagement in accordance with International Standard
on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagaments Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information issued by the International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that we plan and
parfarm our proceduras to oblain reasonabla assurance about whether the annexed
staterment prasents fairly the status of the Fund's compliance with the Shariah
principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Shariah
Advisor, in all material respects.

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
nsks of matarial non-compliances with Shariah prinziples and guidelines whether due
1o fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we have considerad internal
control relevant to financial arrangemants and transactions having Shariah implications,
in order to design assurance procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purposes of expressing a conclusion as to the effectivenass of the Fund's
internal control. Reasonable assurance is less than absolute assurance.

The procedures performed included performing tests of controls for making
investments, maintaining bank accounts and transferring impure income to charity in
accordance with the Shariah principles specified in the Trust Desd and the guidalines
izsued by the Shariah Advisor,

Conclusion

Qur conclusion has bean formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters
outlinad in this raport, We baliava that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropnate to provide a basis for our conclusion,

In our opinion, the annaxed statement, for the yvear ended June 30, 2020, presents

fairly the status of tha Fund's compliance with the Shariah principles specified in the
Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Sharieh Advisor, in all material respects.

e To | UL €~

Date: 24 September 2020 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi



HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Assets
Bank balances 4 139,710 273,417
Investments 5 172,555 1,029,001
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up 6 2,481 18,232
Preliminary expenses and flotation costs 7 105 315
Advances, deposits and other receivables 8 8,133 35,821
Receivable against sale of investments - 23,653
Total assets 322,984 1,380,439
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 9 1,430 3,504
Payable to the Trustee 10 70 219
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 143 1,991
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 10,942 8,240
Payable against redemption of units - 235,617
Total liabilities 12,585 249,571
Net assets 310,399 1,130,868
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached) 310,399 1,130,868
Contingencies and commitments 13
------- Number of units -------
Number of units in issue 14 2,995,175 10,950,716
---------- Rupees ----------
Net assets value per unit 103.6330 103.2688
The annexed notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------

Income
Net realised gain / (loss) on sale of investments 29,115 (66,182)
Dividend income 10,799 26,729
Return on investments calculated using effective yield method 15 38,459 86,419
Profit on deposits with banks calculated using effective yield method 16 28,275 58,935
Net unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on revaluation of investments
at fair value through profit or loss 1,310 (61,236)
Total income 107,958 44,665
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 9.1&9.2 12,088 35,525
Remuneration of the Trustee 10.1 1,588 3,498
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 143 1,991
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 3,847 2,096
Selling and marketing expenses 9.3 3,493 8,383
Auditors' remuneration 17 370 368
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 210 210
Settlement and bank charges 468 655
Fees and subscription 231 276
Securities transaction costs 1,056 2,157
Charity expense 744 1,353
Total expenses 24,238 56,512
Net income / (loss) from operating activities 83,720 (11,847)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare fund 12.3 (1,674) -
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation 82,046 (11,847)
Taxation 18 - -
Net income / (loss) for the year after taxation 82,046 (11,847)
Allocation of net income for the year after taxation
Net income for the year after taxation 82,046
Income already paid on units redeemed (65,335)
Accounting income available for distribution 16,711
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains -
- Excluding capital gains 16,711

16,711
Earnings per unit 19
The annexed notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Note

Net income / (loss) for the year after taxation
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

82,046 (11,847)

82,046 (11,847)

Director
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note  Capital value  Undistributed Total Capital value  Undistributed Unrealised Total
income income (loss) / income

on investment

(Rupees in '000)

Net assets at the beginning of the year 1,027,854 103,014 1,130,868 2,347,630 113,632 8,297 2,469,559
Adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 9 - - - - 8,297 (8,297) -

Issuance of units 710,608 (2019: 6,659,326 units)

- Capital value 73,384 - 73,384 697,730 - - 697,730
- Element of (loss) / income (15,715) - (15,715) 7,470 - - 7,470
Total proceeds on issuance of units 57,669 - 57,669 705,200 - - 705,200

Redemption of units 8,666,149 (2019: 19,278,757 units)

- Capital value (894,943) - (894,943)| [ (2,019,928) - - (2,019,928)
- Element of loss / (income) 18,410 (65,335) (46,925) (5,048) - - (5,048)
Total payment on redemption of units (876,533) (65,335) (941,868) (2,024,976) - - (2,024,976)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 82,046 82,046 - (11,847) - (11,847)

Interim distribution for the year ended June 30, 2020: 6.25

per unit declared on June 29, 2020 - (17,626) (17,626) - (7,068) - (7,068)
Refund of capital (690) - (690) - - - -

Total distribution 14.2 (690) (17,626) (18,316) - (7,068) - (7,068)
Net assets at the end of the year 208,300 102,099 310,399 1,027,854 103,014 - 1,130,868

Undistributed income brought forward

- Realised income 164,250 116,763
- Unrealised income / (loss) (61,236) (3,131)
103,014 113,632

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains -

- Excluding capital gains 16,711
16,711

Interim distribution for the year ended June 30, 2020: 6.25

per unit declared on June 29, 2020 (17,626)

Undistributed income carried forward 102,099

Undistributed income carried forward comprises of:

- Realised income 100,789 164,250
- Unrealised income / (loss) 1,310 (61,236)
102,099 103,014
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 103.2688 104.7748
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 103.6330 103.2688

The annexed notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation 82,046 (11,847)
Adjustments
Net realised (gain) / loss on sale of investments (29,115) 66,182
Profit on deposits with banks calculated using effective yield method (28,275) (42,562)
Return on investments calculated using effective yield method (38,459) (102,774)
Dividend income (10,799) (26,729)
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 210 210
Net unrealised (gain) / loss on revaluation of investments
at fair value through profit or loss (1,310) 61,236

(25,702) (56,284)
Decrease / (Increase) in assets
Investments 886,871 217,533
Advances, deposits, other receivables and receivable against sale of investments 27,688 (31,616)

914,559 185,917
(Decrease) / Increase in liabilities
Payable to Management Company (2,074) (6,161)
Payable to Trustee (149) (125)
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (1,848) (577)
Payable against purchase of investments 2,702 (1,297)

(1,369) (8,160)
Net cash generated from operations 887,488 121,473
Profit received on bank deposits 29,462 46,228
Dividend income received 13,888 25,500
Markup received on investments 49,934 98,889
Net cash generated from operating activities 980,772 292,090
Cash flows from financing activities
Amount received on issue of units 27 80,632 705,200
Payment against redemption of units 27 (1,177,485) (1,789,359)
Cash dividend paid (17,626) (7,068)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,114,479) (1,091,227)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (133,707) (799,137)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 273,417 1,072,554
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 139,710 273,417
The annexed notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1.1

1.2

13

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated September 07, 2015,
executed between HBL Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP) as a unit trust scheme on October 28, 2015.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the
NBFC Rules through a certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management
Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The initial
public offer period was from January 07, 2016 to January 08, 2016 (both days inclusive). The units are transferable
and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The primary objective of the Fund is to provide superior returns through investments in Shari'ah Compliant Equity
Securities and Shari'ah Compliant Income / Money Market Instruments.

VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a management quality rating of AM2+" (Positive outlook) to the
Management Company while the Fund is currently not rated.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee
of the Fund.

Impact of COVID 19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHQ") declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (known as
COVID-19) as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around the world to
implement stringent measures to help control its spread, including, without limitation, quarantines,
"stay-at-home" or "shelter-in-place" orders, social-distancing mandates, travel restrictions, and closures or
reduced operations for businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other institutions. The industry, along with
global economic conditions generally, has been significantly disrupted by the pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had certain effect on the operational and
financial condition of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 due to increase in overall credit risk pertaining to
the corporate debt instruments’ portfolios of mutual funds, subdued equity market performance due to overall
slowdown in economic activity and continuity of business operations. However, to reduce the impact on the
economy and business, regulators / government across the country have introduced a host of measures on both
the fiscal and economic fronts from time to time.

The management of the Fund is closely monitoring the situation, and in response to the developments, the
management has taken action to ensure the safety of its employees and other stakeholders, and initiated a number
of initiatives.

The Management Company of the Fund expects that going forward these uncertainties would reduce as the impact
of COVID-19 on overall economy subsides and have concluded that there is no impact on current financial
statements of the Fund.
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) and
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC
Rules and the NBFC Regulations have been followed.

2.2 Standards and amendments effective during the year

There are number of new standards and amendments that are effective from July 01, 2019 however these do not
have a significant effect on the Fund's financial statements.

2.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards, that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after July 01, 2020:

- Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2020).
The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines
whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a
business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to
use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have
an impact on past financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020). The
amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended
to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance
on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Standards.
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

- On March 29, 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new
direction for IFRS in the future. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop
standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the
requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the
usual due process — this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallize.
The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of
specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new guidance
retrospectively as of January 01, 2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs.

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 is applicable for annual financial
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020. The G20 asked the Financial Stability Board (FSB) to undertake
a fundamental review of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review, the FSB published a report
setting out its recommended reforms of some major interest rate benchmarks such as IBORs. Public authorities
in many jurisdictions have since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in turn led to
uncertainty about the long-term viability of some interest rate benchmarks. In these amendments, the term
'interest rate benchmark reform' refers to the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark including its
replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, such as that resulting from the FSB's recommendations set
out in its July 2014 report 'Reforming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks' (the reform). The amendments made
provide relief from the potential effects of the uncertainty caused by the reform. A company shall apply the
exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments
are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Fund.

- Amendments to IFRS-16 - IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief
for lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after
June 01, 2020, with earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s previous requirements, lessees assess
whether rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease
modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a
revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are
applying the standard for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional
practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether
eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if they were
not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021; and
- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) effective for the annual period
beginning on or after January 01, 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify
when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as
non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the
settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those
amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.
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2.4

2.5

- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprise
the cost of fulfilling a contract, cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is
onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date
of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require
an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial
application.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for the annual
period beginning on or after January 01, 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc, are recognized in profit or loss in
accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items by applying the
measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales
proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of
property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020

- The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2022:

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to
derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is

to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 -The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2020 and are not likely to
have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain financial
assets are stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and presentation
currency.
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2.6 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements are in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Fund's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in
the application of accounting policies are given below:

a) Judgments
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in note 3.2.1(i) - regarding the classification of
investments.

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 is included in the following

notes:

- Note 3.2.1 (i) - Classification of investments
- Note 3.2.1 (iv) - Impairment of financial assets and other assets

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The management has adopted the following significant policies for the preparation of these financial statements:

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at amortised cost. These comprise
of deposits with banks and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held
for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investments for other purposes.

3.2 Financial assets

3.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at

fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs associated with these financial assets are charged to the Income Statement.
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i. Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt security is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Fund makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular,
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Fund’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about
future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Fund’s stated objectives for managing the financial assets are achieved and how
cash flows are realised.
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Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment on debt securities, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Fund considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Fund
considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Fund’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
ii. Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any profit / mark-up or dividend income, are
recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective yield method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the income
statement.

Debt securities at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest /
markup income calculated using the effective yield method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to the income statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends

are recognised as income in income statement unless the dividend

clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never

reclassified to the income statement.

m Annual Report-2020



HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

3.2.2

3.23

3.24

The fair value of financial assets are determined as follows:

a) Debt securities (other than Government securities)
Debt securities are valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP)
in accordance with the methodology prescribed by SECP for valuation of debt securities vide its Circular No. 33 of
2012 dated October 24, 2012. In the determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of
these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The circular also
specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provisioning of
non-performing debt securities.

b) Government securities

The government securities are valued on the basis of rates announced by the Financial Markets Association of
Pakistan.

c) Equity securities

The equity securities are valued on the basis of closing quoted market prices available at the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

iii. Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Fund
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

iv. Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Provision for non performing debt securities and other exposure is made in accordance with the criteria specified in
Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 issued by SECP which are recently relaxed by the SECP amid ongoing
situation of Covid19. However, the circular does not cover impairment requirements for government debt securities.
Based on the past performance management considers that there is no probability of default as in any adverse
situation State Bank of Pakistan has the right to discharge government obligations by issuance of currency notes. The
provisioning policy has been duly formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and where the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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33

34

35

3.6

3.7

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. These are initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
Unitholders' Fund

Unitholders' Fund representing the units issued by the Fund, is carried at the redemption amount representing the
investors’ right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets.

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations of
the Fund and include underwriting commission, commission to the bankers to the issue, brokerage paid to the members
of the stock exchanges and other expenses. These costs are amortised over a year of five years from the end of the initial
offering year as per the requirements set out in the Trust Deed of the Fund and NBFC regulations.

Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received, by
the distributors / Management Company during business hours, as of the close of the previous day on which the
applications were received. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of previous day plus
the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for duties and charges, if applicable.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units as of the close of the previous day. The
redemption price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of the previous day on which the applications
were received less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for transaction costs,
if applicable.

Element of income

Element of Income represents the difference between net assets value on the issuance or redemption date, as the case
may be, of units and the Net Asset Value (NAV) at the beginning of the relevant accounting period.

Element of Income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to
unit holders' fund; however, to maintain same ex-dividend net assets value of all units outstanding on accounting
date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units (refund of
capital) in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution. As per guideline
provided by MUFAP (MUFAP Guidelines consented upon by SECP) the refund of capital is made in the form of
additional units at zero price.

MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified methodology for determination of income paid on units
redeemed (income already paid) during the year under which such income is paid on gross element received and
is calculated from the latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability during the year. The income already
paid (Element of Income) on redemption of units during the year are taken separately in statement of movement
in unitholders' fund.
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3.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.9 Net assets value per unit

The net assets value per unit as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing the net
assets of the Fund by the number of units outstanding at the year end.

3.10 Taxation

The Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by
capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among the unit holders. Provided that for the purpose
of determining distribution of atleast 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, the income distributed
through bonus units shall not be taken into account.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary
differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes.
In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax losses to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. However, the Fund has not recognised any amount in respect
of taxation in these financial statements as the Fund distributes more than ninety percent of its accounting income
for the current year and intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing at least ninety
percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit
holders every year.

3.11 Revenue recognition

Realised gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date at which the
transaction takes place.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on mark to market of investments classified as Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are included in the Income Statement in the year in which they arise.

- Mark-up on deposits with banks and mark-up / return on investments in debt and government securities is
recognised using effective yield method.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

3.12 Zakat Payable
Zakat payment is the responsibility of each unit holder. Nevertheless, the Fund follows the provisions of Zakat and
Ushr Ordinance, 1980. Units held by individual resident Pakistani unit holders are subject to Zakat at 2.5% of the

par value of unit under the said Ordinance, except those exempted from Zakat. Zakat is deducted at source from
dividend or from redemption proceeds, if units are redeemed during the Zakat year before the payment of Zakat.
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3.13 Expenses

All expenses including Management fee, Trustee fee and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan fee are
recognised in the income statement on accrual basis.

3.14 Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit based on cumulative weighted average units for the period has not been disclosed as in the opinion of
the Management Company the determination of the same is not practicable.

3.15 Distributions
Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by the
SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the year.
The distribution per unit is announced based on units that were held for the entire period. The rate of distribution is
adjusted with effect of refund of capital if any based on the period of investment made during the year. Resultantly, the
rate of distribution per unit may vary depending on the period of investment.
Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the year in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company.

3.16 Other assets

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

2020 2019
4, BANK BALANCES Note ceeeeeee- (Rupees in '000)----------
Savings account 4.1 114,118 273,417
Certificate of Musharaka 4.2 25,592 -
139,710 273,417
4.1 This represents bank accounts held with different banks. Profit rates on these accounts ranges between 3.75% -
13.5% per anum (2019: 3.75% - 13% p.a.).
4.2 This represents investment in Certificate of Musharaka placed with First Habib Modaraba maturing in July 2020. It
carries profit of 11.10% per annum.
2020 2019
5. INVESTMENTS Note = —---eee- (Rupees in '000)----------
Investment by category
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 5.1 96,867 319,086
GoP ijarah sukuks 5.2 9,215 -
Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds 5.3 66,473 516,166
172,555 835,252
Financial assets at amortised cost
Commercial paper 5.4 - 193,749
172,555 1,029,001
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5.1 Listed equity securities - At fair value through profit or loss

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise.

Maturity date  AsatlJuly1, Placements Income Matured/  As at June 30, Market value as a percentage of
Note 2019 made during accrued Sold during 2020 Total investments Net Assets of
the year the year of fund fund
(Rupees in '000) (%)
K - Electric Limited Sep 2, 2020 121,627 - 2,373 124,000
K - Electric Limited Feb 28, 2020 - 46,402 3,598 50,000
K - Electric Limited Mar 19, 2020 - 69,702 5,298 75,000 - - -
K - Electric Limited 511 Aug 14,2020 - 115,544 6,364 - 121,908 12.29 145
K - Electric Limited 512 Aug 26, 2020 - 60,578 3,046 - 63,624 6.41 0.76
K - Electric Limited 513 Sep 10, 2020 - 84,213 3,490 - 87,703 8.84 1.04
K - Electric Limited 514 Oct 6, 2020 - 42,411 1,193 - 43,604 4.40 0.52
121,627 418,850 25,362 249,000 316,839 31.94 3.77
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5.1.1 The above investments include shares with market value aggregating to Rs. 35.014 million (2019: Rs. 49.362
million) which have been pledged with the National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as collateral for
guaranteeing settlement of the fund's trades in accordance with Circular No.11 dated October 23, 2007, issued by
the SECP.

5.1.2 This includes gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee company. Previously due to
amendments brought by the Finance Act, 2014 in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the bonus shares received by
the shareholders were to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5 percent was to be applied on value of
bonus shares determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax was to be
collected at source by the investee company which was considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income.
However, the Management Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual
Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), has filed a petition in Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought
in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and
void and not applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemption given to mutual funds under Clause 99 of
Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Sindh High Court has granted stay order fill
the final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has already withheld the shares (from Tax Year
2014 to Tax Year 2018) equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of
Rs. 0.2432 million at June 30, 2020 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.1914 million) and not yet deposited on CDC account of
department of Income tax while during the year no tax on bonus shares is being withheld by the investee
company(s) due to the amendments brought by the Finance Act, 2018 in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which
excluded the the requirement of tax on bonus shares. Management is of the view that the decision will be in favor
of the asset management company and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its
investments at year end.

5.2 Investment in Government Securities - GOP ljarah Sukuk - At fair value through profit or loss
é
H
5.2.1 These carry mark-up at the rate of 6.63% per annum receivable semi-annually in arrears, maturing in April 2025.
5.3 Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk Bonds - At fair value through profit or loss
Name of the Investee Company As at July 01, 2019 Purchased Sold / matured  As atJune 30, Amortised Cost Market value as Market value as percentage of
during the year  during the year 2020 asatJune 30, atJune 30, 2020 Total Net Assets
2020 investments
(Number of certificates) —--—-(Rupees in'000)-—---  ceeeeoeeeeeee Yommrmemrmmanaen
Commercial Banks
Dubai Islamic Bank 124 - 124
124 - 124
Investment Company
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 2,110 143 1,910 343 26,010 26,401 15.30 8.51
2,110 143 1,910 343 26,010 26,401 15.30 8.51
Power Generation & Distribution
Hub Power Company Limited 30,000 - 30,000
30,000 - 30,000
Miscellaneous
International Brands Limited 100 - - 100 6,899 7,072 4.10 2.28
Agha Steel Industries Limited 33 - - 33 33,000 33,000 19.12 10.63
133 - - 133 39,899 40,072 23.22 12.91
Total 32,367 143 32,034 476 65,909 66,473 38.52 21.42
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5.4

5.5

7.1

Significant terms and conditions of Sukuk bonds outstanding as at June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Name of Security Remaining Mark-up rate (per annum) Date of Issue Maturity Date
Principal (per
Sukeuk)
Agha Steel Industries Limited 1,000,000 3 months KIBOR +0.8% 9-Oct-18 09-Oct-24
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 70,000 3 month KIBOR + 1.00 % 16-Nov-17 16-Nov-22
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 80,000 3 month KIBOR + 1.00 % 01-Mar-18 01-Mar-23
International Brands Limited 71,438 3 months KIBOR + 0.50% 15-Nov-17 15-Nov-21

Commercial papers - at amortised cost

Note Maturity date Asatlulyl, Placements made Income accrued Matured /Sold As at June 30, Market value as a percentage of
2019 during the year during the year 2020 Total Net Assets of
investments of fund
fund
(Rupees in '000). (%)

Hascol Petroleum Limited July 15, 2019 101,516 - 484 102,000
K - Electric Limited September 2, 2019 92,233 - 1,853 94,086
K - Electric Limited February 28, 2020 - 27,841 1,425 29,266
TPL Corporation Limited January 11, 2020 - 60,210 2,648 62,858
193,749 88,051 6,410 288,210

Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss'

2020 2019
Note ~  —--mme- (Rupees in '000)----------

Market value of investments 172,555 835,252
Less: cost / carrying value of investments (171,247) (896,488)

1,308 (61,236)
DIVIDEND RECEIVABLE AND ACCRUED MARK-UP
Dividend receivable 16 3,105
Mark-up accrued on deposits with banks 1,200 2,387
Mark-up accrued on Sukuk Certificate - Listed 1,158 12,740
Mark-up accrued on GOP ljarah Sukuk 107 -

2,481 18,232
PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS
Opening balance 315 525
Less: amortised during the year (210) (210)
Closing balance 105 315

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of
operations of the Fund and are being amortised over a year of five years commencing from the end of the initial
offering year as per the requirements set out in the Trust Deed of the Fund and NBFC regulations.
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2020 2019
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
8. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposit with National Clearing Company of
Pakistan Limited 8.1 2,500 2,500
Security deposit with Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited 100 100
Advance against TFCs and commercial paper 5,350 33,221
Advance Tax 8.2 183 -
8,133 35,821
8.1 This represents advances placed with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) against transactions
related to TFCs.
8.2 This pertains to tax erroneously collected by bank on markup on bank deposits which will be claimed on filing of
tax return of the Fund.
9. PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
2020 2019
Note ~  —mmmee- (Rupees in '000)----------
In respect of:
Management fee 9.1 464 1,677
Sindh Sales Tax on management fee 9.2 60 218
Sales load payable 58 -
Selling and marketing expenses payable 9.3 616 1,497
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 232 112
1,430 3,504
9.1 Under the provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies & Notified Entities Regulations 2008, the

Management Company of the Fund is entitled to a remuneration from the net assets of the Fund. However, SECP
through S.R.0. 639 (1)/2019 dated June 20, 2019 has made an amendment in NBFC regulation no. 61, in which
limits over management fee have been removed and the asset management company have been directed to
disclose in the Offering document the maximum rate of management fee chargeable to Collective Investment
Scheme within allowed expense ratio limit. Further, the asset management company may charge variable fee or
fixed fee or the combination of both which shall not exceed the limit disclosed in the Offering Document and such
actual rate shall be disclosed in Fund manager report. The management fee expense charged by the asset
management company at the rate of 1.5% per annum (2019: 1.5% per annum) during the year of average net assets
of the Fund.

9.2 The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2019: 13%) on the remuneration of the
Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011 effective from July 01, 2017.

9.3 SECP through its S.R.0. 639 (1)/2019 dated June 20, 2019 has made an amendment in NBFC regulation No. 60 (3)
point (s) and (v), in which limits to allocate fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting, operation,
valuation services and selling and marketing expenses had been removed. Accordingly, the selling and marketing
expense charged by the fund varried between 0.4% to 0.65% per annum (2019: 0.4% per annum) and allocation of
expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting, operation, valuation services varried between 0.1% to 0.75%
per annum (2019: 0.1% per annum) of net assets of the Fund.
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10.

10.1

10.2

11.

12,

121

2020 2019
Note =~ —-—-—-—- (Rupees in '000)----------
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Trustee's remuneration 10.1 62 194
Sindh Sales Tax 10.2 8 25
70 219

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the
Trust Deed as per the tariff specified there in, based on the daily Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund.

Based on the Trust Deed, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund as at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

The trustee remuneration shall consist of reimbursement of actual custodial expenses / charges plus the following
tariff:

Net assets Tariff per annum
Up to Rs. 1,000 million 0.2% p.a. of NAV
Exceeding Rs. 1,000 million Rs. 2 million plus 0.10% p.a. of NAV

exceeding Rs. 1,000 million

The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% on the remuneration of Trustee
through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011, effective from July 1, 2016.

PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
SECP vide S.R.0 685 (1)/2019 dated June 28, 2019 has revised rate of annual fee at 0.02% of net assets is applicable

on all categories of Collective Investment schemes from 01 July 2019, the Fund has charged SECP Fee accordingly.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------

Auditors' remuneration payable 298 276
Charity payable 121 744 1,353
Federal Excise Duty 12.2 1,063 1,063
Withholding tax payable 2,092 4
Payable to brokers 42 306
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.3 6,341 4,667
Dividend payable 25 25
Payable to NCCPL 26 35
Payable to Shariah advisor 17 17
Other payable 294 494

10,942 8,240

This represents amount attributable to income earned from shariah non-compliant avenues, earmarked for
onward distribution as charity in accordance with the instructions of the Shariah Advisor.
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12.2 As per the requirement of Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration of the
Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the view that
since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED may result in double taxation,
which does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed by the Mutual Fund Association
of Pakistan (MUFAP) with the Sindh High Court (SHC) on September 04, 2013.

While disposing the above petition through order dated June 30, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be ultra
vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities subsequently filed
appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the decision.

Further, the Finance Act 2016, also introduced an amendment to the Federal Excise Act, 2015, whereby FED was
withdrawn on services of different industries including Non-Banking Financial Institutions, which are already subject to
provisional sales tax.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company has made a provision on
FED on remuneration of the Management Company since launch of the fund, aggregating to Rs. 1.063 million . Had the
provision not been made, the Net Asset Value per unit as on June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Rs. 0.3548 (June
30, 2019: Rs. 0.0971).

12.3 The Finance Act, 2008 introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) Ordinance, 1971 whereby the
definition of industrial establishment was extended. The amendments were challenged at various levels and conflicting
judgments were rendered by the Lahore High Court, Sindh High Court and Peshawar High Court. The Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its judgment dated November 10, 2016, has upheld the view of Lahore High Court and
decided that WWF is not a tax and hence the amendments introduced through Finance Act, 2008 are ultra-vires to the
Constitution. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed Civil Review Petitions in respect of above judgment with the prayer
that the judgment dated November 10, 2016 passed in the Civil Appeal may kindly be reviewed in the interest of justice.

Furthermore, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) had written to few mutual funds in January 2016 to register and pay Sindh
Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) for the accounting year closing on or after December 31, 2013. MUFAP reviewed the
issue and based on an opinion decided that SWWF is not applicable on mutual funds as they are not financial institutions
as required by SWWEF Act, 2014. MUFAP wrote to SRB that mutual funds are not establishments and are pass through
vehicles hence, they do not have any worker and no SWWF is payable by them. SRB responded back that as mutual funds
are included in definition of financial institutions in the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance) Ordinance, 2001,
therefore SWWEF is applicable on mutual funds. MUFAP has taken up this matter before the Sindh Finance Ministry to
exclude mutual funds from SWWF.

In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of WWF and SWWF on CISs / mutual funds and
considering the legal opinion obtained on these matters, MUFAP has recommended the following to all its members on
January 12, 2017:

- based on legal opinion, the entire provision against the Federal WWF held by the CISs till June 30, 2015, be reversed
onJanuary 12, 2017; and

- the provision in respect of Sindh WWF should be made on January 12, 2017 with effect from the date of enactment
of the Sindh WWF Act, 2014 (i.e. starting from May 21, 2015).

The above decisions were communicated to the SECP and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on January 12, 2017 and
the SECP vide its letter dated February 01, 2017 has advised MUFAP that the adjustments relating to the above
should be prospective and supported by adequate disclosures in the financial statements of the CISs / mutual
funds. Accordingly, Managment started recording a provision for SWWF with effective from July 01, 2011.
Thereafter, the provision for SWWEF is being made on a daily basis. Had the SWWF not been provided, the NAV per
unit would have been higher by Rs. 2.1169 (2019: Rs. 0.4300) per unit respectively.
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13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Other than already disclosed in the financial statement , there are no contingencies and commitments as at June

30, 2020.
14. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE
2020 2019
Note = —--meeeee (Rupees in '000)----------
Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 10,950,716 23,570,147
Units issued during the year 14.1 710,608 6,659,326
Units redeemed during the year (8,666,149) (19,278,757)
Total units in issue at the end of the year 2,995,175 10,950,716
14.1 This includes 6,678 units issued at zero value as refund of capital.
14.2 The Management Company on June 29, 2020 declared final distribution of Rs. 6.2500 per unit (for full year) for the

year ended June 30, 2020. The aggregate cash distribution amounted to Rs. 17.626 million was in addition to
refund of capital / element of income by issuing 6,678 additional units to eligible unitholders at zero price as per
MUFAP guidelines (duly consented upon by SECP) included in units issued above.

15. MARK-UP / RETURN ON INVESTMENTS
2020 2019
Note = —--meeeee (Rupees in '000)----------
Sukuk certificates 31,190 68,254
Commercial Paper 6,436 18,165
GoP ljarah Sukuks 833 -
38,459 86,419
16. MARK-UP ON DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
Mark-up on savings accounts 28,275 58,935
17. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Annual audit fee 252 252
Fee for half yearly review 60 55
Shariah compliance audit fee 5 5
Other certifications and out of pocket expenses 53 56
370 368
18. TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per Clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced
by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt
from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under Clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

19. EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of management determination of cumulative
weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
2020
At Amortised At fair value At fair value Total
Cost through other through profit
comprehensive or loss
income
(Rupees in '000)
Financial Assets
Bank balances 139,710 - - 139,710
Investments - - 172,555 172,555
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up 2,481 - - 2,481
Advances, deposits and other receivables 8,133 - - 8,133
150,324 - 172,555 322,879
2020
At Amortised At fair value At fair value Total
Cost through other through profit
comprehensive or loss
income
(Rupees in '000)
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company 1,430 - - 1,430
Payable to Trustee 70 - - 70
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,446 - - 1,446
2,946 - - 2,946
2019
At Amortised At fair value At fair value Total
Cost through other through profit
comprehensive or loss
income
(Rupees in '000)
Financial Assets
Bank balances 273,417 - - 273,417
Investments 193,749 - 835,252 1,029,001
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up 18,232 - - 18,232
Advances, deposits and other receivables 33,221 - - 33,221
518,619 - 835,252 1,353,871
2019
At Amortised At fair value At fair value Total
Cost through other through profit
comprehensive or loss
income
(Rupees in '000)
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company 3,286 - - 3,286
Payable to Trustee 194 - - 194
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,506 - - 2,506
5,986 - - 5,986
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21.

21.1

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank
Limited being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund,
other collective investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the

Management Company and the Trustee and unit holders holding ten percent or more units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted terms determined
in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the
provisions of the NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in
financial statements are as follows:

Transactions during the year 2020 2019

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee 10,697 31,438
Sindh Sales Tax 1,391 4,087
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 3,847 2,096
Selling and marketing expenses 3,493 8,383

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Issue of units: 84,906 (2019: 3,029,696) 8,775 320,890
Redemption of units: 2,973,424 (2019 4,759,787) 333,775 495,602
Bank charges paid 21 44
Profit on bank deposits earned 1,943 300

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration 1,588 3,498
CDC charges 55 101

HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees Provident Fund
Issue of units: 1,578 (2019: 38) 163 4
Redemption of units: 789 (2019: Nil) 82 -

HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees Gratuity Fund
Issue of units: 547 (2019: 13) 57 1
Redemption of units: 273 (2019: Nil) 28 -

HBL Islamic Income Fund
Sale of AGP Limited Sukuks: Nil - 19,512

HBL Cash Fund
Sale of The HUB Power Company Limited Sukuks: 20,000 units (2019: Nil) 101,404 -
Sale of K - Electric Limited Commercial Papers: 30 units (2019: Nil) 29,188 -
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2020 2019

HBL Income Fund
Sale of TPL Corporation Limited Commercial Papers: 20 units (2019: Nil) 19,844 -

Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited
Sale of GoP ljarah Sukuk: 655 units (2019: Nil) 65,500 -

HBL Growth Fund

Sale of Oil & Gas Development Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 20,000) - 2,834
Sale of Pakistan Petrolium Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 27,000) - 4,824
Sale of Engro Polymer Chemical Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 65,000) - 2,343
Sale of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 20,000) - 1,552
Sale of Engro Fertilizers Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 25,000) - 1,793
Sale of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 8,000) - 1,680
Sale of Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 50,000) - 687
Sale of Lucky Cement Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 6,000) - 2,601
Sale of Kohat Cement Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 10,000) - 879
Sale of Hub Power Company Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 35,000) - 2,728

HBL Investment Fund

Sale of Oil & Gas Development Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 10,000) - 1,417
Sale of Engro Polymer Chemical Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 35,000) - 1,261
Sale of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 25,000) - 970
Sale of Engro Fertilizers Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 15,000) - 1,076
Sale of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 12,000) - 2,520
Sale of Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 30,000) - 412
Sale of Lucky Cement Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 4,000) - 1,734
Sale of Kohat Cement Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 8,000) - 703
Sale of Hub Power Company Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 15,000) - 1,169
HBL Energy Fund

Sale of Pakistan Petrolium Limited Shares: Nil (2019: 23,000) - 4,110

SIUT Trust - Connected Person due to holding more than 10% units
Issue of units: Nil (2019: 8,064) - 840
Redemption of units: 2,806,411 (2019: Nil) 317,986 -

Executives and their relatives

Issue of units: Nil (2019: 951) - 100
Redemption of units: Nil (2019: 951) - 101
21.2 Amounts outstanding as at year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee 464 1,677
Sindh Sales Tax 60 218
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services 232 112
Charging of selling and marketing expenses 616 1,497
58 -

Sale load payable
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2020 2019

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Investment held in the Fund: 1,404,025 units (2019: 4,292,544 units) 145,503 443,286
Bank balances 101,034 4,775
Profit receivable on deposits with banks 1,096 16
HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees Gratuity Fund - Associate
Investment held in the Fund: 4,795 units (2019: 4,521 units) 497 467
HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees Provident Fund - Associate
Investment held in the Fund: 13,840 units (2019: 13,051 units) 1,434 1,348
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable 62 194
Sindh Sales Tax 8 25
Security deposit 100 100
SIUT Trust - Connected Person due to holding more than 10% units
Investment held in the Fund: Nil (2019: 2,806,411 units) - 289,815
22. INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Details of members of the investment committee of the Fund are as follows:
Name Designation Experience in  Qualification
years
1 Mr. Mir Adil Rashid Chief Executive Officer 21 BSc.
2 Mr. Adeel Abdul Wahab Head of Equities / Fund Manager 12 ACCA
3 Mr. Muhammad Wamiq Sakrani  Acting Head of Fixed Income / Fund Manager 10 MBA
4 Mr. Raza Inam Acting Head of Research 7 Bsc. (Hons), CFA
5  Mr. Karim Khawaja Head of Risk 17 MBA, CMA

* They are Joint Fund Managers of all other HBL Funds managed by Management company.
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23. PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
At fair value At
through profit or
loss
(Rup
Assets
Commercial paper -
Sukuk Certificates 675,000
Bank balances -
Accrued mark-up on banks -
Deposit -
675,000
At fair value At
through profit or
loss
24 DIRECTORS' MEETING ATTENDANCE

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on August 29, 2019, October 29, 2019, February 13, 2020,
March 02, 2020, and April 29, 2020 respectively. Information in respect of the attendance by the Directors in
the meetings is given below:

S.No. Name of Director Number of meetings Meetings not attended
Held Attended Leave granted
1 Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan* 1 1 - -
2 Mr. Mir Adil Rashid** 4 4 - -
3 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 5 5 - -
4 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 5 5 - -
5 Mr. Rizwan Haider 5 5 - -
6 Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi 5 5 - -
7 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 5 5 - -
8 Mr. Aamir Hasan Irshad**** 5 5 - -
9 Mr. Atif Aslam Bajwa*** 2 2 - -

* Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan resigned as CEO on September 15, 2019.

** Mr. Mir Adil Rashid appointed as CEO on September 16, 2019.

*** Mr. Atif Aslam Bajwa appointed as of October 29, 2019, and resigned on February 24, 2020.
**** Resigned on May 14, 2020.
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25.

25.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

25.1 The Fund’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Unit holders’ value. Risk is inherent in the
Fund’s activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be
performed based on limits established by the Management Company, Fund's constitutive documents and the regula-
tions and directives of the SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Fund as well
as the level of the risk that Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Management Company supervises
the overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to
discharge its obligations. The Fund’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accor-
dance with the internal guidelines, offering document and regulatory requirements.

Management of credit risk

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment guidelines approved by the
Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of NBFC rules and regulations and guidelines given by
SECP from time to time.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the Management Company of the Fund in the following manner:

- The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in instruments and bank deposits that have a minimum
"AA-" from a credit rating agency duly approved by the SECP.

- Investment transactions are carried out with large number of brokers, whose credit rating is taken into account so as
to minimize the risk of default and transactions are settled or paid for only upon deliveries.

- The risk of counter party exposure due to failed trade causing a loss to the Fund is mitigated by a periodic review of
trade reports, credit ratings and financial statements on a regular basis.

- Cashis held only with reputable banks (including related party).

The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:
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Rating Rating 2020 2019
Bank balances by rating category Agency = e (Rupees in '000)----------
Habib Bank Limited VIS AAA 100,351 4,745
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited VIS AA 13,304 267,430
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA A+ 245 188
Bank Al - Habib Limited PACRA AA+ 22 925
Askari Bank Limited PACRA AA+ 18 12
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA AA- 85 14
Albaraka Bank Pakistan Limited PACRA A 11 10
Summit Bank Limited VIS N/A 11 10
Allied Bank Limited PACRA AAA 27 26
MIB Bank Limited PACRA A 44 57
114,118 273,417

2020 2019
Certificate of Musharaka and Sukuk certificates by rating category (Rupees in '000)----------
AA+ 25,592 -
AA 33,473 359,166
AA- - 124,000
A 33,000 33,000

92,065 516,166
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up 2,481 18,232
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2,600 2,600

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counter-
parties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure. The Fund’s
portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse creditworthy
counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

25.3 Liquidity risk

‘Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its finan-
cial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Fund’s offering document provides
for the daily creation and cancellation of units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unit
holder's redemptions at any time. The Fund manages the liquidity risk by maintaining maturities of financial liabili-
ties and investing a major portion of the Fund’s assets in highly liquid financial assets. The Fund’s investments are
considered to be readily realisable as they are all invested in equity securities, government securities, sukuk certifi-
cate and saving accounts. The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputation.

In accordance with the risk management policy of the Fund, the Fund manager monitors the liquidity position on
a daily basis, which is reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on a quarterly basis.
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25.4

In accordance with regulation 58 (1)(k) of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Fund has the ability to borrow funds
for meeting the redemption requests, with the approval of the Trustee, for a period not exceeding three months
to the extent of fifteen percent of the net assets. However, no such borrowing has been obtained during the year
ended June 30, 2020.

Further, the Fund is also allowed in accordance with regulation 57 (10) of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, to defer
redemption requests to the next dealing day, had such requests exceed ten percent of the total number of units
in issue.

In addition to unit holders' fund, the analysis below summarizes the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant
maturity grouping as at June 30:

2020
v -
aturlt.y Up to More than
Three Six One Total
one year
months months year

Financial Liabilities (Rupees in '000)
Payable to Management Company 1,430 - - - 1,430
Payable to Trustee 70 - - - 70
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,446 - - - 1,446

2,946 - - - 2,946
Unit holders' fund 310,399 - - - 310,399

2019
Maturity Up t
Sk y pto More than
Three Six One Total
one year
months months year

Financial Liabilities (Rupees in '000)
Payable to Management Company 3,286 - - - 3,286
Payable to Trustee 194 - - - 194
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,506 - - - 2,506

5,986 - - - 5,986
Unit holders' fund 1,130,868 - - - 1,130,868

The above mentioned financial liabilities do not carry any mark-up.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates and debt security prices.

i) Profit rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in the market profit rates. The Fund's profit rate is monitored on a quarterly basis by the board of

directors.

As at 30 June 2020, the balances that may be exposed to profit rate risk are as follows:
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Variable rate instruments

Bank balances 114,118 273,417
Investments - At fair value through profit or loss 75,688 835,252
189,806 1,108,669

Fixed rate instrument

Certificate of Musharaka 25,592 -
Investments - At Amortised cost - 193,749
25,592 193,749
a) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

As at June 30, 2020, the Fund hold GoP ljarah Sukuk amounting to Rs. 9,215 million having sensitivity as follows:

Change in basis points

100 (2,561) -
(100) (1,539) -
b) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2020, the Fund hold's Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds which are classified as 'fair through
profit or loss', exposing the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis
points increase / decrease in mark-up rates on June 30, 2020, with all other variables held constant, the impact on
the net assets and total comprehensive income for the year is as follows:

Total Exposure

Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds 66,473 516,166

Effect on total
comprehensive income
and net assets

Change in basis points - Fair value interest rate risk
100 2,386 -

(100) 4,303 -

Change in basis points - Cash flow interest rate risk
100 101 789

(100) (101) (789)
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The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio, KIBOR rates and rates announced by the Financial Market
Association are expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2020, is
not necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates.

Yield / profit rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractu-
al repricing or maturity date and for off balance sheet instruments is based on settlement date.

2020
Maturity Up to More than Not exposed Total
Mark-up Three Six One one year to profit rate
rate months months year risk
(%)
(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 6-13.5 114,118 - - - - 114,118
Certificate of Musharaka 111 25,592 - - - - 25,592
Investments classified as:
'At fair value through Profit or Loss'
- Listed Equity securities - - - - 96,867 96,867
- Sukuk Certificates KIBOR - - - 66,473 - 66,473
3M-6M
0.5-1.0
- GoP ljarah Sukuks - - - - 9,215 9,215
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up - - - - 2,481 2,481
Advances, deposits and other receivables - - - - 8,133 8,133
Total financial assets 139,710 - - 66,473 116,696 322,879
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company - - - - 1,430 1,430
Payable to Trustee - - - - 70 70
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - - 1,446 1,446
Total financial liabilities - - - - 2,946 2,946
On-balance sheet gap 139,710 - - 66,473 113,750 319,933

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - - -

Off-balance sheet gap - - - - - -
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2019
Maturity Up to More than Not exposed Total
Mark-up Three Six One one year to profit rate
rate months months year risk

(%)

(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets
Bank balances 3.75-13 273,417 - - - - 273,417
Certificate of Musharaka - - - - - -
Investments classified as:

'At fair value through Profit or Loss'

- Listed Equity securities - - - - 319,086 319,086
- Sukuk Certificates KIBOR - 150,000 366,166 - - 516,166
3M-6M
0.5-1.0
'At amortised cost'

- Commercial paper 193,749 - - - - 193,749
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up - - - - 18,232 18,232
Advances, deposits and other receivables - - - - 33,221 33,221
Total financial assets 467,166 150,000 366,166 - 370,539 1,353,871
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company - - - - 3,286 3,286
Payable to Trustee - - - - 194 194
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - - 2,506 2,506
Total financial liabilities - - - - 5,986 5,986
On-balance sheet gap 467,166 150,000 366,166 - 364,553 1,347,885

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - - -

Off-balance sheet gap - - - - R -

ii) Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign
currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk.

i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of volatility in prices of financial instruments resulting from their dependence on market
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand for financial instruments and liquidity in the market. The
value of investments may fluctuate due to change in business cycles affecting the business of the Fund in which
the investment is made, change in business circumstances of the Fund, industry environment and / or the
economy in general. The Fund is not exposed to the risk as its constitutive documents prohibit it from investing
in equity securities.

25.5 Unit holders' fund risk management (Capital risk management)

The Fund's objective when managing unit holders' funds is to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide optimum returns to its unit holders and to ensure reasonable safety of
capital. The Fund manages its investment portfolio and other assets by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in market conditions. Under the NBFC regulations 2008, the minimum size
of an open end scheme shall be one hundred million rupees at all the times during the life of the scheme. The Fund
size depends on the issuance and redemption of units.
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

In order to maintain or adjust the unit holders' Fund structure, the Fund's policy is to perform the following:

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjusts the amount of
distributions the Fund pays to unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund, which include the ability to
restrict redemptions and require certain minimum holdings and issuance; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and Chief Executive of the management company
critically track the movement of 'Assets under Management'. The Board of Directors is updated about the Fund
yield and movement of NAV and total fund size at the end of each quarter.

26. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Far value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the
qguoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices used for financial
assets held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent

actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

The Fund's accounting policy on fair value measurements of investments is discussed in note 3.2 to these financial
statements.

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities traded.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurement using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(i.e. unobservable inputs).
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HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

2020
Number of Units Investment Percen
unit holders held amount investr
(Rupees in '000)

Individuals 2,309 14,803,696 1,497,755
Associated company 1 2,240,000 226,631
Trust 7 786,708 79,595
Insurance Companies 6 900,046 91,062
Retirement funds 15 721,690 73,017
Banks / DFIs 2 5,993,720 606,411
Others 23 57,793,929 5,847,265
2,363 83,239,789 8,421,736
2019
Number of unit Units Investment Percen
holders held amount investr

(Rupees in '000)

Individuals 1,802 6,292,045 635,476
Director 1 110 11
Associated company 2 2,241,746 226,409
Trust 5 982,651 99,245
Insurance Companies 3 308,817 31,190
Retirement funds 9 164,356 16,599
Banks / DFIs 1 9 1
Others 14 409,755 41,385

1,837 10,399,489 1,050,316

26.1 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2:

Investments in Market Treasury Bills are valued on the basis of the PKRVs announced by the Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology prescribed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

26.2 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short
term in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair
value.

26.3 Net assets attributable to unitholders. The Fund routinely redeems and issues the units at the amount equal to the

proportionate share of net assets of the Fund at the time of redemption, calculated on a basis consistent with that
used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net assets attributable to unitholders
approximates their fair value. The units are categorized into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Annual Report-2020



HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

27. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING OUT OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receivable Payable against Total
against redemption
sale of units of units
---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------
Opening balance as at July 1, 2019 23,653 235,617 259,270
Receivable against issuance of units 56,979 - 56,979
Payable against redemption of units - 941,868 941,868
56,979 941,868 998,847
Amount received on issuance of units (80,632) - (80,632)
Amount paid on redemption of units - (1,177,485) (1,177,485)
(80,632) (1,177,485) (1,258,117)

Closing balance as at June 30, 2020 - - R

28. NON COMPLIANT INVESTMENTS DISCLOSURE
Value of .
X Limit Exposure
investment
Type of investment / exposure (Rupees in '000) (%)
Shariah Compliant Listed Equity securities 96,867 30.00 31.21
28.1 These are the non compliances with respect to investments policy and restrictions as mentioned in the offering document
of the Fund.
29. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide directive no. SCD/PRDD/Direction/18/2016 dated July
20, 2016, requires that Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) shall disclose Total Expense Ratio (TER) in the financial
statements of CIS / the Fund. As per S.R.0 639 (1)/2019, the limit towards expense ratio has been revised from 4.00% to
4.50% for Equity, Balanced, Asset Allocation and Capital protected (dynamic asset allocation-direct exposure) schemes.
The total expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 is 3.53% (2019: 2.63%) which includes 0.48% (2019:
0.31%) representing Government Levy and SECP fee.

30. CORESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better presentation the
effect of which is not material

31. GENERAL
31.1 Date of authorisation for issue

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Board of Directors of the Management Company on Auguat 27,

2020.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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NAME OF FUND IHBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

NAME OF TRUSTEE Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
NAME OF AUDITORS Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants
NAME OF SHARIAH ADVISORS Al - Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited

NAME OF BANKERS Habib Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Bank Al Baraka Limited
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT —

HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
As at June 30, 2020

Type and Category of Fund
Open end Equity Fund
Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve long term capital growth by investing mainly in Shariah Complaint equity
securities.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark
The Fund’s benchmark is KMI-30 Index.

The comparison of the fund return with benchmark is given below:

Return of Fund

m HEL-I5F vs. Benchmark

Jun-20

0.36%

-0.32%

30.00%
May-20 -0.66% -0.64% —
Apr-20 20.09% 23.06% '
Mar-20 -23.31% -24.20% 10.00%
Feb-20 -9.31% -11.39% -
Jan-20 2.03% 1.58%

Dec-19 5.24% 5.29% ~10.00%
Nov-19 12.48% 12.31% -20.00%
Oct-19 8.88% 9.17% 2000
Sep-19 11.00% 10.65% ’
Aug-19 -9.80% -8.59% =——Rturn of HBLISF  e==—=Return of Benchmark
Jul-19 -6.10% -6.56%

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

During the year under review, the Fund increased its exposure in equity from 89% of total assets as on June 30, 2019 to 93%
of total assets as on June 2020. Furthermore, sector wise allocation was continuously reviewed and revisited throughout the
year to ensure optimum return to the investors. Accordingly, exposure in cements and pharmaceuticals was increased, while
exposure in fertilizers and oil & gas exploration companies was decreased.

Asset Allocation

Ason Jun 2020 others AsonJun 2019  others

Including Cash, B46% |ncluding
Cash,6.02% —Receivables —Recenables,
,0.71% Others, 258%

30.2%

Others, ___Cement, SR ! __ Cement,
285% 14.02% 5.00%
~_Chemical,
_Chemical, 4.86%
T.70%

. BT HESE, _—— “~_Fertilzer,

W armac

o . 1581%
Pharmacewt_ . Fertilizer, 150y
icals, 8.45% 10.58%

Oil & Gas 0il & Gas
~ T ———Exploration, Exploration,——
24.03% 31.76%
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Significant Changes in Asset Allocation during the Year

Following table shows comparison of sector wise allocation of equity investments of Fund as on June 30, 2020 and June 30,

2019:
Sector Name As on Jun 2020 As on Jun 2019
Cash 6.02% 8.46%
Others Including Receivables 0.71% 2.58%
Cement 14.02% 5.00%
Chemical 7.70% 4.66%
Fertilizer 10.58% 15.81%
Oil & Gas Exploration 24.03% 31.76%
Pharmaceuticals 8.45% 1.52%
Others 28.5% 30.2%
Total 100.00%06 100.00%06

Fund Performance

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 32.25 million and Rs. 5.84 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 93.6583 per unit as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 91.2924 per
unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 0.32 per unit, thereby giving a return of 2.95% during the year,
against the benchmark return (KMI 30 Index) of 1.62%. The size of Fund was Rs. 0.56 billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared
to Rs. 0.64 billion at the start of the year.

Review of Market invested in
The equity markets’ performance during FY20 can be described as a tale of two halves.

1HFY20 was dominated by continued reforms in light of the Extended Fund Facility from the IMF; market determined
exchange rate mechanism, high inflation, regular adjustments in energy tariffs and rising interest rates. However, investor
sentiment subsequently improved on account of 1) progress on FATF front, 2) reduction in current account deficit, 3) stability
in PKR/USD parity, and 4) declining long-term yields in the secondary market due to expectation of lower future inflation
outlook. Hence the benchmark KMI30 index increased by 22% during 1HFY20 to close at 66,032 points on December 31, 2019.

2HFY20 continued with the same momentum as the benchmark KMI30 index made a high of 70,790 on January 10, 2020.
However, the positive momentum was broken with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in lockdowns globally
and in Pakistan. This led to a steep decline in the KMI30 index as it fell to a low of 41,365 points on March 26, 2020. The local
bourse saw a dip, in line with global markets, driven by expectations of hampered economic activity. International Qil prices
witnessed new lows as global storages overflowed. Global Trade and shipping also witnessed huge downturns. Domestic
companies with already weak business outlook due to ongoing economic environment and high leverage witnessed further
uncertainty.

The market rebounded in April 2020 where despite a complete lockdown and uncertainty surrounding its potential timeline
and impact, the KMI30 witnessed a sharp uptick on the back of unexpectedly aggressive monetary easing by the SBP
(cumulative 625bps reduction in the Policy Rate) , approval of Rapid Financing Instrument of USD 1.4bn by the IMF,
announcement of fiscal stimulus measures by the GoP to reduce the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the economy and
Government’s decision to ease off lockdown restrictions for certain industries. The KMI30 index closed the year at 54,995
points (up 1.62%).

In terms of flows, foreign investors remained net sellers with an outflow of USD 284mn (compared to outflow of USD 356mm
in FY19).

Pakistan equities are likely to continue this momentum as cheaper valuation (trading at a Forward P/E of 6.8x against peer

average 16.8x) and slowdown in covid-19 cases will lead to improvement in Investor sentiment. Market participants would
closely follow trend of coronavirus cases and the ensuing macro numbers. Cyclical sectors (Cement, Steel, OMCs) are expected
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to perform well due to decline in interest rates and pick-up in economic activity. Textile sector is also expected to garner
investor’s attention due to huge export potential. Technology sector will also remain in limelight due to increased
digitalization post covid-19 pandemic. We will maintain our strategic focus towards "bottom-up" approach and align exposure

towards stocks with strong earnings potential.

Distribution

The Board of Directors approved Cash distribution of up to Rs. 0.32 Per unit to the unit holders for the year ended June 30,

2020.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From — To No. of Unit Holders Total No. of Units Held
(No. of units)
1-100 136 4,845
101 — 500 66 16,038
501 — 1,000 30 21,484
100,1 — 10,000 95 328,321
10,001 — 100,000 42 1,233,816
100,001 — 500,000 9 1,782,138
500,001 — 1,000,000 - -
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 1 2,539,414
5,000,001 and above - -
Total 379 5,925,966
Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders

Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE -

HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Net assets at the period end(Rs'000) 555,017 635,161 2,541,942 1,043,544 784,634 783,608
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - RUPEES
Redemption 93.6585 91.2924 111.8276 130.0225 128.0108 128.2681
Offer 95.7752 93.3556 111.8276 132.9611 131.3964 131.6903
OFFER / REDEMPTION DURING THE PERIOD - RUPEES
Highest offer price per unit 119.9859 94.186 111.4748 184.8553 137.7412 154.1646
Lowest offer price per unit 74.3357 93.0325 113.4852 131.9828 111.9416 126.7402
Highest redemption price per unit 117.3341 92.1044 109.0111 180.7699 134.1921 150.1584
Lowest redemption price per unit 72.6928 90.9764 110.9771 129.0659 109.0573 123.4188
RETURN (%)
Total return 2.95% -18.36% -13.99% 24.51% 0.98% 11.63%
Income distribution 0.32% 0.00% 0.00% 29.00% 1.50% 19.00%
Capital growth 2.63% -18.36% -13.99% -4.49% -0.52% -7.37%
DISTRIBUTION
Final dividend distributation- Rs 0.32 - - 29.00 1.50 19.00
Date of Income Distribution 26-Jun-20 - - 22-Jun-17 28-Jun-16 30-Jun-15
Total dividend distribution for the year/ period 0.32 - - 29.00 1.50 19.00
AVERAGE RETURNS (% )
Average annual return 1 year 2.95% -18.36% -13.99% 24.51% 0.98% 11.63%
Average annual return 2 year -8.32% -16.21% 3.48% 12.15% - -
Average annual return 3 year -10.25% -4.38% 2.65% 12.03% - -
Weighted average portfolio during (No. of days)
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)
Percentage of Total Assets as at 30 June:
Bank Balances 6% 8% 22% 6% 6% 9%
GoP ljarah Sukuks - - - -
Placement with Banks and DFIs - - - -
Corporate Sukuks - - - -
Stock / Equities 93% 89% 78% 92% 93% 90%
Others 1% 3% 0% 2% 1% 1%

Note:
The Launch date of the Fund is May 10, 2011

Disclaimer:

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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PROXY VOTING DISCOLUSRE-

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Summary of Actual Proxy voted by CIS

HBL ISF Meetings Resolutions For Against
Number 3 12 12 -
(%ages) 100% 100% -

(h)  AMC did not participate in shareholders' meetings

Investee Company AGM Meeting Dt EOGM Meeting Dt
Amreli Steels Limited 23/10/2018
AGP Limited 17/4/2019 06-07-18
Dawood Hercules Corporation (5/12/2018)(27/4/2019)(20/5/2019)
Engro Corporation Ltd (3/12/2018)(24/4/2019)(13/5/2019)(17/6/2019) (25/09/2018)(28/5/2019)
Engro Fertilizer Ltd (2/10/2018)(26/11/2018)(28/3/2019) 27/5/2019
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd (18/09/2018)(1/4/2019)
Fauiji Fertilizer Co Ltd (28/09/2018)(10/12/2018)(19/12/2018)(26/3/2019)(23/6/2019)
Hub Power Company Ltd (5/10/2018)(30/4/2019) (16/4/2019)
Hascol Petroleum (18/09/2018)(19/11/2018) 10-10-18
International Industries Ltd (28/09/2018)(22/3/2019)
International Steels Limited (25/09/2018)(22/3/2019)
Kohat Cement Co Ltd 25/10/2018 29/6/2019
Kohinoor Textile Mill Ltd 27/10/2018)(21/3/2019)
Lucky Cement Ltd (28/09/2018)(27/10/2018)
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Ltd (18/4/2019)
Maple Leaf Cement Factory 27/10/2018
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries 27/10/2018
Mari Petroleum Company Ltd 18/10/2018)(20/3/2019)
Meezan Bank Ltd 2/10/2018)(28/3/2019)(20/5/2019 17/11/2018
Mughal iron & Steel 27/10/2018
Millat Tractors Limited (8/3/2019)
Nishat Mills Ltd 27/10/2018)(17/4/2019)
Oil & Gas Development Co Ltd (25/10/2018)(20/12/2018)(18/4/2019)(17/6/2019)
Pakgen Power Ltd 30/4/2019
Pakistan Petroleum Ltd 26/10/2018
Pakistan Oilfields Ltd (25/09/2018)(20/3/2019)
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd (02/10/2018)(16/10/2018)(19/6/2019)
Sitara Chemical Ind. 20/6/2019
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Ltd 23/5/2019
Thal Limited (22/10/2018)(20/3/2019)
The Searle Company Ltd 22/11/2018

Annual Report-2020



CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED
Head Office

COT House, 99-B, BlockiBE
SMLCHLS. Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Farachi - 74400, Fakistan;
Tel{92-21) 111-111-5D0
Fax:(32-21) 34326021 - 23

URL: woww.cdcpakistan.com

Emall; info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REFORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41¢h) and Clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Islamic Stock
Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, heing the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June
30, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund:

(ii)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iii) The Non-Banking Finance Companies {Estahlishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

M""\'\r J
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 11, 2020

C
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Al-Hilal

——Shariah Advisors——

September 23, 2020

The purpose of this report is to provide an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the Fund’s investment
and operational activities with respect to Shariah guidelines provided.

It is the core responsibility of the Management Company to operate the Fund and invest the amount
of money in such a manner which is in compliance with the Shariah principles as laid out in the Shariah
guidelines, In the capacity of the Shariah Advisor, our responsibility lies in providing Shariah guidelines
and ensuring compliance with the same by review of activities of the fund. We express our opinion
based on the review of the information, provided by the management company, to an extent where
compliance with the Shariah guidelines can be objectively verified.

Our review of Fund’s activities is limited to enquiries of the personnel of Management Company and
various documents prepared and provided by the management company.

Keeping in view the above; we certify that:

We have reviewed all the investment and operational activities of the fund including all transactions
and found them to comply with the Shariah guidelines. On the basis of information provided by the
management company, all operations of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 comply with the
provided Shariah guidelines. Therefore, it is resolved that investments in HEL Islamic Stock Fund (HBL-
ISF) managed by HBL Asset Management Company Limited are halal and in accordance with Shariah
principles.

May Allah (SWT) bless us and forgive our mistakes and accept our sincere efforts in accomplishment
of cherished tasks and keep us away from sinful acts,

For and on behalf of Shariah Supervisory Council of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited.
\ (

Muﬂ%gmﬂmm.
Member Shariah Council

Fara
Chi

Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt) Limited

Suite BOY, A™ Floor, Morison Towsr, Com 106, Kheyaban-e-Saadi,
Block 03 Chitton, Karachi

Tl #8221 -35305031-37, Wah: s alhilalas com
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Deloitte.

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block 7 & 8
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: #92 (0) 21 3454 64594-T
Fa: +32 (00 21- 3454 1314

www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the unit holders of HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HBL Islamic Stock Fund (the Fund), which comprise the
statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2020, and the income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
palicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial pesition of
the Fund as at June 30, 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and
Management Company in accerdance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethice for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mest significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current peried. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our apinien theraon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5. No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
1 Valuation and existence of We performed the following procedures during
investment our audit of investments:

Investments held at fair value through « obtained understanding of relevant controls
profit or loss are disclosed in note 6 to placed by the Management Company
the financial statements and represent a applicable to the balance;

B o
Deloitte Touchs Tohmatsu Limited
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Deloitte. ———

Chartered Accountants

5. No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

significant portion of the net assets of « jndependently verified existence of
the Fund. investments from the Central Depository
Company (CDC) account statement;

The Fund's primary activity is, inter alia,
to invest in equity securities; which is
the main driver of the Fund’s

« independently tested the valuations directly
with the prices quoted on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX);

performance.

+ performed test of details on sale and
Considering the above factors the purchase of investrments on a sample basis;
valuation and existence are significant and
areas during our audit due to which we
have considered this as a Key Audit « any differences identified during our testing
Matter. that were over cur acceptable threshold were

investigated further.

Information other than the financlal statements and auditor’s report thereon

Management Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infermation included in the annual report but does not include the financial staterments and our audit
report.

Our apinicn on the financial statements dees not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management Company and Those Charged with Governance for the
financial statements

Management Company is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal
cantrol as the Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management Company either intends to liquidate the
Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole are

free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
| includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

Membar of
Deloitte Towche Tohmatsu Limited
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audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional Jjudgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughaout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and ocbtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Management Company's internal contral,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management Company.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Company’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenticn
in gur auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance of Management Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance of Management Company with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Governance of Management Company, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Member aof
Deboitte Toudchs Tohmatsu Limited
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Non-Banking Finance Cempanies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and MNon-Banking
Finance Companies and Motified Entities Regulations, 2008,
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Naresh Kumar.
O 1('1]-('_ '?ﬂ-"-l
artered Accou

Date: September 24, 2020
Place: Karachi

Mombgr of
Deboitte Toudhe Tohematsu Limited
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS ON
THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

We have performed an independent assurance engagement of HBL Islamic Stock Fund (the Fund), to
express an opinion on the annexed Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles (the Statement) for
the year ended June 30, 2020. Our engagement was carried out as under Trust Deed and Sharlah Principles
of the Fund.

Management Company’s responsibllity

Management Company (HBL Asset Management Limited) of the Fund Is respansible for the preparation of
the Statement (the subject matter) and for compliance with the Shariah Principles specified in the Trust
Deed and the gulde lines issued by the Shariah Advisor (criteria). This responsibllity includes designing,
implementing and maintaining Internal control to ensure that operations of the Fund and the Investments
made by the Fund are in compliance with the Shariah Principles.

Responsibility of an Independent assurance provider

Qur responsibility Is to express our conclusion on the Statement based on our independent assurance
engagement, performed In accordance with the International Standards on Assurance Engagement (ISAE
3000) "Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financlal Information’. This
standard requires that we comply with ethical requirements, Including independence requirements, and plan
and perform the engagernent to obtain reasonable assurance whether the Statement reflects the status of
the Fund's compliance with the Shariah Principles specified In the Trust Deed and the Offering Document of
the Fund.

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material non-
compliances with the Shariah Principles whether due to fraud or errar. In making those risk assessments, we
have considered internal controls relevant to the Fund's compliance with the principles In order to design
procedures that are appropriate In the clrcumstances, for gathering sufficient appropriate evidence to
determine that the Fund was not materially non-compliant with the principles. Our engagement was not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal contral.

The procedures performed included:

= Checking compliance of specified guideline issued by the Shariah Advisor relating to charity, maintaining
of bank accounts and for making investments of the Fund; and

« Checking that the Shariah Advisor has certifled that the operations of the Fund and investments made by
the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2020 are in compllance with the Shariah Principles and where
required, purification of income from non-compliant sources has been made in consultation with the
Shariah Advisar.

Concluslan
In our opinion, the Statement, in all material respects, presents falrly the status of the Fund’s compliance

with Shairah Principles in the Trust Deed and the guideline Issued by the Shariah Advisor for the year ended
June 30, 2020.

Kbttt B

Dated: September 29, 2020

. Mgsriner ot
Place: Karachi i e
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HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------

Assets
Bank balances 5 34,983 55,650
Investments 6 538,096 585,604
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up 7 457 2,347
Advances and deposits 8 3,521 3,521
Recievable against sale of equity instruments - 10,033

577,057 657,155
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 9 2,610 2,202
Payable to the Trustee 10 103 120
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 116 1,917
Payable against purchase of equity instruments 2,800 -
Dividend payable 815 -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 15,597 17,755

22,041 21,994
Net Assets 555,016 635,161
Unit Holders' Fund (as per statement attached) 555,016 635,161
Contingencies and Commitments 13
------- Number of units -------
Number of units in issue 18 5,925,966 6,957,434
------------ Rupees ------------
Net assets value per unit 4.7 93.6583 91.2924
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note =~ = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Income
Dividend income 22,387 79,594
Profit on bank deposits 5,409 23,000
Capital loss on sale of investments - net (561) (197,653)
Unrealised gain / (diminution) on remeasurement of investments
classified at fair value through profit or loss 5,011 (108,566)
Total income / (loss) 32,246 (203,625)
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 9.1&9.2 12,775 45,616
Remuneration of the Trustee 10.1 & 10.2 1,306 3,362
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11.1 116 1,917
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 9.4 1,795 2,018
Selling and marketing expense 9.3 4,751 8,074
Auditors' remuneration 14 370 352
Settlement and bank charges 505 1,058
Brokerage fees 2,911 7,480
Fee and subscription 231 224
Legal and professional charges - 45
Charity 1,524 3,882
Total expenses 26,284 74,028
Net profit / (loss) from operating activities 5,962 (277,653)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.3 (119) -
Net profit / (loss) for the year before taxation 5,843 (277,653)
Taxation 15 - -
Net profit / (loss) for the year after taxation 5,843 (277,653)
Allocation of net income for the year
Net income / (loss) for the period 5,843 (277,653)
Income already paid on redemption of units (83) -
5,760 (277,653)
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains 4,367 -
- Excluding capital gains 1,393 -
5,760 (277,653)
Earnings per unit 17
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Net profit / (loss) for the year after taxation 5,843 (277,653)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 5,843 (277,653)
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Net assets at the beginning of the year
Adjustment on addoption of IFRS9

Issue of units 10,701,011 (2019: 5,136,372 units)

- Capital Value (at net asset value per unit at the
beginning of the year)

- Element of income / (loss)

Total proceed on issuance of units

Redemption of 11,732,480 units (2019: 20,909,833 units)

- Capital Value (at net asset value per unit at the
beginning of the year)

- Element of income / (loss)

- Income already paid on redemption of units

Total payment on redemption of units

Net profit / (loss) for the year after taxation
Distribution during the year

Refund of capital

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Net assets at the end of the year
Undistributed loss brought forward

- Realised
- Unrealised

Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9

Accounting (loss) / income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains

- Excluding capital gains

Distribution during the year

Undistributed loss carried forward

Undistributed (Loss) / income carried forward

- Realised
- Unrealised

Net assets value per unit at the beginning of the year

Net assets value per unit at the end of the year

For the year ended June 30,

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

Annual Report-2020

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Capital Undistributed Unrealised Total Capital  Undistributed Unrealised Total
value income income / value income income /
(Accumulated (loss) on (Accumulated (loss) on
loss) investment loss) investment
951,824 (316,663) - 635,161 2,580,952 (40,603) 1,593 2,541,942
R - 1,593 (1,593) -
976,938 - 976,938 574,388 - - 574,388
61,638 - 61,638 (2,546) - - (2,546)
1,038,576 - 1,038,576 571,842 - - 571,842
(1,071,105) - (1,071,105) (2,338,297) - - (2,338,297)
(51,453) - - (51,453) - - B )
- (83) - (83) 137327 - - 137,327
(1,122,559) (83) - (1,122,641 (2,200,970) B B (2,200,970)
- 5,843 - 5,843 - (277,653) - (277,653)
- (1,905) - (1,905) - - . _
(18) - - (18) - - - -
(18) 3,938 B 3920 B (277,653) B (277,653)
867,824 (312,808) - 555,016 951,824 (316,663) - 635,161
108,566 46,644
(316,663) (40,603)
1,593
4,367 -
1,393 (277,653)
5,760 (277,653)
(1,905) .
(312,808) (316,663)
(317,819) (208,097)
5,011 (108,566)
(312,808) (316,663)
(Rupees) (Rupees)
91.2924 111.8276
93.6583 91.2924
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director



HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation 5,843 (277,653)
Adjustments
Capital loss on sale of investments - net 561 197,653
Unrealised gain / (diminution) on remeasurement of investments
classified at fair value through profit or loss (5,011) 108,566
Profit on bank deposits (5,409) (23,000)
Dividend income (22,387) (79,594)
(26,403) (74,028)
Decrease / (Increase) in assets
Investments - net 51,958 1,330,804
Recievable against sale of equity instruments 10,033 (10,033)
Advances and deposits - (39)
61,991 1,320,732
(Decrease) / Increase in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 408 (7,024)
Payable to the Trustee (17) (202)
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (1,801) 301
Payable against purchase of equity instruments 2,800 (276,163)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (2,158) (2,989)
(768) (286,077)
Mark-up received 5,583 24,205
Dividend received 24,103 81,813
Net cash generated from operating activities 64,506 1,066,645
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Amount received on issuance of units 1,038,576 571,842
Payment against redemption of units (1,122,641) (2,200,970)
Cash dividend paid (1,108) -
Net cash used in financing activities (85,173) (1,629,128)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (20,667) (562,483)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 55,650 618,133
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 34,983 55,650
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

2.1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Islamic Stock Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated November 23, 2010, executed
between HBL Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) as a unit trust scheme on December 10, 2010.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
NBFC Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services.
The registered office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main
Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open-ended Shariah Compliant Fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis.
The units are transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited. The units of the Fund were initially offered for public subscription at par from May 09, 2011
to May 10, 2011.

The principal activity of the Fund is to provide long-term capital growth by investing mainly in Shariah Compliant
equity securities and short-term government securities.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager rating of 'AM2+' (positive outlook) to the
Management Company.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee
of the Fund.

COVID 19 Impact

In March 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHQ") declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (known as
COVID-19) as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around the world to
implement stringent measures to help control its spread, including, without limitation, quarantines, "stay-at-home"
or "shelter-in-place" orders, social-distancing mandates, travel restrictions, and closures or reduced operations for
businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other institutions. The industry, along with global economic
conditions generally, has been significantly disrupted by the pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had certain effect on the operational and
financial condition of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 due to increase in overall credit risk pertaining to
the corporate debt instruments’ portfolios of mutual funds, subdued equity market performance due to overall
slowdown in economic activity and continuity of business operations. However, to reduce the impact on the
performance of the Fund, regulators / governments across the country have introduced a host of measures on both
the fiscal and economic fronts by issuing certain circulars and notifications from time to time.

The management of the Fund is closely monitoring the situation, and in response to the developments, the
management has taken action to ensure the safety of its employees and other stakeholders, and initiated a number
of initiatives.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
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HBL Islamic Stock Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the
Trust Deed.

Wherever provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the requirements of the Trust Deed,
the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by the SECP differ with the requirements of the IFRS,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, requirements of the Trust Deed, the NBFC
Rules, the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by the SECP prevail.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain financial
assets are stated at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the fund's functional and presentation currency.
2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting standards
requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its
accounting policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in
the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are
significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

(i) classification and valuation of financial assets (notes 4.2.1)

3. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS / AMENDMENTS AND IFRS INTERPRETATIONS
3.1 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30,
2020

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2020. These
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the Fund's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting periods
beginning on or after:

IFRS 16 Leases January 01, 2019
IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts July 01, 2019

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - prepayment features
with negative compensation January 01, 2019

Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' -
Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures January 01, 2019
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Effective from accounting periods

beginning on or after:
Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Plan amendment, & &

curtailment or settlement January 01, 2019
IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' January 01, 2019
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

3.2 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either
not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Fund's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting periods

beginning on or after:

Amendments to the conceptual framework for financial reporting,
including amendments to references to the conceptual framework in
IFRS January 01, 2020

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a
business January 01, 2020

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8
'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' -
Definition of material January 01, 2020

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', IAS 39 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and IFRS 7 'Financial
Instruments: Disclosures' - Interest rate benchmark reform January 01, 2020

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions January 01, 2020

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the
conceptual framework January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds
before intended use January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract January 01, 2022

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs, which are not expected to have material
effect on the financial reporting of the Fund.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards

Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabilities
at cost.

4.2 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Fund’s statement
of assets and liabilities when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

'Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the income statement.

4.2.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets:
- Measured at amortized cost (“AC”),
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and
- Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

Financial asset at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Asset at FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVYPL

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, only dividend income is recognised in income statement. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

FVOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair
value recognised in OCI.

Financial asset at FVTPL

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt
securities not classified either as AC or FVOCI).

In addition, on initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Fund
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the profit or loss

4.2.1.1 Business Model Assessment

The business model is determined under IFRS 9 at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. It is not an instrument-by-instrument analysis; rather it can be
performed at a higher level aggregation. It is typically observable through the activities that the entity undertakes
to achieve the objective of the business model; all relevant evidence that is available at the date of the assessment
(including history of sales of the financial assets) are considered. Following three business models are defined
under the IFRS 9:

1) Hold to collect business model
2) Hold to collect and sell business model
3) FVTPL business model

The Fund classifies its investments based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The evaluation of the performance of the Fund
has been performed on fair value basis for the entire portfolio, as reporting to the key management personnel and
to the investors in the form of net asset value (NAV). The investment portfolio of financial assets is managed and
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that
information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions. Consequently, all the investments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. For other financial assets which are held for collection continue to be
measured at amortised cost.

4.2.1.2 Regular way contracts
All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market

convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell
assets.
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Notes to the financial statements
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4.2.1.3 Recognition

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract or the
contract is a derivative contract.

4.2.1.4 Impairment of financial assets

The SECP/Commission has through its letter no. SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 has
deferred the applicability of the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 for debt securities on mutual funds. Therefore
the Fund will not be subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS 9. Meanwhile, asset management companies shall
continue to follow the requirements of Circular 33 of 2012.

For financial assets other than debt securities measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of
impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model rather than incurred credit loss model as previously required
under IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, the Fund is required to measure loss allowance of an amount equal to lifetime ECL or
12 months ECL based on credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Fund considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Fund’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

However, majority of the assets of the Fund exposed to credit risk pertain to counter parties which have high credit
rating or where credit risk has not been increased since initial recognition. Therefore, management believes that
the impact of ECL would be very minimal and hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial
statements.

4.2.2 Fair value measurement principles and provision
The fair value of financial instruments is determined as follows:
Basis of valuation of debt securities:
The fair value of debt securities (other than government securities) is based on the value determined and
announced by Mutual Funds association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the criteria laid down in Circular
No. 1 of 2009 and Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In the
determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of these securities and categorises them
as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The aforementioned circular also specifies the valuation process
to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing debt securities.

Basis of valuation of equity securities:

The fair value of shares of listed companies is based on their prices quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are taken to the income statement.
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4.23

4.23.1

4.2.4

4.24.1

4.2.4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Basis of valuation of securities at amortised cost:

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as amortised cost are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses are also recognised in the income statement when financial assets carried at amortised cost are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Fund has opted to measure them at fair
value through profit or loss. The Fund does not have any financial liabilities designated as fair value through profit
or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Fund derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire, or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership
to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the
asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in Income Statement.

Financial liabilities

The Fund derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
the Income Statement.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation
The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income

Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed in cash to the unit holders.
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The Fund is also exempt from the Provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate
Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing
the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least 90% of its accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

4.6 Net assets value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing the
net asset of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

4.7 Distribution to the unit holders

Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented
by the SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the
year.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Management Company.

4.8 Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

An equalisation account called the element of income / (loss) included in prices of units sold less those in units
redeemed is created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income and distribution of income already paid out
on redemption.

Element of income / (loss) represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or
redemption date, as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

Further, the element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income
shall be taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net assets value of all units
outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund
will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.

On redemption of units, element of income is paid on units redeemed from element of income contributed by unit
holders on issue of units (i.e. return of capital) or the element of income is paid from the income earned by the fund
or the element of income is partly paid out of element of income contributed by unit holders (i.e. return of capital)
and partly from the income earned by the fund.

4.9 Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gain / (loss) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date at
which the transaction takes place.

- Unrealised gain / (loss) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.
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4.10

5.1

6.1

- Dividend income from equity securities is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

- Mark up / return on Term finance certificates, bank deposits and investment in debt securities are recognised
on a time apportionment basis using effective interest method

Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses (namely management fee, trustee fee, annual fee payable to the SECP,
and selling and marketing expense) are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

BANK BALANCES

Savings accounts 34,983 55,650
34,983 55,650

This represent bank accounts held with different banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 5% -
13.25% (June 30, 2019: 6% - 13.5%) per annum.

2020 2019
INVESTMENTS Note ~ - (Rupees in '000)----------
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Listed equity securities 6.1 538,096 585,604
538,096 585,604

Listed equity securities - At fair value through profit or loss

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise

Number of sh: Market value as a percentage of b |
Market value as at p::‘fnr:g:s;
Name of the Investee Compan June 30, 2020 . .
pany Asatluly 1, ::;‘n"a::: Bonus/ | Sales during | Asatlune | oo R0 Total Net Assets |1esued caital of the
2019 yeir Rights issue the year 30, 2020 Investments investee company
AUTOMOBILE ASSEMBLER
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited - 165,300 - 165,300 - - - - 0.00%
165,300 - 165,300 - -
AUTOMOBILE PARTS & ACCESSORIES
Thal Limited (Parvalue Rs.5share) 53,050 37,800 - 48,400 42,450 13,794 2.56% 2.49% 0.05%
53,050 37,800 - 48,400 42,450 13,794
CEMENT
Cherat Cement Company Limited. - 211,000 - 81,000 130,000 11,332 2.11% 2.04% 0.07%
D G Khan Cement Company Limited. - 33,000 - - 33,000 2,816 0.52% 0.51% 0.01%
Kohat Cement Limited 172,690 71,000 - 185,500 58,190 7,998 1.49% 1.44% 0.03%
Lucky Cement Limited 59,550 107,000 - 69,800 96,750 44,658 8.30% 8.05% 0.01%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory - 1,168,500 - 626,000 542,500 14,094 2.62% 2.54% 0.05%
232,240 1,590,500 - 962,300 860,440 80,898
COMMERCIAL BANK
Meezan Bank Limited 286,740 234,500 - 321,000 200,240 13,787 2.56% 2.48% 0.02%
Banklslami Pakistan Limited - 1,525,000 - 455,500 1,069,500 8,085 1.50% 1.46% 0.10%
286,740 1,759,500 - 776,500 1,269,740 21,872
CHEMICAL
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd 702,066 898,000 - 1,315,500 284,566 7,108 1.32% 1.28% 0.03%
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Ltd 204,000 1,162,500 - 1,366,500 - - - - -
ICl Pakistan Ltd - 35,300 - 1,500 33,800 23,481 4.36% 4.23% 0.03%
Sitara Peroxide Limited - 251,000 - - 251,000 5,123 0.95% 0.92% 0.46%
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited 24,700 14,400 - 7,700 31,400 8,701 1.62% 1.57% 0.15%
930,766 2,361,200 - 2,691,200 600,766 44,413
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Number of sh: Market value as a percentage of b |
Market value as at p::cv:nr:;::f
Name of the Investee Compan June 30, 2020 . )
pany Asatluly 1, :::ic:a::: Bonus/ | Salesduring | AsatlJune (Rupees in '000) Total Net Assets issued capital of the
2019 yegar Rights issue the year 30, 2020 Investments investee company
ENGINEERING
International Industries Ltd - 51,500 - 51,500 - - - - -
International Steels Limited - 329,500 - 329,500 - - - - -
Mughal Iron & Steel Inds Ltd - 137,000 - - 137,000 5,464 1.02% 0.98% 0.05%
- 518,000 - 381,000 137,000 5,464
FERTILIZER
Engro Corporation Limited 204,980 157,100 - 211,987 150,093 43,965 8.17% 7.92% 0.03%
Engro Fertilizers Limited 397,000 382,000 685,000 94,000 5,666 1.05% 1.02% 0.01%
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 277,500 324,400 - 498,000 103,900 11,428 2.12% 2.06% 0.01%
879,480 863,500 - 1,394,987 347,993 61,059
GLASS & CERAMICS
Tariq Glass Industries Ltd - 38,000 - 38,000 - - - - -
E 38,000 - 38,000 E E
INVESTMENT BANKS/COs./SECURITIES
Dawood Hercules Corporation Ltd 63,900 65,000 - 63,900 65,000 8,315 1.55% 1.50% 0.01%
63,900 65,000 - 63,900 65,000 8,315
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
Mari Petroleum Company Limited 51,681 33,000 4,198 49,620 39,259 48,550 9.02% 8.75% 0.03%
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited 504,300 674,000 - 710,900 467,400 50,947 9.47% 9.18% 0.01%
Pakistan Oilfields Limited 87,770 44,800 . 101,770 30,800 10,799 2.01% 1.95% 0.01%
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 380,655 563,700 91,731 709,200 326,886 28,367 5.27% 5.11% 0.01%
1,024,406 1,315,500 95,929 1,571,490 864,345 138,663
OIL & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 183,580 186,500 27,416 265,000 132,49 20,956 3.89% 3.78% 0.03%
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 178,300 192,000 - 123,000 247,300 13,503 2.51% 2.43% 0.03%
361,880 378,500 27,416 388,000 379,796 34,459
PHARMACEUTICALS
AGP Limited 50,750 142,500 - 92,000 101,250 11,111 2.06% 2.00% 0.04%
Highnoon Laboratories Limited - 29,800 2,205 150 31,855 15,968 2.97% 2.88% 0.09%
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Ltd - 79,400 - 16,000 63,400 11,037 2.05% 1.99% 0.02%
Abbott Laboratories (Pak) Ltd - 16,500 - 16,500 - - - -
The Searle Company Limited 42,124 68,600 - 57,500 53,224 10,604 1.97% 1.91% 0.03%
92,874 336,800 2,205 182,150 249,729 48720
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
Hub Power Company Limited 732,441 423,000 - 733,600 421,841 30,583 5.68% 5.51% 0.03%
K-Electric Limited (Parvalue Rs. 3.5 share) 2,955,000 1,575,000 - 3,293,000 1,237,000 3,723 0.69% 0.67% 0.00%
3,687,441 1,998,000 - 4,026,600 1,658,841 34,306
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
Systems Limited - 138,500 - 15,500 123,000 22,593 - - 0.10%
- 138,500 - 15,500 123,000 22,593
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
Interloop Limited 385,250 137,000 - 393,500 128,750 5,655 1.05% 1.02% 0.01%
Nishat Mills Ltd 163,800 229,500 - 205,200 188,100 14,674 2.73% 2.64% 0.08%
549,050 366,500 . 598,700 316,850 20,329
TRANSPORT
Pakistan National Shipping Corp Limited 56,000 67,500 - 81,000 42,500 3,211 0.60% 0.58% 0.03%
56,000 67,500 . 81,000 42,500 3211
8,217,827 12,000,100 125,550 13,385,027 6,958,450 538,096

Carrying Value of investments at June 30, 2020 533,084
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6.2.1 Investments include 86,000 shares of Engro Corporation Limitred, 37,000 shares of Lucky Cement Limited, 5,000
shares of Mari Petroleum Company Limited and 150,000 shares of Oil & Gas Development Company Limited
amounting to Rs.25.191 million, Rs. 17.078 million, Rs. 6.183 million and Rs. 16.350 million respectively (June 2019:
50,000 shares of Engro Corporation Limitred, 55,000 shares of Lucky Cement Limited and 150,000 shares of Oil &
Gas Development Company Limited amounting to Rs.13.280 million, Rs. 20.925 million, and Rs. 19.723 million
respectively) that have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited for guaranteeing
settlement of the Fund's trades in terms of Circular 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the SECP.

6.2.2 These includes gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee company. Finance Act, 2014
brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the shareholder
are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5 % is to be applied on value of bonus shares determined on the
basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the investee
company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management
Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan,
has filed a petition in Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with
reference to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds
based on the premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the final outcome of the case.
However, the investee company(s) has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund
having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 0.498 million at June 30, 2020 (June 2019: Rs. 0.388 million) and not yet
deposited on CDC account of department of Income tax. Management is of the view that the decision will be in the
favor and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at year end.

2020 2019
Note ~  —---mm- (Rupees in '000)----------
6.2.3 Net unrealised gain / (loss) on re-measurement of
investments at fair value through profit or loss
Market value of investments 538,096 585,604
Less: carrying value of investments before mark to market (533,085) (694,170)
5,011 (108,566)
7. DIVIDEND RECEIVABLE AND ACCRUED MARK-UP
Dividend receivable 138 1,854
Mark-up accrued on deposits with banks 319 493
457 2,347
8. ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS
Security deposit with:
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 2,500
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
Advance tax 921 921
3,521 3,521
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2020 2019
Note ~ - (Rupees in '000)----------
9. PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Management fee 9.1 909 1,065
Sindh Sales Tax 9.2 118 139
Sales load payable 116 20
Selling and marketing payable 9.3 1,217 925
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 9.4 250 53
2,610 2,202
9.1 Under the provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies & Notified Entities Regulations 2008, the

Management Company of the Fund is entitled to a remuneration during the first five years of the Fund, of an
amount not exceeding 3% of the average annual net assets of the Fund and thereafter of an amount equal to 2%
of such assets of the Fund. The management fee expense charged by the asset Management Company varied
between 1.7% to 2% during the year. Currently, the management fee is charged at the rate of 2% of average annual
net assets of the fund.

9.2 The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the
remueration of management company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

9.3 SECP vide SRO 639(1)/2019 dated June 20, 2019 has removed cap of 0.4 percent (of average net assets, calculated
on daily basis), on charging of selling and marketing expenses which are charged by Asset Management Companies
to all categories of open-end mutual funds (except fund of funds). Resultantly, Management Company has charged
selling and marketing expenses to the Fund. The selling and marketing expenses charged by the asset Management
Company varied between 0.4% to 1.05% during the year. Currently, the selling and marketing expense is charged at
the rate of 1.05% of average annual net assets of the fund.

9.4 In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company has charged expenses
related to registrar services, accounting, operations and valuation services, related to a Collective Investment
Scheme (CIS). The expense charged by the asset Management Company varied between 0.1% to 0.55% during the
year. Currently, the expense is charged at the rate of 0.55% of average annual net assets of the fund.

2020 2019
10. PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE Note oo (Rupees in '000)----------
Trustee fee 10.1 91 106
Sindh Sales Tax 10.2 12 14
103 120
10.1 The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the

Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the Trustee
monthly in arrears.
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10.2

11.

111

12,

12.1

12.2

The tariff structure applicable to the Fund is as follows:

Amount of Funds Under Management Tariff per annum
[Average Net Assets Value (NAV)]

Upto Rs 1,000 million 0.20% per annum of NAV
Exceeding Rs 1,000 million Rs 2 million plus 0.10% per annum of NAV exceeding 1 billion.

The Sindh Government had levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2019: 13%) on the remuneration of the
Central Depository Company of Pakistan through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 effective from July 1, 2015.

PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND 2020 2019
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN Note ~  -------e-- (Rupees in '000)----------
Annual fee 11.1 116 1,917

In accordance with Regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, uptill June 19, 2019, the Fund was required to pay SECP
an amount at the rate of 0.095% per annum of the average daily net assets of the fund. SECP vide SRO 685(1)/2019
dated June 28, 2019 has revised the rate of annual fee at 0.02% of the net assets of the fund and accordingly such
fee has been charged at the rate of 0.02% percent during the year.

2020 2019

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
Charity payable 12.1 1,524 3,882
Federal Excise Duty 12.2 6,785 6,785
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.3 6,431 6,312
Withholding tax payable 173 143
Auditors' remuneration 276 263
Payable to brokers 235 184
Others 173 186

15,597 17,755

In accordance with the instructions of the Shariah Advisor(s), any income earned by the Fund from investments
whereby the portions of the investment of the investee company has been made in Shariah non-compliant
avenues, such portion of the income of the Fund from those investments should be given away for charitable
purposes directly by the Fund.

As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration
of the Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the
view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double
taxation, which does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed by the Mutual
Fund Association of Pakistan along-with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited with the Sindh High Court
(SHC) on September 04, 2013.

While disposing the above petition through order dated July 16, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be
ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities
subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the
decision.
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The Finance Act 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no
provision is charged during the year ending June 30, 2019.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company, has made a
provision on FED on remuneration of the Management Company with effect from June 13, 2013 till June 30, 2016,
aggregating to Rs. 6.793 million. Had the provision not been made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at June 30, 2020
would have been higher by Rs. 1.145 (2019: Rs. 0.975) per unit.

12.3 The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF Ordinance)
whereby all Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) / mutual funds whose income exceeded Rs. 0.5 million in a tax
year, were brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to
WWEF. In this regard, a constitutional petition was filed by certain CISs through their trustees in the High Court of
Sindh, challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs, which is pending adjudication.

During 2013 and 2014, judgements were made by Sindh High Court (SHC) and Peshawar High Courts respectively
in favor of and against amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance through Finance Acts, 2006 and 2008.

The Finance Act 2015 incorporated an amendment in WWF Ordinance by excluding CIS from the definition of
Industrial Establishment, and consequently CIS were no more liable to pay contribution to WWF with effect from
July 1, 2015.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) passed a judgment on November 10, 2016, deciding that amendments made
through the Finance Acts through which WWF was levied, are unlawful, as such are not in nature of tax; therefore,
it could not be introduced through the money bill. However, the Federal Board of Revenue has filed a review
petition in the SCP against the said judgment, which is pending for hearing in the SCP.

The Government of Sindh also introduced levy of the Sindh Workers” Welfare Fund (SWWF) through the Sindh
Workers’” Welfare Act, 2014. On a query raised by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on applicability of
SWWEF, SRB responded back that as mutual funds are included in definition of financial institutions in the Financial
Institutions (Recovery of Finance) Ordinance, 2001, and thus SWWF is payable by them. MUFAP has taken up the
matter with the concerned ministry [Sindh Finance Ministry] for appropriate resolution of the matter.

In 2017, MUFAP recommended to its members that effective from January 12, 2017, Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF)
recognized earlier should be reversed in light of the decision made by the Supreme Court of Pakistan and Sindh
Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) should be recognized effective from May 21, 2015.

MUFAP also communicated the above-mentioned decisions to the Securities and Exchange of Commission (SECP)
through its letter dated January 12, 2017, and the SECP through its letter dated February 01, 2017 affirmed above

decisions.

As a result of the above recommendations of the MUFAP, the Fund on January 12, 2017, reversed the provision of
WWF amounting to Rs. 8.274 million and started recognising provision for SWWF.

As at June 30, 2020, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 34.381 million (2019: Rs. 34.381 million).
Had the provision not been made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Rs.
1.0853 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.9072) per unit.

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no contingencies and commitments at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019.
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2020 2019
14. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION Note =~ - (Rupees in '000)----------
Annual audit fee 271 253
Fee for half yearly review 42 40
Shariah Compliance Audit Fee - 5
Out of pocket 57 54
370 352

15. TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per Clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced
by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt
from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001. During the year on June 28, 2020, Management Company has distributed cash dividend of at
least 90% of the aforementioned accounting income to the unit holders. Accordingly, no provision for taxation has
been recognised in these financial statements.

16. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 is 4.26%, which includes 0.32%
(June: 2019 is 3.70%, which includes 0.43%) representing government levy and SECP fee.

17. EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of Management Company determination of
cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

2020 2019
18. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
Opening units in issue 6,957,434 22,730,895
Units issued during the year 10,701,012 5,136,372
Less: Units redeemed during the year (11,732,480) (20,909,833)
Total units in issue at the end of the year 5,925,966 6,957,434
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19.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial Assets

Bank balances

Investments

Dividend and profit receivable
Deposits and other receivables

Financial Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to Trustee

Payable against purchase of equity instruments
Dividend payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net assets attributable to redeemable units

Financial Assets

Bank balances

Investments

Dividend and profit receivable
Deposits and other receivables

Financial Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to Trustee

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net assets attributable to redeemable units

As at June 30, 2020 --------------=-=-----.
t:: Fan;‘lvalu:.t At Amortised Total
ough profi Cost ota
or loss
Rupees in '000'
- 34,983 34,983
538,096 - 538,096
- 457 457
- 2,600 2,600
538,096 38,040 576,136
- 2,610 2,610
- 103 103
- 2,800 2,800
- 815 815
- 2,208 2,208
- 555,016 555,016
- 563,551 563,551
As atJune 30,2019 ---------m-mommom
t:t FalLvaqu?t At Amortised Total
rough profi Cost ota
or loss
Rupees in '000'
- 55,650 55,650
585,604 - 585,604
- 2,347 2,347
- 2,600 2,600
585,604 60,597 646,201
As atJune 30,2019 -------mmmmmmmmmoeeee
t:t FalLvaIu]St At Amortised Total
rough profi Cost ota
or loss
Rupees in '000'
- 2,202 2,202
- 120 120
- 4,515 4,515
- 635,161 635,161
641,998 641,998
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20. TRANSACTIONS / BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited
being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective
investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company,
directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms
determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the Non-Banking Financial Company Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements are as follows:

2020 2019
20.1 Transactions during theyear (Rupees in '000)----------

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company
Management Fee including sales tax thereon 12,775 45,616
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 1,795 2,018
Selling and marketing 4,751 8,074
Issue of 1,030,320 units (2019: Nil units) 100,000 -
Redemption of 1,194,402 units (2019: 50,979 units) 108,335 5,500
MCBFSL Trustee - HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund

- Active Allocation Plan - Associate
Issue of 22,212 units (2019: 53,665 units) 1,933 5,400
Redemption of 226,956 units (2019: 623,587 units) 21,503 65,214
Reinvestment of dividend of 648 units (2019: Nil units) 60 -
MCBFSL Trustee - HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund

- Conservative Allocation Plan - Associate
Issue of 6,980 units (2019: 6,245 units) 578 633
Redemption of 9,701 units (2019: 9,057 units) 850 952
MCBFSL Trustee - HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund - Associate

- Strategic Allocation Plan - Associate

Issue of Nil units (2019: 865,348 units) - 100,000
Redemption of Nil units (2019: 11,180,346 units) - 1,166,961
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank charges paid 43 44
Profit on bank deposits earned 777 573
Profit on bank deposits received 720 601
Redemption of Nil units (2019: 3,659,439 units) - 357,740
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20.2

21.

Executives and their relatives

Issue of 24,877 units (2019: 79,393 units) 2,470 7,902
Redemption of 27,509 units (2019: 47,167 units) 2,555 4,831
Dividend paid 2 -

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Trustee remuneration 1,306 3,362
Service charges 77 203

Balances outstanding as at year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee 909 1,065
Sindh Sales Tax 118 139
Sales load payable 116 20
Selling and marketing payable 1,217 925
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 250 53
Investment held in the Fund : Nil units (2019: 164,082 units) - 14,979

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Investment held in the Fund: 2,539,414 units (2019: 2,539,414 units) 237,838 231,829
Bank balances 14,029 7,006
Mark-up receivable on deposits with banks 76 19
Dividend payable 813 -

MCBFSL Trustee - HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund
- Active Allocation Plan - Associate
Investment held in the Fund : 188,994 units (2019: 393,090 units) 17,701 35,886

MCBFSL Trustee - HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund
- Conservative Allocation Plan - Associate
Investment held in the Fund : Nil units (2019: 2,721 units) - 248

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable including sales tax thereon 103 120
Security deposit 100 100

Executives and their relatives
Investment held in the Fund : 5,941 units (2019: 49,299 units) 556 4,501

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's
risk management policies.

The Fund's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set

appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Fund's activities.
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21.1

21.1.1

21.1.2

b)

21.1.3

The Fund primarily invests in equity instruments that are carried at fair value through profit and loss.
The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure in marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee of the Fund
and the regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk; currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its operations are
geographically restricted to Pakistan and all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts. The net income for the year would have
increased / (decreased) by Rs. 0.350 million (2019: Rs. 0.557 million) had the interest rates on savings accounts with
the banks increased / (decreased) by 100 basis points.

Fair value interest rate risk

Presently, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instruments at June 30, 2020, that could expose the Fund to fair
value interest rate risk.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.

The Fund’s equity securities are primarily exposed to equity price risk because of investments held and classified by
the Fund on the statement of assets and liabilities as 'FVTOCI’ and 'FVTPL'. To manage its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities, the Fund diversifies its portfolio within the eligible stocks prescribed in the Fund's
constitutive documents. The Fund's constitutive documents / NBFC Regulations also limit investment in individual
equity securities to not more than 10% of its net assets, or 15% of the issued capital of the investee company and
the sector exposure limit to 35% of net assets.
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In case of 5% increase / (decrease) in the fair value of the Fund's equity securities on June 30, 2020, net assets of
the Fund would have increased / (decreased) by Rs. 26.905 million (2019: Rs. 29.280 million). In case of gains /
(losses) on equity securities in "fair value through profit and loss" category, the corresponding effect will be
reported in profit and loss.

21.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter parties fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk
mainly arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit exposure arising as a result of dividend
receivable on equity securities.

Management of credit risk

For banks and financial institutions, the Fund keeps deposits with reputed institutions. Credit risk on account of
dividend receivable is minimal due to the statutory protections. All transactions in listed securities are settled / paid
for upon delivery using the system of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited. The risk of default in these
transactions is considered minimal due to inherent systematic measures taken therein. The Fund's policy is to enter
into financial c+B102ontracts in accordance with the investment guidelines approved by the Investment
Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of the NBFC rules and the regulations and the guidelines given by
the SECP from time to time.

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the balances in deposit accounts with Banks with which the
Fund has kept such balances as at June 30, 2020:

Balance as at
June 30, 2020

Rupees in '000'

Latest available published

Name of the bank rating as at June 30, 2020

Rating agency

Savings Account

Habib Bank Limited 7,362 AAA JCR-VIS

Habib Bank Limited 6,667 AAA JCR-VIS

Al-Baraka Bank Limited 11 A+ PACRA

Dubai Islamic Bank 1,803 AA JCR-VIS

Banklslami Pakistan Limited 19,140 A+ JCR-VIS
34,983

Balance as at

Latest available published

Name of the bank rating as at June 30, 2019

June 30, 2019 Rating agency

Rupees in '000'

Savings Account

Habib Bank Limited 5,506 AAA JCR-VIS

Habib Bank Limited 1,500 AAA JCR-VIS

Bank Islami of Pakistan 48,164 A+ PACRA

Dubai Islamic Bank 469 AA JCR-VIS

Bank Al Baraka 10 A+ JCR-VIS
55,650
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2020 2019
---------- (Rupees in '000)----------
Dividend and profit receivable 457 2,347
Deposits and other receivables 2,600 2,600

The maximum exposure to credit risk before considering any collateral as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 is the
carrying amount of the financial assets. Investments in equity securities, however, are not exposed to credit risk.
None of these assets are 'impaired' nor 'past due but not impaired'.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Fund's portfolio of
financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties
thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

The Fund's major bank balance is held with three Banks. Management believes that these banks are reputed
institutions.

21.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset or such obligations will have to be settled in
a manner disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily settlement of equity securities and daily cash redemptions, if any, at the option of unit
holders. The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputation. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its
assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily
realisable.

The Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. The maximum amount available to the
Fund from the borrowing would be limited to fifteen % of the total net asset value of the Fund at the time of
borrowing and shall be repayable within 90 days. The facility would bear interest at commercial rates and would be
secured against the assets of the Fund. However, during the current year no borrowings were made by the Fund.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemption requests
in excess of 10% of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for
being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption
requests come down to a level below 10% of the units then in issue. However, no such instances were witnessed by
the Fund during the current year.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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------------------------ As at June 30,2020

More than three
Upto three More than one
months and upto ong Total

months year
year

Rupeesin '000

Financial Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company 2,610 - - 2,610
Payable to the Trustee 103 - - 103
Payable against purchase of equity instruments 2,800 - - 2,800
Dividend Payable 815 - - 815
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,208 - - 2,208

8,535 - - 8,535

------------------------ As atJune 30,2019

More than three

Upto three More than one

months and upto ong Total

months year
year

Rupees in '000

Financial Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company 2,202 - - 2,202
Payable to the Trustee 120 - - 120
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,515 - - 4,515
6,837 - - 6,837
22, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying
values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on the quoted market prices at
the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is
current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent

actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
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- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

(level 1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including

their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments - Listed equity securities

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Bank balances

Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up
Advances and deposits

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to Management Company

Payable to Trustee

Payable against purchase of equity instruments -

Dividend payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net assets attributable to redeemable units
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June 30, 2020

Carrying amount Fair Value

At Fair value At
through Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
profit or loss Cost
(Rupees in '000)
538,096 - 538,096 538,096 - - 538,096
538,096 - 538,096 538,096 - - 538,096
22.1
- 34,983 34,983
- 457 457
- 2,600 2,600
- 38,040 38,040
22.1
- 2,610 2,610
- 103 103
2,800 2,800
- 815 815
- 2,208 2,208
- 555,016 555,016
- 563,551 563,551
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June 30, 2019

Carrying amount Fair Value
At Fair
value At
through  Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total
profit or Cost
loss
Financial instruments (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fairvalue
Investments - Listed equity securities 585,604 - 585,604 585,604 - - 585,604
585,604 - 585,604 585,604 - - 585,604
Financial assets not measured at fairvalue 22.1
Bank balances - 55,650 55,650
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up - 2,347 2,347
Advances and deposits - 2,600 2,600
- 60,597 60,597
Financial liabilities not measured at fair 22.1
value
Payable to Management Company - 2,202 2,202
Payable to Trustee - 120 120
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 4,515 4,515
Net assets attributable to redeemable units - 635,161 635,161
- 641,998 641,998
22.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short
term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair
value.
22.2 Transfers during the year

During the year ended June 30, 2020, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfers into and out of level 3 financial instruments.

23. UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The amount
of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily
issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. These unit holders of the Fund are entitled to
distributions and to payment of a proportionate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the
redemption date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unit holders' fund.

- Monitor the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Fund pays to the unit holders;
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- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's
ability to restrict redemptions; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer of the Management
Company critically track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated
regarding key performance indicators, e.g., yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each

quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current year.

24. LIST OF TOP TEN BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID / PAYABLE

Top ten brokers during the year ended June 30, 2020

EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited
Next Capital Limited

Summit Capital (Pvt) Ltd
Taurus Securities Ltd.

AKD Securities Limited
Intermarket Securities Ltd.
IGI Finex Securities Limited

O 00 NO UL WN -

AL Falah Securities (Pvt) Ltd.
DJM Securities (Pvt) Ltd

=
o

Ismail Igbal Securities (Pvt) Limited

25. PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Details of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund as on June 30, 2020 are as follows:

S.no. Name Designation Qualification Experience in years

1 Mir Adil Rashid Chief Executive Officer BSc 21 + years

2 Adeel Abdul Wahab Head of Equity ACCA 12+ years

3 Raza Inam Acting Head of Research Bsc (Hons), CFA 7+ years

4 Karim Khawaja Head of Risk MBA, CMA 17 + years

26. PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

Cat Number of unit | Number of unit Investment Percentage

egory holders Held amount investment
(Rupeesin '000)

Individuals 371 2,841,859 266,164 48.0%

Associated Companies 1 2,539,413 237,837 42.9%

Retirement Funds 2 80,488 7,538 1.4%

Trust 1 188,995 17,701 3.2%

Others 2 8,719 817 0.2%

Foreign Investors (Individual) 2 266,491 24,959 4.50%

379 5,925,965 555,016 100%
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As at June 30, 2019----rmswrremmmeeereen

Cat Number of unit | Number of unit Investment Percentage
ategory holders Held amount investment
(Rupees in '000)
Individuals 326 1,321,960 120,685 19.00%
Associated Companies 2 2,703,496 246,809 38.86%
Retirement Funds 3 144,585 13,200 2.08%
Asset Management Company 2 395,811 36,135 5.69%
Trust 4 1,610,954 147,068 23.15%
Insurance companies 5 769,773 70,274 11.06%
Others 1 10,856 991 0.16%
343 6,957,434 635,161 100%
27. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on August 29,2019 ,October 29,2019, February 13, 2020 ,March
02,2020 and April 29, 2020 respectively. Information in respect of the attendance by the Directors in the meetings
is given below:

Number of meetings

S.No. Name of Director Held Attended Leave granted Meetings not attended
1 Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan * 1 1 0 4
2 Mr. Mir Adil Rashid 2 4 4 0 1
3 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 5 5 0 -
4 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 5 5 0 -
5 Mr. Rizwan Haider 5 5 0 -
6 Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi 5 5 0 -
7 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 5 5 0 -
8 Mr. Aamir Hasan Irshad?® 5 5 0 -
9 Mr. Atif Aslam Bajwa ** 2 1 1 3
1 Resigned on September 15, 2019.

2 Appointed on September 16, 2019.
3 Appointed on October 29, 2019.

4 Resigned on February 24, 2020.

5 Resigned on May 14, 2020.
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28. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 27, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

29. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during the
current year.

30. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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NAME OF FUND IHBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

NAME OF TRUSTEE Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
NAME OF AUDITORS BOD Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
NAME OF SHARIAH ADVISORS Al - Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited

NAME OF BANKERS Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Bank Al Baraka Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Askari Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited
Soneri Al Tijarah

Summit Bank

MCB Islamic Bank Limited
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As at June 30, 2020

FUND MANAGER’S REPORT —
HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Type and Category of Fund

Open end Shariah Compliant Income Fund

Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

The objective of the Fund is to provide competitive risk adjusted returns to its investors by investing in a diversified portfolio
of long, medium and short term Shariah compliant debt instruments while taking into account liquidity considerations. The

investment objective is achieved.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark

The Fund’s benchmark is average 6Month deposit rates of 3A Rated Islamic Banks or Islamic Windows of Conventional Banks

as per MUFAP.

The comparison of the fund return with benchmark is given below:

Month REL @) Benchmark
Fund

Jun-20 6.60% 5.89%
May-20 4.64% 6.59%
Apr-20 6.97% 6.57%
Mar-20 10.45% 6.58%
Feb-20 12.58% 6.82%
Jan-20 11.54% 6.80%
Dec-19 11.95% 6.70%
Nov-19 4.92% 6.50%
Oct-19 12.35% 6.32%
Sep-19 12.18% 6.09%
Aug-19 11.77% 5.71%
Jul-19 12.19% 5.42%

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

During the year, funds were majorly placed in the form of Corporate Sukuk, Cash Deposits and tenor placements which
yielded higher returns than the return available on the GoP ljarah Sukuk. During the year, fresh corporate investments were
initiated to support bottom line. The fund manager placed TDRs and COMs during the year to augment returns, however, all
placements were matured before June end due to maturities linked to Investment Plans. Owing to proactive changes in asset
allocation, HBL Islamic Income Fund posted an annualized return of 7.85% compared to benchmark return of 3.65%.

Asset Allocation

8%

Crbany, 1573

Asset Allocation for June 2020
Corsfizate of
Mpdaraba,

Asset Allocation for June 2019
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Fund Performance

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 198.51 million and Rs. 161.68 million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 101.5299 per unit as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs.
101.4883 per unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 10.45 per unit, thereby giving an annualized return
of 10.31%. During the same year the benchmark return (6 Month bank deposit rates) was 6.33%. The size of Fund was Rs. 1.42
billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 3.10 billion at the start of the year.

Money Market Review

FY20 was a tale of two half for the money market. SBP continued its monetary tightening stance in the first half of FY20 to
control the rising current account deficit and anchor increasing inflationary pressures. However post the Covid-19 pandemic
SBP turned dovish and decreased the interest rate by a cumulative 625bps to revive the economy.

As per latest data available, Islamic Banking industry assets posted 20.4% growth and stood at PKR 3,360 billion by Mar-20.
Similarly, deposits of Islamic banks also witnessed a sharp growth of 22.4% YoY and reached PKR 2,692 billion by Mar-20. The
government has issued Energy Sukuk-Il of PKR 200bn to partially retire the circular debt. This was a long term instrument and
SLR Eligible which helped the Islamic banks to park their excess liquidity. During the year the SBP conducted three “Variable
Rental Rate” ljara Auctions. The total offered amount was PKR 420bn, out of which PKR 198bn was accepted.

During the FY20, Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through domestic sources, and largely from
commercial banks. Government borrowed PKR 2,302bn from scheduled banks compared to retirement of PKR 875bn during
same period last year. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP declined by PKR 135bn during the period against
borrowing of PKR 3,078bn during same period last year. This shift in borrowing took place as IMF has restricted borrowing
from the central bank to avoid inflationary pressure. Going forward the government will continue to meet additional
borrowing requirements from the commercial banks.

In the monetary policy held in June-20, SBP decreased the policy rate by a further 100bps to 7.0%. Going forward, we feel that
the bulk of monetary easing has taken place and we are close to the bottom of the interest rate cycle. However, SBP has
indicated its monetary policy would remain data driven and we may witness another 50-100bps reduction in interest rate in
the calendar year.

Distribution

The Fund has distributed cash dividend up-to Rs. 10.45 per unit for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Fund.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From - To Number of Unit Total Number of Units

(Number of units) Holders Held
1 - 100 159 4,142
101 - 500 100 25,366
501 - 1,000 38 26,087
1,001 - 10,000 235 1,047,040
10,001 - 100,000 165 5,000,198
100,001 - 500,000 14 2,965,090
500,001 - 1,000,000 3 1,821,458
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 1 3,073,207
5,000,001 and above - -
Total 715 13,962,587
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Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders
Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.

Annual Report-2020



PERFORMANCE TABLE -
HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Net assets at the period end (Rs'000)

NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - RUPEES
Redemption
Offer

OFFER / REDEMPTION DURING THE PERIOD - RUPEES
Highest offer price per unit - Class C

Lowest offer price per unit - Class C

Highest offer price per unit - Class D

Lowest offer price per unit - Class D

Highest redemption price per unit

Lowest redemption price per unit

RETURN (%)

Total return
Income distribution
Capital growth

DISTRIBUTION

First Interin dividend distribution
Second Interin dividend distribution
Third Interin dividend distribution
First Interim dividend distribution (Rs)
Date of Income Distribution

Final Interin dividend distribution (Rs)
Date of Income Distribution

Total dividend distribution for the year (Rs)
AVERAGE RETURNS (% )

Average annual return 1 year
Average annual return 2 year
Average annual return 1 year
Average annual return 2 year
Average annual return 3 year

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June:

Bank Balances

GoP ljarah Sukuks

TFCs /Sukuks

Ceertificate of Modaraba
Placement with Banks and DFls
Corporate Sukuks

Others

Weighted average portfolio during (No. of days)

Note:
The Launch date of the Fund is May 29, 2014

Disclaimer:

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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2020

1,417,621

101.5299
103.2508

10.31%
10.45%
-0.14%

10.45%
26-Jun-20

0.10

10.31%
9.07%
7.76%

56.94%

31.89%

8.60%

2.57%

371

2019

3,103,484

101.4883
103.2085

103.2085
102.6902
110.9432
103.0902
109.0941
101.3719

7.85%
7.75%
0.10%

7.75%
26-Jun-19

0.08

7.85%
6.50%
6.18%

68.98%
0.00%

0.00%
24.20%
2.70%

618

2018

4,041,526

106.3013
108.1031

108.1031
102.6902
108.1031
102.6902
106.3013
100.9786

5.18%
5.00%
0.18%

5.00
4-Jul-18

5.00

5.18%
5.35%
5.18%

47.62%
0%

17.43%
33.39%
1.56%

618

2017

4,461,245

101.0691
102.7823

107.3662
102.2990
107.3662
102.2990
105.5767
100.7872

5.52%
5.20%
0.32%

4.85
22-Jun-17
0.35
30-Jun-17

5.20

5.52%
5.18%
6.24%

50%
33%

14%
3%

481

2016

226,967

100.7401
102.2512

106.7245
101.9324
106.7245
101.9324
105.1473
100.4260

4.82%
4.50%
0.32%

4.50
24-Jun-16

4.50

4.82%
6.59%
6.71%

82%

16%
2%

187

2015

359,343

100.3876
101.8934

109.6756
101.5694
109.6756
101.5694
108.0548
100.0684

8.37%
8.00%
0.37%

8.00
24-Jun-15

8.00

8.37%
8.45%

65%
22%

0%
11%
2%

198




CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office

CDC House, 99-8, Bladk: B’
5.0.C. H.5 Main Shahra-=-Fakcal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan

Teb (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021 - 23

LIRL: wawser cacpakistan.com
Emad: Info@cdepak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant o Regulation 41(h) and Clause 9 of Schedule ¥ of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Islamic Income
Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June
30, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(ii)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are camied oul in accordance with the
reguirements of the constinative documents of the Fund; and

(iii)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund,

e /
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limired

Karachi, September 24, 2020
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I4 B L ASSET MANAGEMENT LTD.

HBL Asset Managment Limited
Head Office

7th Floor

Emerald Tower

G-19 Block-5,

Main Clifton Road,

Clifton, Karachi

UAN (02I) I11-425-262

Fax (021) 35168455
www.hblasset.com
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Al-Hilal

——Shariah Advisors——

September 23, 2020

The purpose of this report is to provide an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the Fund’s investment
and operational activities with respect to Shariah guidelines provided,

It is the core responsibility of the Management Company to operate the Fund and invest the amount
of money in such a manner which is in compliance with the Shariah principles as laid out in the Shariah
guidelines. In the capacity of the Shariah Advisor, our responsibility lies in providing Shariah guidelines
and ensuring compliance with the same by review of activities of the fund. We express our opinion
based on the review of the information, provided by the management company, to an extent where
compliance with the Shariah guidelines can be objectively verified.

Our review of Fund’s activities is limited to enquiries of the personnel of Management Company and
various documents prepared and provided by the management company.

Keeping in view the above; we certify that:

We have reviewed all the investment and operational activities of the fund including all transactions
and found them to comply with the Shariah guidelines. On the basis of information provided by the
management company, all operations of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 comply with the
provided Shariah guidelines. Therefore, it is resolved that investments in HBL Islamic Income Fund
(HBL-1IF} managed by HEL Asset Management Company Limited are halal and in accordance with
Shariah principles.

May Allah {SWT) bless us and forgive our mistakes and accept our sincere efforts in accomplishment
of cherished tasks and keep us away from sinful acts.

For and on behalf of Shariah Supervisory Council of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited.

Y

Wﬂmz
er Shariah Council

Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt) Limited

Suite BOT. B™ Floor, Morkion Towen, Com 26, Eheyvaban-e-Saadi
Block 03 Clitton, Karachi

Tl #8021 -35305031-37, Wb swwe alhilalus com
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Tel: 52 21 1558 3030 ind Floar, Block-T
Fax: +52 21 3548 4139 Lekson Squars, Buildiag Mot
wharwt,bdo.com.pi Sarwar Shaheed Raac
Karachi- 74200
Baitaran

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HBL Islamic Income Fund (“the Fund™), which comprise the

tement of assets and labflities as at June 30, 2020, and the inccme statement, statement of
cemprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of movement in unit holders’ fund for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including = summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial positian of the Fund as at June 30, 2020, and its financial performance and its cdsh flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for opinion

We conducted gur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics far
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan [the Code),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accerdance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have cbtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mest significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do nat
prowide a separate opinfon on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

5.H0 | Key audit matter(s) | How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. | Existence and valuation of investments Our audit procedures included the following:
| &5 disclosed in note & to the financial |« We  evaluated the design  and
statements of the Fund for the vear ended implementation of key controls of
June 30, 2020, the investments held by the Investment and tested controls over
' Fund comprised of debt instruments which acquisition, disposals and  periedic
| represent 0% of the total assets of the Fund waluation of investments portfalio,

as at the year end.

; Page - 1
3D0 Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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[ 5.M0 | Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit
| As these investments represent a significant | «  We  performed  substantive  audit
element of the statement of assets and procedures on year-end balance of
liabilities, a discrepancy in the valuation or investment portfolio including review of
existence aof investments could cause the NAV custodian’s  statement, and related
te be materially misstated which would also | reconciliations and re-performance of
fmpact the Fund's reported performance as | debt instruments valuations on the basis
the waluation of investments is the main | of prices at the Mutual Fund AssocCiation
driver of movements in the performance of of Pakistan (MUFAP) as at June 30, 2020
the Fund. Further, the Fund is required to be and matching the valuation of investment
compliant with the requirements of Non- with that appearing in the financial
Banking Finance Companies and Maotified statements.
Entities  Regulations, 2008 (the MBFC
Regulations) with respect to investments., * We assessed the Fund's compliance with
the requirements of Non-Banking Finance
In wview of the significance of these Companies and  Notified  Entities
investments in relation to the total assets and Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations)
the MAV of the Fund, we have considered the in relation to the concentration of
existence and valuation of such invesiments investments and  exposure  limits
as a key audit matter. prescribed in  such Regulations and
reviewed the adequacy of disclosures as
may be applicable in situations of non-
compliance.
= We also evaluated the adequacy of the
overall  disclosures in the  financial |
statements in respect of the investment
portfolio  in  accordance with  the
reguirements of the NBFC Regulations
and whether the Fund‘s disclosures in
relation to the valuvation of investments
are compliant  with the relevant
accounting requirements.
- B Recegnition, measurement and | Qur audit procedures included the following:
presentation of ‘Element of Income” |
= We reviewed the processes and controls |
Hon-Banking Finance Companies and MNotified implemented by the Fund relating to the
Entities  Regulations, 2008 (the NEFC production  and  review of  system
Regulations) stipulates the requirements for generated reports and manual warkings
recognition, measurement and presentation for the purpose of calculations of
of element of income. element of income or loss and bifurcation

of amount paid on redemption af units
into “capital value” and “income already
paid on units redeemed”,

Page -1

EDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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| 5.HO

Key audit matter(s}

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As per the NBFC Regulations, element of
income is a transaction of capital nature and
the receipt and payment of element of
income is taken to unitholders' fund.
Furthermore, the MNBFC Regulations also
prescribes certain  disclosure reguirements
with respect to presentation of element of
income in the “Statement of Movement in Unit
Halders Fund'.

The MBFC Regulations explains that the
accounting income as appearing in the
‘Income Statement’ excludes the amount of
element of income and accounting income
available for distribution as appearing in the
‘Incame Statement” excludes income already
paid on units redeemed.

The Fund has to distribute not less than 90
percent of its accounting income for the year
(excluding capital gains whether realized or
unrealized). However, at the time of
distribution, in order to maintain the same
ex-dividend net asset value of all wunits
outstanding on the date of distribution, net
element of income contributed on issue of
units lying in unit holders fund will be
refunded on units in the same proportion as
dividend bears to accounting income
available for distribution.

Due to the complex calculations involved in
determining the element of income, the
related impact on financial statements and
ensuring compliance with the MNBFC
Regulations, we considered recognition, |
measurement and presentation of ‘Element of |
Income” as a key audit matter.

+  We evaluated the accuracy of system
generated reports and manual workings
produced by the Fund to ensure that the

ta s consistent with source documents
and the said workings are in compliance
with all the statutory provisions relating
to element of income or loss.

* We assessed the appropriateness of the
recognition, measurement and
presentation of “element of income /
logs” in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations. We also considered
the guidelines issued by MUFAP in respect
of the accounting for element of income
/! loss as per the NBFC Regulations and
assessed its implementation by the Fund.

= We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
with respect 1o element of income / loss
along with the adequacy of disclosures
with respect to ‘Income Statement’ and
Statement of Movement in Unit Holders'
Fund' in accordance with the MEBFC
Regulations, the reguirements of the
relevant financial reporting standards and
the guidance issued by MUFAP in relation
thereto.,

Information other than the financial staterments and auditer's report thereon

The Management Company is respensible for the ather fnfarmation. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather information
and we do not express zny form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility s to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
abtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this cther information; we are
required Lo report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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Responsibilities of the Management Company and its Board of Directors
L

The Management Company ("HBL Asset Management Limited”) of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
the Trust Deed, the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC
Rules), the Mon-Banking Finance Companies and Metified Entities Regulations, 2008 ({the NBFC
Regulations) and accounting and reporting standards as applicable n Pakistan and for such internal
control as the Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statermnents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting wnless the Management Company either intends to liquidate
the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management Company is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repart
that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance i5 a high level of assurance, but is net a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 154s as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughaut the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of materizl misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and cbtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our cpinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

+  Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Management Campany's internal control,

= Evaluate the approprizteness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Company.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management Company’s use of the gaing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significent doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in cur auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

= Page - 4
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclesures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors of the Management Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Management Compeny, we
determing those matters that were of most significance in the zudit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benafits
of such commumication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based cn our audit, we further report that in cur opinion the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, NBFC Rules and NEFC Regulations.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report s Zulfikar Al

Causer.
KARACH! lhl\-.: L—-—-—___-a-—'{
DATED: 2 T AUG 2020 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

sn_ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

Scope of our Work

We have performed an independent assurance engagement of HBL Islamic Incame Fund (the Fund),
to express an opinion on the annexed Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles (the
statement) for the year ended June 30, 2020, Our engagement was carried out as required under
Trust Deed and Shariah Principles of the Fund.

Applicable Criteria

The criteria for the assurance engagement against which the underlying statement (the subject
matter) is assessed comprises of compliance with the Shariah Principles specified in the Trust Deed
and the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor {criteria). Therefore, the underlying subject
matter may not be suitable for another purpose. Our engagement was carried out as required
under Trst Deed and Shariah Principles of the Fund,

Management Company's responsibility

management Company (HEL Asset Management Limited) of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the Statement (the subject matter) and for compliance with
the Shariah Principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor
{eriteria). This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control to
ensure that operations of the Fund and the investments made by the Fund are in campliance with
the Shariah Principles,

Our Independence and Quality Control

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. The firms apply International Standard on Quality Contrel 1 “Queality
Control for Firms That Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, And Other Assurance
and Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintain a comprehensive system of gualily
control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical
requirements, prefessional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Responsibility of independent assurance providers

Our responsibility is to express our conclusion on the Statement based on our independent
assurance engagement, porformed in accordance with the International Standards on Assurance
Engagement (ISAE 3000) ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information’. This standard requires that we plan and perform the engagement to obtain
reasenable assurance whether the Statement reflects the status of the Fund's compliance with Lhe
Shariah Principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor and
is free from material misstatement.

Page - 1
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The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
nan-compliances with the Shariah Principles whether due to fraud or errar. In making those risk
assessments, we have considered internal contrels relevant ta the Funds compliance with the
principles in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, for gathering
sufficient appropriate evidence to delermine that the Fund was not materially non-compliant with
the principles, Our engagement was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

The pracedures perfonmed included:

- * Checking compliance of specified guidelines fssued by the Shariah Advisor relating Lo charity,
maintaining bank accounts and for making investments of the Fund; and

+ Checking that the Shariah Advisor has certified that the operations of the Fund and investments
made by the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2020 are in campliance with the Shariah
Principles and where required, purification of income from non-compliant sources has been
made in consultation with the Sharial Advisor,

Conclusion

In our opinion, the Statement, in all material respects, presents fairly the status of the Funds
compliance wilh the Shariah principles specified In the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the
Shariah Advisor for the year ended June 30, 2020,

KARACHI &\u W [I.

DATED: SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 BDO EBRAHIM & CO,
A CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

| R i
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
ASSETS
Bank balances 5 827,655 2,164,208
Investments 6 588,517 888,592
Profit receivable 7 29,616 76,919
Deposits and prepayments 8 7,828 7,798
TOTAL ASSETS 1,453,616 3,137,517
LIABILITIES
Payable to the Management Company 9 2,863 7,001
Payable to the Trustee 10 104 407
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 328 3,049
Payable against redemption of units 1,495 199
Dividend payable 257 3,864
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 30,947 19,513
TOTAL LIABILITIES 35,994 34,033
NET ASSETS 1,417,621 3,103,484
UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 1,417,621 3,103,484
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13
------- Number of units -------
Number of units in issue 14 13,962,587 30,579,719
------------ Rupees ------=-----
Net assets value per unit 101.5299 101.4883
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
Income
Capital loss on sale of investment - net (3,582) (711)
Income from Government securities 97 -
Income from Corporate Sukuk Bonds 76,820 140,764
Income from commercial papers and term deposit receipts 14,388 80,361
Profit on bank deposits 115,817 171,920
204,421 392,334
Unrealised diminution on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial assets at 'fair value through profit or loss' - net 6.3 (5,913) (12,157)
198,508 380,177
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 9.1 20,828 39,448
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 9.2 2,708 5,128
Remuneration of the Trustee 10.1 1,230 4,305
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 10.3 160 560
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 111 328 3,049
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 2,054 4,065
Selling and marketing expense 9.4 4,935 7,454
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and flotation costs - 740
Auditors' remuneration 15 237 236
Fee and subscription 366 377
Security transaction costs and settlement charges 154 918
Bank charges 314 271
Shariah advisory charges 214 210
33,528 66,761
Net income for the year from operating activities 164,980 313,416
Provision for Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund 12.2 (3,300) (6,268)
Net income for the year before taxation 161,680 307,148
Taxation 16 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 161,680 307,148

Allocation of net income for the year

Income already paid on redemption of units 70,247 190,292
Accounting income available for distribution:

Relating to capital gains - -

Excluding capital gains 91,433 116,856
91,433 116,856
161,680 307,148

Earnings per unit 17

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Net income for the year after taxation 161,680 307,148
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 161,680 307,148
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Statement Of Movement In Unitholders' Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
ol Uty Col Ukt
----------------------- (Rupees in '000)-----===-=-nn==nnnnnnun
Net assets at beginning of the year 3,049,443 54,041 3,103,484 3,947,620 93,906 4,041,526
Issuance of 33,076,633 units (2019: 50,089,542 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year) 3,357,013 - 3,357,013 | | 5,074,137 - 5,074,137
Element of income 150,997 - 150,997 151,746 - 151,746
Total proceeds on issuance of units 3,508,010 - 3,508,010 5,225,883 - 5,225,883
Redemption of 49,693,765 units (2019: 57,529,346 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year) (5,043,400) - | (5,043,400)| |(5,827,800) - (5,827,800)
Income already paid on redemption of units - (70,247) (70,247) - (190,292) (190,292)
Element of loss (108,400) - (108,400) (30,869) - (30,869)
Total payments on redemption of units (5,151,800)  (70,247) (5,222,047) (5,858,669) (190,292) (6,048,961)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 161,680 161,680 - 307,148 307,148
Annual distribution Rs. 5 per unit declared on July 04, 2018 as cash dividend
Refund of capital - - - (145,445) - (145,445)
Distribution during the year - - - - (44,653) (44,653)
Interim distribution
Rs. 7.75 per unit declared on June 25, 2019 as cash dividend
Refund of capital - - - (119,946) - (119,946)
Distribution during the year - - - - (112,068) (112,068)
Rs. 10.45 per unit declared on June 26, 2020 as cash dividend
Refund of capital (42,383) - (42,383) - - -
Distribution during the year - (91,124) (91,124) - - -
(42,383) 70,556 28,173 (265,391) 150,427 (114,964)
Net assets at end of the year 1,363,270 54,350 1,417,621 3,049,443 54,041 3,103,484
Undistributed income brought forward
Realised income 66,198 106,089
Unrealised loss (12,157) (12,183)
54,041 93,906
Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital - -
Excluding capital gains 91,433 116,856
91,433 116,856
Distributions during the year:
Annual distribution of Rs. 5 per unit declared on July 04, 2018 as cash dividend - (44,653)
Interim distribution of Rs. 7.75 per unit declared on June 25, 2019 as cash dividend - (112,068)
Interim distribution of Rs 10.45 per unit declared on June 26, 2020 as cash dividend (91,124) -
(91,124) (156,721)
Undistributed income carried forward 54,350 54,041
Undistributed income carried forward
Realised income 60,263 66,198
Unrealised loss (5,913) (12,157)
54,350 54,041
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 101.4883 106.3013
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 101.5299 101.4883
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year before taxation 161,680 307,148

Adjustments for:

Capital loss on sale of investments - net 3,582 711
Income from Government securities (978) -
Income from corporate sukuk bonds (76,820) (140,764)
Income from commercial papers and term deposit receipts (14,388) (80,361)
Profit on bank deposits (115,817) (171,920)
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs - 740
Unrealised diminution on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss - net 5,913 12,157
(36,828) (72,289)
Decrease / (Increase) in assets
Investments - net 290,580 494,668
Receivable against sale of investments - net - 10,156
Deposits and prepayments (30) (3,348)
290,550 501,476
Increase / (Decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company (4,138) 3,693
Payable to the Trustee (303) (14)
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (2,721) (282)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11,435 9,898
4,273 13,295
Cash generated from operations 257,995 442,482
Income received from Government securities 978 -
Income received from corporate sukuk bonds 85,887 138,915
Income received from commercial papers and term deposit receipts 11,323 77,006
Profit received on bank deposits 157,118 132,288
255,306 348,209
Net cash generated from operating activities 513,301 790,691

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issue of units 3,508,010 5,225,883
Payments against redemption of units (5,220,751) (6,150,759)
Dividend paid (137,113) (418,268)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,849,854) (1,343,144)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,336,553) (552,453)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,164,208 2,716,661
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 827,655 2,164,208

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Islamic Income Fund ('the Fund') was established under a trust deed executed between PICIC Asset
Management Company Limited (now, HBL Asset Management Limited), as the Management Company, and Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), as the Trustee. The Fund was approved by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/PIIF/949/2014 dated April 4, 2014 and the
Trust Deed was executed on February 20, 2014.

Through an order dated August 31, 2016 SECP approved merger of PICIC Asset Management Company Limited with
and into HBL Asset Management Limited effective from August 31, 2016 and the trust deed was revised on
February 17, 2017. Effective from September 1, 2016, HBL Asset Management Limited became Management
Company of the Fund, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Bank Limited. The Agha Khan Fund for Economic
Development (AKFED), S.A. is the parent company of Habib Bank Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and has obtained the
requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered office of the Management
Company is at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund has been categorised as a Shariah Compliant Income Scheme as per the criteria laid down by the SECP for
categorization of open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can be
redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide competitive risk adjusted returns to its investors by investing in
a diversified portfolio of long, medium and short term Shariah compliant debt instruments while taking into
account liquidity considerations.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a management quality rating of 'AM2+' (AM Two Plus) to the
Management Company and assigned stability rating of A+(f) to the Fund as at December 31, 2019 and December
30, 2019, respectively.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of

the Fund.
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance
2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the 'NBFC Regulations'), the directives issued by the SECP and
the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued by the SECP and
requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC
Regulations, the directions issued by the SECP and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except certain financial assets
which are measured at fair value.

These financial statements have been prepared under accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow information.
2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and presentation
currency.

2.4 Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise
judgement in application of accounting policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based
on the historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are
significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

Classification and valuation of investments
For details please refer notes 4.2.1.1 and 18 to these financial statements.

Impairment of investment
For details please refer notes 4.2.1.2 to these financial statements.

Provision for taxation
For details please refer notes 4.4 and 16 to these financial statements.

Other assets
Judgement is involved in assessing the realisability of other assets' balances.

3 NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED STANDARDS
3.1 Amendments that are effective in current year and relevant to the Fund

The Fund has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:
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Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 - Original Issue

IFRS 7  Financial Instruments : Disclosures - additional hedge accounting disclosures(and
consequential amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge
accounting chapter in IFRS 9 July 01, 2018

IFRS9 Financial Instruments - reissue to incorporate a hedge accounting chapter and
permit the early application of the requirements for presenting in other
comprehensive income the 'own credit' gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated under the fair value option without early applying the other
requirements of IFRS 9 July 01, 2018

IFRS9 Financial Instruments - finalised version, incorporating requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge accounting and
derecognition July 01, 2018

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements-amendments to permit
an entity to elect to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements in
IAS39 for a fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a
portfolio of financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied, and to
extend the fair value option to certain contracts that meet the 'own use' scope
exception July 01, 2018

3.2 Amendments that are effective in current year and not relevant to the Fund
The Fund has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard and are

not relevant to the fund:

IFRS2 Share-based Payment - amendments to clarify the classification and
measurement of share-based payment transactions January 01, 2018

IFRS4 Insurance Contracts - amendments regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 01, 2018

IFRS5 Additional hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments)

resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9 July 01, 2018
IFRS8 Amendments regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 01, 2018
IFRS 15 Original issue July 01, 2018
IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 July 01, 2018

IAS40 Investment Property - amendments to clarify transfers of property to, or from,
investment property January 01, 2018
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Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements made to IFRS

that became effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 — 2016) Cycle:

IFRS 1

IAS 28

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from

the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38,IFRIC 12,
IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to update these pronouncements with regard to
references to and quotes from the framework or to indicate where they refer to different
version of the Conceptual Framework.

IFRS 3

IFRS 8

IFRS 9

IAS 1

IAS 8

IAS 19

IAS 17

IAS 28

Business Combinations - amendments to clarify the definition of a business

Amendments regarding prepayment features with negative compensation and
modifications of financial liabilities

Financial Instruments - amendments regarding prepayment features with
negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities negative

compensation and modifications of financial liabilities

Presentation of Financial Statements - amendments regarding the definition of
materiality

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - amendments
regarding the definition of materiality

Employee benefits - amendments regarding plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements

Amendments regarding plan amendments, curtailments or settlements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - amendments regarding long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures

Effective date
(annual periods

beginning on or after)

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

The annual improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against respective standards:

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2015 — 2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3

Business Combinations

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IAS 12
IAS 23

Income Taxes

Borrowing Costs
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

3.4 Standards or interpretations not yet effective
The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have
been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan effective from the dates mentioned
against the respective standard:

IFRS 16 Leases January 01, 2019

The Funds expects that the adoption of IFRS 16 will not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the
Funds's financial statements in the period of initial application.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 14Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 17Insurance Contracts

The Funds expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards will not have
any material impact and therefore will not affect the Funds's financial statements in the period of initial application.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabilities
at nominal amount.

4.2 Financial instruments

4.2.1 Financial assets

4.2.1.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment, FVOCI — equity investment or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a

financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
income statement.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses (refer note 4.2.1.2). Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in income statement.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in income statement. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in OCIl. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to income statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in income statement unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never reclassified to
income statement.

4.2.1.2 Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized.
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4.2.1.3

4.2.14

4.2.2

4.23

4.3

The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pattern of deterioration or
improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or
provision depends on the extent of credit deterioration since initial recognition. Under the general approach, there
are two measurement bases

- 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from initial recognition) as long as there is no significant
deterioration in credit quality.

- Lifetime ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred on an
individual or collective basis.

The Fund's financial assets include mainly investment, deposits, dividend and profit receivable, receivable against
sale of investment and bank balances.

SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred the applicability of
above impairment requirements in relation to debt securities for mutual funds. Meanwhile, asset management
companies shall continue to follow the requirements of Circular 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 in relation to
impairment of debt securities.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and
liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation

and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.
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4.4 Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed in cash to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate
Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing
the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least 90% of its accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

4.5 Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are not
recognised before the reporting date.

4.6 Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications
received by the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per
unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any
provision for duties and charges, if applicable.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net assets value
per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any duties, taxes, charges on
redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable. Redemption of units is recorded on acceptance
of application for redemption.

4.7 Element of income
Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption
date, as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting
period. Element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is
taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on
the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on
units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.

4.8 Net assets value per unit

The net assets value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

4.9 Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gains/ (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date
at which the transaction takes place.

- Profit / return on Government securities, bank profits and investment in debt securities are recognized at a time
apportionment basis using the effective interest method.

Annual Report-2020



HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

4.10

4.11

4.12

5.1

6.1

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses are recognised in the 'income statement' on a time apportionment
basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end exchange
rates are recognised in the income statement.

Transactions with related parties / connected persons

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are based at arm's length at normal commercial rates on the
same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

2020 2019
BANK BALANCES Note ~  --—---m- (Rupees in '000)----------
Cash at bank
In savings accounts 5.1 800,624 2,164,187
In current accounts 27,031 21
827,655 2,164,208

These accounts carry profit at rates ranging between 7.50% and 13.50% (2019: 6.50% and 12.5%) per annum.
This includes an amount held by a related party (Habib Bank Limited) amounting to Rs. 30.8 million (2019: Rs.
144.066 million) on which return is earned at 7.74% (2019: 8.00%) per annum.

INVESTMENTS

Financial assets:

At fair value through profit or loss 6.1 463,517 759,168
At amortised cost 6.2 125,000 129,424
588,517 888,592

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Government Securities
GOP ljarah Sukuk Certificate 6.1.5 - -
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 6.1.1 463,517 759,168
463,517 759,168
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6.1.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Corporate Sukuk Bonds
Number of units . Un-realised Market value as a
‘ Market Carrying value | onre- percentage of
Name of the investee company Note s at Purcha.ses made S_ales s at ) val\;eoa;:;o as atzlouzn: 30, measurement of Total Net
July 1, 2009 | Curing the during the | | e 30, 2020 || "> investment investments assets
year year
--------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------==-=-nermmem
Corporate Sukuk Bonds - listed
International Brands Limited 1,100 - - 1,100 77,796 76,327 1,469 13.22% 5.49%
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited * 450 - 100 350 28,510 27,930 580 4.84% 2.01%
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited * 751 357 751 357 25,238 24,990 248 4.29% 1.78%
2,301 357 851 1,807 131,544 129,247 2,297 22% 9.28%
Corporate Sukuk Bonds - unlisted
AGP Limited 2,642 - 1,650 992 39,738 39,680 58 6.75% 2.80%
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 190 - 136 54 55,417 54,000 1,417 9.42% 3.91%
Ghani Gases Limited 1,530 - - 1,530 66,818 76,500 (9,682) 11.35% 4.71%
Agha Steel Industries Limited 6.13 95 - - 95 95,000 95,000 - 16.14% 6.70%
Hub Power Company Limited 190320 6.1.3 - 350 - 350 35,000 35,000 - 5.95% 2.47%
Hub Power Company Limited 190520 6.1.3 - 400 - 400 40,000 40,000 - 0.07 2.82%
4,457 750 1,786 3,421 331,972 340,180 (8,207) 56% 23%
Total - as atJune 30, 2020 6,758 1,107 2,637 5,228 463,517 469,427 (5,913) 79% 32.70%
Total -as atJune 30, 2019 42,040 127,224 162,506 6,758 759,168 771,325 (12,157) 85% 24.46%

* Related party (associated company) due to common directorship.

6.1.2 These Corporate Sukuk Bonds carry profit at the rates ranging from 9.14 % t014.93 % (2019: 5.97% to 10.46% ) per
annum.

6.1.3 These Sukuks are in the process of listing. Therefore, market value of these Sukuks are not yet available, however,
Management believes that the fair value of these Sukuks are approximately equal to its cost.

6.1.4 Significant terms and conditions of Corporate Sukuk Bonds as at June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Name of the investee company Remaining p:::lldp)al (per sukuk (:::::1::::) | Issue date ‘ Maturity date
Corporate Sukuk Bonds - listed
International Brands Limited 12 Month Kibor + 0.50% 15-Nov-17 15-Nov-21
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 3 Month Kibor + 1% 16-Nov-17 16-Nov-22
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 3 Month Kibor + 1% 01-Mar-18 01-Mar-23
Corporate Sukuk Bonds - unlisted
AGP Limited 3 Month Kibor +1.30% 09-Jun-17 09-Jun-22
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 6 Month Kibor +0.50% 14-Jul-17 14-Jul-27
Ghani Gases Limited 3 Month Kibor + 1% 05-Feb-17 02-Feb-23
Agha Steel Industries Limited 3 Month Kibor + 1% 09-Oct-18 09-Oct-24
Hub Power Company Limited 19/03/20 3 Month Kibor + 1.90% 19-Mar-20 22-Aug-23
Hub Power Company Limited 19/05/20 3 Month Kibor + 1.90% 19-May-20 22-Aug-23
6.1.5 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- GoP ljara Sukuk Certificates
Un-realised
Face value . " re.a |.se Market value as
Market Carryingvalue | appreciation/ N ¢ Market value asa
Issue details Tenure Asat Purchases Sales/ Asat value asatJune | asatJune 30, | (diminution)on apercen Iage ° percentage of net
July1, duringthe | matured during June 30, 30,2020 2020 re-measurement | fotal assets
2019 year the year 2020 ofinvestment investments
Rupeesin ‘000
GOP ljarah Sukuk - 187,500 187,500 -
Total -as atJune 30,2020 - 187,500 187,500 -
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6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

7.1

2020 2019
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Financial assets at amortised cost
Commercial Papers 6.2.1 - 129,424
Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 6.2.3 125,000 -
125,000 129,424
Financial assets at amortised cost - Commercial papers
As at Placement Income Matured As at Percentage Percentage
Name of investee company July 1, made during accrued during the June 30 of total of of net
2019 the year year 2020 investments assets
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------==mnnnnmmmmeeeee
Karachi Electric (6.2.2) 116,177 8,823 125,000
Hascol Petroleum Limited (6.2.2) 129,424 - 576 130,000
Total - as at June 30, 2020 129,424 116,177 9,399 255,000

As at June 30, 2020, Commercial paper issued by Hascol Petroleum Limited and Karachi Electric had a carrying value
of Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 129.424 million). It matured on July 15, 2019 and March 19, 2020 respectively.

Financial assets at amortised cost - Term Deposit Receipts

As at Placements Matured As at Percentage | Percentage
Name of investee company July 1, made during | during the June 30, of total of of net
2019 the year year 2020 investments assets
-------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------=--=-==-=--=--=-
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited - 165,000 165,000 - - -
First Habib M odarba (6.2.4) - 125,000 - 125,000 21% 9%
Total - as at June 30, 2020 - 290,000 165,000 125,000 21% 9%
This carries profit at the rate of 11.1% (2019: Nil) and will be matured on July 3,2020.
2020 2019
Note ~  —------- (Rupees in '000)----------
Net unrealised diminution on re-measurement of
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - net
Market value of investments 463,517 759,168
Less: Carrying value of investments (469,427) (771,325)
(5,913) (12,157)
PROFIT RECEIVABLE
Profit receivable on:
Bank deposits 7.1 11,011 52,312
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 7.2 15,540 24,607
Term Deposit Receipts 3,065 -
29,616 76,919

This includes Rs. 3.27 million (2019: Rs. 0.09 million ) receivable from Habib Bank Limited, which is a related party.
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7.2 This includes Rs. 0.451 million (2019: Rs. 1.588 million ) receivable from Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited,
which is a related party due to common directorship.
2020 2019
Note =----—-- (Rupees in '000)----------
8 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits with:
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 7,499 7,499
7,599 7,599
Prepaid rating fee 229 199
7,828 7,798
9 PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Remuneration payable to the Management Company 9.1 1,409 3,889
Sindh Sales Tax payable on Management
Company's remuneration 9.2 505 505
Sales load payable 38 104
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 122 341
Selling and marketing expense payable 9.4 789 2,162
2,863 7,001
9.1 As per the regulation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company shall charge a fee, subject to

maximum limit of 1.5% per annum of average annual net assets of the fund. During the year, the management fee
has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.5% to 1.385% of the average annual net assets of the Fund. The
fee is being charged at the rate of 1.385% from October 1, 2019 onwards. The fee is payable monthly in arrears.

9.2 The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (2019: 13%) on the remuneration of the
Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

9.3 As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses related to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS.
Previously, such expenses were chargeable maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets of the Scheme or
the actual cost, whichever is lower.

However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 639(1)/2019, dated June 20, 2019, has removed the maximum limit of 0.1%. During the
year, the fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.1% to 0.3% of the average annual net assets of the
Fund. The fee is being charged at the rate of 0.1% from October 1, 2019 onwards.

9.4 As per SECP vide its circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/361/2016, dated December 30, 2016, selling and marketing
expenses was chargeable to open end equity, upto maximum 0.4% of the average annual net assets of the Scheme
or the actual cost, whichever is lower.

However, circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/04/2019, dated July 5, 2019, issued by SECP, supersedes all previous
circulars issued with respect to selling and marketing expenses, according to which, selling and marketing expenses
is allowed all categories of open end mutual funds, except fund of funds with no cap. During the year, the fee has
been charged at the rate ranging between 0.2% to 0.75% of the average annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is
being charged at the rate of 0.2% from October 1, 2019 onwards.
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10

10.1

10.2

10.3

11

11.1

12

2020 2019
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE Note - (Rupees in '000)———-
Trustee fee payable 10.1 92 360
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of the Trustee 10.3 12 47
104 407

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the
Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the average annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to
the Trustee monthly in arrears.

Earlier, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund was as follows:

Upto Rs. 1 billion 0.17% p.a. of net assets
Rs. 1 billion to Rs. 5 billion Rs. 1.7 million plus 0.085% p.a. of net assets exceeding Rs. 1 billion
Over Rs. 5 billion Rs. 5.1 million plus 0.07% p.a. of net assets exceeding Rs. 5 billion

However, CDC, vide notification CDC/CEO/L-112/02/2019, dated June 27, 2019, has revised the rates of the Trustee
fee, with effect from July 1, 2019, according to which, Trustee fee shall be charged at the rate of 0.075% of the
average annual net assets of the Fund. During the year, Management Company has charged the Trustee fee
accordingly.

The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2019: 13%) on the Trustee fee through the
Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

2020 2019
PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND Note ~  ---------- (Rupees in '000)----------
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee payable 11.1 328 3,049

Under the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) categorised as an income
scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.075% of the average annual net assets
of the Scheme. However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 685 (1)/2019, dated June 28, 2019, has reduced the rate of the fee to
0.02% of the average annual net assets for all categories of CIS(s), with effect from July 1, 2019. During the year,
Management Company has charged the fee accordingly. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Provision for Federal Excise Duty 12.1 1,344 1,344
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.2 15,309 12,010
Withholding tax payable 13,542 5,461
Auditors' remuneration 168 169
Printing charges 217 238
Brokerage payable 49 83
Other payables 318 208

30,947 19,513
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12.1 As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration
of the Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the
view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double
taxation, which does not appear to be in the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed by the Mutual
Fund Association of Pakistan along-with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited with the Sindh High Court
(SHC) on September 04, 2013.

While disposing the above petition through order dated June 30, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be
ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities
subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for
the decision.

The Finance Act, 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no
provision has been charged for the years ended June 30, 2020, June 30, 2019, June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company, has retained a
provision of FED on remuneration of Management Company, aggregating to Rs. 1.344 million (2019: Rs. 1.344
million). Had the provision not been provided for, the net asset value per unit as at June 30, 2020 would have been
higher by Re. 0.096 (2019: Re. 0.044) per unit.

12.2 Workers' Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
The legal status of applicability of Worker's Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund is the same as disclosed
in note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019 and a
constitutional petition filed by certain CISs, through their trustees, in the Honourable High Court of Sindh,
challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs, is pending adjudication.
As at June 30, 2020, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 15.309 million (2019: Rs. 12.010 million).
Had the provision not being made, the net asset value per unit as at June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Re.
1.096 (2019: Re. 0.393) per unit.

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments as at June 30, 2020 (2019: Nil).

14 NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 2020 2019
Note = - Number of Units--------

Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 30,579,719 38,019,523

Add: Units issued during the year 33,076,634 50,089,542

Less: Units redeemed during the year (49,693,765) (57,529,346)

Total units in issue at the end of the year 13,962,588 30,579,719
15 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 2020 2019

Note ~  -—----mmm- (Rupees in '000)----------

Annual audit fee 140 140

Fee for half yearly review 60 60

Other certifications and out of pocket expenses 37 36

237 236
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16 TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as reduced
by the capital gains whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also
exempt from the provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management
Company has distributed atleast 90% of the Fund's accounting income as reduced by capital gains (whether
realised or unrealised) for the year ending June 30, 2020 to its unit holders.

17 EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed in these financial statements as in the opinion of the Management
Company the determination of the cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
---------------- As at June 30, 2020 ---------=------
Fair value Amortized
Particulars through profit cost Total
or loss
Financialassets e Rupees in '000'------=-=====zmeeooeee
Bank balances - 827,655 827,655
Investments
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 463,517 - 463,517
Term Deposit Receipts - 125,000 125,000
Profit receivable - 29,616 29,616
Deposits - 7,599 7,599
463,517 989,870 1,453,387
---------------- As at June 30, 2020 ----------------
Fair value Amortized
Particulars through profit cost Total
or loss
Financial liabilites e Rupees in '000'------=======-mmoooee
Payable to the Management Company - 2,358 2,358
Payable to the Trustee - 92 92
Payable against redemption of units - 1,495 1,495
Dividend payable - 257 257
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 638 638
- 4,841 4,841
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Fair value Amortized
Particulars through profit cost Total
or loss
Financialassets s Rupees in '000'---------------mooooev
Bank balances - 2,164,208 2,164,208
Investments
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 759,168 - 759,168
Commercial Papers - 129,424 129,424
Profit receivable - 76,919 76,919
Deposits - 7,599 7,599
759,168 2,378,150 3,137,318
---------------- Asat June 30, 2019 -
Fair value Amortized
Particulars through profit cost Total
or loss
Financial liabilities e Rupees in '000'----------------------
Payable to the Management Company - 6,496 6,496
Payable to the Trustee - 360 360
Payable against redemption of units - 199 199
Dividend payable - 3,864 3,864
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 574 574
- 11,493 11,493
19 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management Company, Habib Bank
Limited, being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other
collective investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management
Company and directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of
the fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms
determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed, respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements are as follows:
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19.1 Transactions during the year 2020 2019

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company 20,828 39,448
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 2,708 5,128
Sales load 38 836
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 2,054 4,065
Selling and marketing expense 4,935 7,454
Issue of Nil (2019: 245,246) units - 25,000
Redemption of Nil (2019: 245,246) units - 25,096

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration of the trustee 1,230 4,305
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the trustee 160 560
CDS service charges 24 147

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsors

Bank charges paid 238 728
Profit on bank deposit account 16,097 137
Issue of Nil (2019: 119,554) units - 12,111
Redemption of Nil (2019: 2,541,753) units - 269,961
Dividend paid - 7,151

Directors and executives of the Management Company

Issue of 32,790 units (2019: 336,976 units) 3,454 35,282
Redemption of 62,917 units (2019: 517,269 units) 6,679 54,439
Dividend income 57 954
Dividend Paid 14 1,471

HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees' Gratuity Fund
Issue of 479 (2019: 534) units 49 54
Dividend paid 49 43

HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees' Provident Fund
Issue of 2,577 (2019: 2,873) units 262 291
Dividend paid 262 222

MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund
Active Allocation Plan - Fund under common management

Issue of 163,913 (2019: 613,241) units 16,904 64,287
Redemption of 535,144 (2019: 692,711) units 55,856 72,687
Dividend paid 4,162 3,901

MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund
Conservative Allocation Plan - Fund under common management

Issue of 87,252 (2019: 30,112) units 9,399 3,071
Redemption of 223,101 (2019: 163,827) units 24,019 16,984
Dividend paid 93 1,007
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MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Financial Planning
Fund Strategic Allocation Plan - Fund under common management

Issue of 55,353 (2019: 25,662,538) units 5,733 2,696,594
Redemption of 21,259,349 (2019: 24,849,835) units 2,168,358 2,654,035
Dividend paid - 69,591

Archroma Pakistan Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund -

Associated company due to common Directorship

Issue of 64,855 (2019: 630,163) units 6,585 68,311
Dividend paid 6,585 89

Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited -

Associated company due to common Directorship

Purchase of 357 (2019: 450) Corporate Sukuk Bonds 24,990 44,316
Sale of 851 (2019: 4,569) Corporate Sukuk Bonds 73,791 498,673

Dewan Petroleum (Private) Limited

Issue of 3,073,207 (2019: Nil) units 315,610 -
Dividend Paid 25,792 -
Jubliee Life Insurance Company Limited - Associated

Company due to common Directorship

Sale of GOP ljarah sukuk 87,500

19.2 Balances outstanding as at year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration payable to the Management Company 1,409 3,889
Sindh Sales Tax payable on Management Company's remuneration 505 505
Sales load payable 38 104
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 122 341
Selling and marketing expense payable 789 2,162

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Trustee fee payable 104 407
Security deposit 100 100

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank balances 30,805 144,066
Accrued profit on bank balances 3,270 92

HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees' Gratuity Fund
Units held: 5,137 (2019: 4,658) 522 473

HBL Asset Management Limited - Employees' Provident Fund
Units held: 27,619 (2019: 25,042) 2,804 2,541

MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund
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Active Allocation Plan - Fund under common management
Units held: 467,209 (2019: 838,440) 47,436 85,092

MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Financial Planning Fund
Conservative Allocation Plan - und under common management
Units held: 52,179 (2019: 14,026) 5,298 14,211

MCBFSL Trustee HBL Islamic Financial Planning
Fund Strategic Allocation Plan - Fund under common management
Units held: Nil (2019: 21,203,996) - 2,151,958

Directors and executives of the Management Company
Units held: 5,989 units (2019: 23,111) units 608 5,685

Archroma Pakistan limited Employees Gratuity Fund
Associated company due to common Directorship
Units held: 695,019 (2019: 630,163) 70,565 63,954

Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited -

Associated company due to common Directorship

Investment in Corporate Sukuk Bonds:

707 (2019: 1,201) certificates 53,748 112,278
Profit receivable on Corporate Sukuk Bonds 451 502

Dewan Petroleum (Private) Limited
Units held: 3,073,207 (2019: Nil) 312,022 -

20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's
risk management policies.
The Fund's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Fund's activities.
The Fund primarily invests in a portfolio of long, medium and short term Shariah compliant debt instruments and
money market placements. These activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, market risks, credit risks and
liquidity risks.

20.1 Market risk

Market risk is a risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure in marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee of the Fund
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and the regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
Market risk comprises of three types of risk; currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

20.1.1 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present, is not exposed to currency risk as its full transactions are
carried out in Pakistan Rupees.

20.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market interest rates.

a) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Fund is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk for balances in certain savings accounts, the interest rates on
which range between 7.50% to 14.93% per annum, and against investments in Term Deposit Receipt and Corporate
Sukuk Bonds, the interest rate on which range between 10.50% to 11.10% and 19.14% to 14.93%, respectively.

In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in interest rates on June 30, 2020, with all other variables held
constant, the net income for the year and the net assets would have been higher / lower by Rs. 13.76 million (2019:
Rs. 27.48 million).

b) Fair value interest rate risk
The Fund's investment in Corporate Sukuk Bonds expose it to fair value interest rate risk.

In case of 100 basis points increase in rates announced by the Financial Market Association of Pakistan on June 30,
2020, with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and the net assets would be lower by Rs.
4.635 million (2019: Rs. 7.592 million). In case of 100 basis points decrease in rates announced by the Financial
Market Association of Pakistan on June 30, 2020, with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year
and the net assets would be higher by Rs. 4.635 million (2019: Rs. 7.592 million).

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and rates announced by Financial Market Association of
Pakistan is expected to change over time. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2020 is not

necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settlement date.
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Effective
yield /
interest
rate

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Particulars

Financial assets

Bank balances 7.50 - 13.50
Investments
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 19.14 - 14.93

Term Deposit Receipts
Profit receivable
Deposits

Sub total

Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee -

Payable against redemption of units
Dividend payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Sub total

On-balance sheet gap (a)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Off-balance sheet gap (b)

Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b)
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap

Effective
yield /
interest
rate

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Particulars

Financial assets

Bank balances 6.5-12.5
Investments

Corporate Sukuk Bonds 5.97-10.46
Commercial Paper 12.26

Profit receivable
Receivable against sale of investments
Deposits

Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee

Payable against redemption of units
Dividend payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

On-balance sheet gap (a)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Off-balance sheet gap (b)

Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b)
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap
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2020
Exposed to Yield / Interest rate risk
More than Not exposed to
Uptothree three months More than Yield / Interest  Total
months  anduptoone ~ Oneyear rate risk
year
---------------------- Rupees in '000'--------------=-------
800,624 - - 27,031 827,655
- - 463,517 - 463,517
125,000 - - - 125,000
- - - 29,616 29,616
- - - 7,599 7,599
925,624 - 463,517 64,246 1,453,387
- - - 2,358 2,358
- 92 92
- - - 1,495 1,495
- - - 257 257
- - - 638 638
- - - 4,841 4,841
925,624 - 463,517 59,405 1,448,546
925,624 - 463,517 59,405 1,448,546
925,624 - 463,517
2019
Exposed to Yield / Interest rate risk
More than h Not exposed to
Uptothree three months Morethan o ., /Interest  Total
months  anduptoone  ©neYyear rate risk
year
---------------------- Rupees in '000'----------=--=--mmnmmm
2,164,187 - - 21 2,164,208
- - 759,168 - 759,168
129,424 - - - 129,424
- - - 76,919 76,919
- - - 7,599 7,599
2,293,611 - 759,168 84,518 3,137,318
- - - 6,496 6,496
- - - 360 360
- - - 199 199
- - - 3,864 3,864
- - - 591 591
- - - 11,510 11,510
2,293,611 - 759,168 73,008 3,125,808
2,293,611 - 759,168 73,008 3,125,808
2,293,611 - 759,168
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20.1.3 Price risk

Price risk is a risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. Currently, the Fund does not hold any security which exposes the Fund to price

risk.

20.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter parties fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk is
primarily attributable to investment in debt securities, loan and receivable and bank balances. Risk attributable to
investments in securities issue by the government is limited, while the bank balances are maintained with bank

with a reasonably high credit rating.

20.2.1 The analysis below summarises the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2020 and June

30, 2019:

Balances held by the

Latest available

Name of investee company Fund as at June 30,2020  published rating Rating agency
as at June 30, 2020
----------- Rupees in '000'----------
Balances with banks by rating category
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 4,272 A-1 PACRA
Al Baraka Bank Limited 11 A-1 PACRA
Habib Bank Limited 30,805 A-1+ JCR-VIS
Soneri Bank Limited 784,758 A-1+ PACRA
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 605 A-1+ JCR-VIS
Faysal Bank Limited 42 A-1+ PACRA
Summit Bank Limited 110 Suspended JCR-VIS
Bank Al Habib Limited 775 A-1+ PACRA
MCB Islamic Bank Limited 6,276 A-1+ PACRA
827,655
Investments by rating category
. Balances hel h Latest available
Name of investee company FunE::Iaascaetsju(:\:ej g&tz:zo published rating .
as at June 30, 2020 Rating agency
----------- Rupees in '000'----------
Corporate Sukuks - Listed
International Brands Limited 77,796 AA JCR-VIS
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 25,238 AA PACRA
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 28,510 AA PACRA
131,544
Corporate Sukuks - Unlisted
AGP Limited 39,738 A+ PACRA
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 55,417 AA- JCR-VIS
Ghani Gasses Limited 66,818 A- PACRA
Agha Steel Industries Limited 95,000 A JCR-VIS
Hub Power Company Limited - 190320 35,000 AA+ PACRA
Hub Power Company Limited - 190520 40,000 AA+ PACRA
331,972
Term Deposit Receipts
First Habib Modarba 125,000 AA+ PACRA
Total Investments 588,517
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Balances with banks by rating category

Balances held by the Latest available

Name of investee company Fund as at June 30,2019  published rating Rating agency
as at June 30, 2019
----------- Rupees in '000'----------

Balances with banks by rating category
Bank Islami Pakistan limited 500,425 A-1 PACRA
Al Baraka bank Lmited 37 A-1 PACRA
United Bank Limited 19 A-1+ JCR-VIS
Habib Bank Limited 144,066 A-1+ JCR-VIS
Soneri Bank Limited 157 A-1+ PACRA
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 1,516,850 A-1+ JCR-VIS
Askari Bank Limited 131 A-1+ PACRA
Faysal Bank Limited 1,660 A-1+ PACRA
Summit Bank Limited 62 Suspended JCR-VIS
Bank Al Habib Limited 711 A-1+ PACRA
MIB Limited 91 A-1 PACRA

2,164,208
Investments by rating category

as at June 30, 2019
----------- Rupees in '000'----------
Corporate Sukuks - Listed
International Brands Limited 107,745 A JCR-VIS
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 67,368 AA PACRA
Corporate Sukuks - Unlisted
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 44,910 AA PACRA
AGP Limited 158,520 A+ PACRA
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 190,000 AA- JCR-VIS
Ghani Gasses Limited 95,625 A PACRA
Agha Steel Industries Limited 95,000 A+ JCR-VIS
584,055
Commercial Paper
Hascol Petroleum Limited 129,424 A-3 JCR-VIS
Total Investmevnts 888,592
20.2.2 The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund’s credit exposure:
2020 2019
---------- (Percentage) ----------

Rating by rating category
A-1+ 99.47 76.87
A-1 0.52 23.13

Suspended

Annual Report-2020



HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. The
Fund's portfolio of financial instruments is mainly concentrated in privately placed corporate sukuks and bank
balances while the remaining transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby
mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk to counterparties other than the Government.

20.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions, if any, at the option of unit holders. The Fund's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Fund's reputation. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are
traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

The Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. The maximum amount available to the
Fund from the borrowing would be limited to 15% of the total net asset value of the Fund at the time of borrowing
and shall be repayable within 90 days. The facility would bear interest at commercial rates and would be secured
against the assets of the Fund. However, during the current year no borrowings was made by the Fund.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemption requests
in excess of 10% of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for
being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption
requests come down to a level below 10% of the units then in issue. However, no such instances were witnessed
by the Fund during the current year.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

-------------- As at June 30, 2020 --------------
More than
Uplothree tweemonths  Morethan  Totl
and upto Yy
one year
---------- (Rupees in '000)----------
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 2,358 - - 2,358
Payable to the Trustee 92 - - 92
Payable against redemption of units 1,495 - - 1,495
Dividend payable 257 - - 257
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 638 - - 638
4,841 - - 4,841
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

-------------- As at June 30, 2019 ----------—---

Upto thhree th'\r/lec:er?nt::tnhs More than Total
months and upto one year
one year
---------- (Rupees in '000)----------

Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 6,496 - - 6,496
Payable to the Trustee 360 - - 360
Payable against redemption of units 199 - - 199
Dividend payable 3,864 - - 3,864
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 574 - - 574

11,493 - - 11,493

21 UNITS HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The amount
of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily
issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. These unit holders of the Fund are entitled to
distributions and to payment of a proportionate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the
redemption date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unit holders' fund. Unit
holders fund risk management is carried out by the Management Company through following steps:

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjusts the amount of
distributions the Fund pays to the unit holders;

- Redeems and issues units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's
ability to restrict redemptions; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer of the Management
Company critically track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated
regarding key performance indicators, e.g. yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each
quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current year.

22 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying

values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on the quoted market prices at
the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is
current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available

from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

As per the requirements of IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures) and IFRS 13 ( Fair Value Measurement), the
Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

(level 1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including

their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

June 30, 2020

Carrying amount Fair Value
At fair value Total Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
through  Amortized
profitorloss ~ cost
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 22.1 463,517 - 463,517 - 368,517 95,000 463,517
463,517 - 463,517 - 368,517 95,000 463,517
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balance - 827,655 827,655
Term Deposit Reciepts - 125,000 125,000
Deposits - 7,599 7,599
- 960,254 960,254
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 22.2
Payable to the Management Company - 2,358 2,358
Payable to the Trustee - 92 92
Payable against redemption of units - 1,495 1,495
Dividend payable - 257 257
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 638 638
- 4,841 4,841
June 30, 2019
Carrying amount Fair Value
At fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through ~ Amortized
profit or loss ~ cost
Note e (Rupees in '000)----------
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 22.1 759,168 - 759,168 - 664,168 95,000 759,168
759,168 - 759,168 - 664,168 95,000 759,168
Financial assets not measured at fair value 22.2
Bank balance - 2,164,187 2,164,187
Investment:
Commercial Paper - 129,424 129,424
Profit receivable - 76,919 76,919
Deposits - 7,599 7,599
- 2,378,129 2,378,129
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 22.2
Payable to the Management Company - 6,496 6,496
Payable to the Trustee - 360 360
Payable against redemption of units - 199 199
Dividend payable - 3,864 3,864
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 591 591
- 11,510 11,510
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Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

22.1 Valuation techniques

For level 2 investments at fair value through profit or loss - investment in respect of Corporate Sukuk Bonds, Fund
uses rates which are prescribed by MUFAP at reporting datein accordance with the methodology prescribed by
SECP vide its circular no. 1 of 2009 dated January 6, 2009 and circular no. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 at
reporting date.

22.2 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short
term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair
value.

22.3 Transfers during the year

There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.
23. LIST OF BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID / PAYABLE
Brokers during the year ended June 30, 2020

Next Capital Limited

JS Global Capital Limited

Optimus Markets (Private) Limited
Summit Capital (Private) Limited
BMA Capital Management Limited

ua b~ WN -

Brokers during the year ended June 30, 2019

1 BIPL Securities Limited
2 BMA Capital Management Limited
3 JS Global Capital Limited
4 Next Capital Limited
5 Paramount Capital (Private) Limited
6 Summit Capital (Private) Limited
24 PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund as on June 30, 2020 are as follows:

S.no. Name Designation Qualification Experience in years
1 Mir Adil Rashid Chief Executive Officer Bsc 21+
2 Muhammad Wamiq Sakrani Acting Head of Fixed Income MBA 10+
3 Raza Inam Acting Head of Research Bsc (Hons), CFA 7+
4 Karim Khawaja Head of Risk MBA, CMA 17+
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25

PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

Pattern of unit holding as at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Number of Number of Investment

Category unit holders units held amount Percentage
Individuals 680 7,769,755 788,863 55.65%
Associated Companies 3 32,757 3,326 0.23%
Insurance Companies 4 903,256 91,708 6.47%
Trust 3 520,544 52,851 3.73%
Retirement Funds 13 1,248,257 126,735 8.94%
Other corporate 9 3,475,068 352,823 24.89%
Individual Foreign 3 12,951 1,315 0.09%

715 13,962,587 1,417,621 100.00%

Pattern of unit holding as at June 30, 2019 is as follows:
Number of Number of Investment

Category unit holders units held amount Percentage
Individuals 516 5,531,816 561,415 18.09%
Associated Companies and Directors 3 29,700 3,014 0.10%
Banks and DFls 4 392,744 39,859 1.28%
Insurance Companies 5 22,204,774 2,253,525 72.61%
Trust 13 1,186,939 120,460 3.88%
Retirement Funds 12 1,233,482 125,184 4.03%
Other corporate 1 264 27 0.00%

554 30,579,719 3,103,484 100.00%

26 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on August 29, 2019, October 29, 2019, February 13, 2020, March
02, 2020 and April 29, 2020 respectively. Information in respect of the attendance by the Directors in the meetings
is given below:

Number of meetings
Held Attended Leave

S.No. Name of Director Meetings not attended

Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan *

Mr. Mir Adil Rashid **

Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee

Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal
Mr. Rizwan Haider

Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Mr. Aamir Hasan Irshad****
Mr. Atif Aslam Bajwa ***

O 00 N O U B WN -

* Resigned on September 15, 2019.
** Appointed on September 16, 2019.

N UL

N UL

*** Appointed on October 29, 2019 and resigned on Febuary 24, 2020.

**%* Resigned on May 14, 2020.

Annual Report-2020



HBL ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

27

28

29

30

30.1

30.2

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 is 2.24% (2019: 1.80%) which
includes 0.39% (2019: 0.37%) representing Government levy and SECP fee.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 27, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during the
current year.

GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

In March 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHQ") declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (known as
COVID-19) as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around the world to
implement stringent measures to help control its spread, including, without limitation, quarantines,
"stay-at-home" or "shelter-in-place" orders, social-distancing mandates, travel restrictions, and closures or reduced
operations for businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other institutions. The industry, along with global
economic conditions generally, has been significantly disrupted by the pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had certain effect on the operational and
financial condition of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 due to increase in overall credit risk pertaining to
the corporate debt instruments’ portfolios of mutual funds, subdued equity market performance due to overall
slowdown in economic activity and continuity of business operations. However, to reduce the impact on the
performance of the Fund, regulators / government across the country have introduced a host of measures on both
the fiscal and economic fronts by issuing certain circulars and notifications from time to time.

The management of the Fund is closely monitoring the situation, and in response to the developments, the
management has taken action to ensure the safety of its employees and other stakeholders, and initiated a number
of initiatives.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT —

HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND
As at June 30, 2020

Type and Category of Fund
Open end Equity Fund

Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

The objective of the Fund is to provide maximum total return to the unit holders from investment in shariah compliant equity

investments for the given level of risk.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark

The Fund’s benchmark is KMI 30 Index.

Return of Fund

-10.00%

-20.00%

Month HBL-IEQF Benchmark
Jun-20 0.04% -0.32%
May-20 0.33% 20.64%
Apr-20 13.05% 23.06%
Mar-20 223.73% 224.20%
Feb-20 29.43% 11.39%
Jan-20 1.78% 1.58%
Dec-19 4.99% 5.29%
Nov-19 11.86% 12.31%
Oct-19 8.49% 9.17%
Sep-19 11.25% 10.65%
Aug-19 29.74% ~8.59%
Jul-19 75.88% 26.56%

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

HBL-IEQF vs. Benchmark
30.00%

20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

-30.00%

s Bt LIrN of HBL IEQF

B o Urn of Benchmark

During the year under review, the Fund increased its exposure in equity from 88% of total assets as on June 30, 2019 to 94%
of total assets as on June 2020. Furthermore, sector wise allocation was continuously reviewed and revisited throughout the
year to ensure optimum return to the investors. Accordingly, exposure in cements and pharmaceuticals was increased, while
exposure in fertilizers and oil & gas exploration companies was decreased.

Asset Allocation

Others
Including
—Recewables
, 1.54%

AsonJun 2020

Cash,4.22% -

Others,
34.6%_

__Cement,
15.00%

9.87%

Pharmaceut _

icals, B26% A
Dil & Gas_ 48 —_Oil & Gas

Marketing, Exploratan,
6.80% 15.72%

_Fertilizer,

Oth
Ason Jun 2019 BT
Including
Cash, 8.?2%_ Receivables,
_352%

_Cement,

Others,
27.4% / 7 a7
__Fertilizer,
Pharmaceuti_ 15.90%
cals, 1.55%
il & Gas_
Marketing,
B.5% 0il & Gas
~———_Exploration,
31.55%
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Significant Changes in Asset Allocation during the Year

Following table shows comparison of sector wise allocation of equity investments of Fund as on June 30, 2020 and June 30,

2019:
Sector Name As on Jun 2020 As on Jun 2019
Cash 1.38% 5.85%
Others Including Receivables 27.32% 8.27%
Cement 13.47% 4.99%
Fertilizer 10.33% 16.83%
Oil & Gas Exploration 15.40% 29.85%
Oil & Gas Marketing 5.07% 6.86%
Pharmaceuticals 9.50% 1.86%
Others 17.5% 25.5%
Total 100.00%0 100.00%0

Fund Performance

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 51.12 million and Rs. 33.19 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2020. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund was Rs. 77.5699 per unit as on June 30, 2020 as compared to Rs. 76.7854 per
unit as on June 30, 2019, after incorporating dividend of Rs. 0.10 per unit, thereby giving a return of 1.15% during the year,
against the benchmark return (KMI 30 Index) of 1.62%. The size of Fund was Rs. 0.23 billion as on June 30, 2020 as compared
to Rs. 0.26 billion at the start of the year.

Market Review
The equity markets’ performance during FY20 can be described as a tale of two halves.

1HFY20 was dominated by continued reforms in light of the Extended Fund Facility from the IMF; market determined
exchange rate mechanism, high inflation, regular adjustments in energy tariffs and rising interest rates. However, investor
sentiment subsequently improved on account of 1) progress on FATF front, 2) reduction in current account deficit, 3) stability
in PKR/USD parity, and 4) declining long-term yields in the secondary market due to expectation of lower future inflation
outlook. Hence the benchmark KMI30 index increased by 22% during 1HFY20 to close at 66,032 points on December 31, 2019.

2HFY20 continued with the same momentum as the benchmark KMI30 index made a high of 70,790 on January 10, 2020.
However, the positive momentum was broken with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in lockdowns globally
and in Pakistan. This led to a steep decline in the KMI30 index as it fell to a low of 41,365 points on March 26, 2020. The local
bourse saw a dip, in line with global markets, driven by expectations of hampered economic activity. International Qil prices
witnessed new lows as global storages overflowed. Global Trade and shipping also witnessed huge downturns. Domestic
companies with already weak business outlook due to ongoing economic environment and high leverage witnessed further
uncertainty.

The market rebounded in April 2020 where despite a complete lockdown and uncertainty surrounding its potential timeline
and impact, the KMI30 witnessed a sharp uptick on the back of unexpectedly aggressive monetary easing by the SBP
(cumulative 625bps reduction in the Policy Rate) , approval of Rapid Financing Instrument of USD 1.4bn by the IMF,
announcement of fiscal stimulus measures by the GoP to reduce the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the economy and
Government’s decision to ease off lockdown restrictions for certain industries. The KMI30 index closed the year at 54,995
points (up 1.62%).

In terms of flows, foreign investors remained net sellers with an outflow of USD 284mn (compared to outflow of USD 356mm
in FY19).

Pakistan equities are likely to continue this momentum as cheaper valuation (trading at a Forward P/E of 6.8x against peer
average 16.8x) and slowdown in covid-19 cases will lead to improvement in Investor sentiment. Market participants would
closely follow trend of coronavirus cases and the ensuing macro numbers. Cyclical sectors (Cement, Steel, OMCs) are expected
to perform well due to decline in interest rates and pick-up in economic activity. Textile sector is also expected to garner
investor’s attention due to huge export potential. Technology sector will also remain in limelight due to increased
digitalization post covid-19 pandemic. We will maintain our strategic focus towards "bottom-up" approach and align exposure
towards stocks with strong earnings potential.
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Distribution

The Board of Directors approved dividend distribution of up to Rs. 0.10 per unit to the unit holders for the year ended June

30, 2020.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Fund.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From - To No. of Unit Holders Total No. of Units Held

(No. of units)
1 - 100 18 709
101 - 500 29 7,010
501 - 1,000 23 16,259
100,1 - 10,000 61 209,093
10,001 - 100,000 21 555,249
100,001 - 500,000 710,309
500,001 - 1,000,000 1,448,206
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 - -
5,000,001 and above - -
Total 156 2,946,835

Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders

Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.

Annual Report-2020



PERFORMANCE TABLE -

HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Net assets at the period end(Rs'000) 228,586 265,464 1,317,899 789,907 348,924 229,129
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - RUPEES
Redemption 77.5699 76.7854 92.4834 105.4755 106.4735 116.4714
Offer 79.3230 78.5208 94.5735 107.8590 109.6677 119.9655
OFFER / REDEMPTION DURING THE PERIOD - RUPEES
Highest offer price per unit 100.1572 98.3553 109.3377 152.2625 132.6151 127.8777
Lowest offer price per unit 61.1836 75.3913 85.5229 102.5189 104.4090 91.8137
Highest redemption price per unit 97.9437 96.1816 106.9213 148.8974 132.6151 127.8777
Lowest redemption price per unit 59.8314 73.7251 83.6328 100.2532 104.4090 91.8137
RETURN (%)
Total return 1.15% -16.97% -12.32% 24.42% 10.96% 24.49%
Income distribution 0.10% 0.00% 0.00% 27.00% 23.00% 9.00%
Capital growth 1.05% -16.97% -12.32% -2.58% -12.04% 15.49%
DISTRIBUTION
Final dividend distributation- Cash - - 26.00 3.00 9.00
Date of Income Distribution - - 20-Jun-17 24-Jun-16 23-Jun-15
Final dividend distributation- Bonus 0.10 - - 1.00 20.00 -
Date of Income Distribution 26-Jun-20 - - 20-Jun-17 24-Jun-16 23-Jun-15
Total dividend distribution for the year/ period 0.10 - - 27.00 23.00 9.00
AVERAGE RETURNS (% )
Average annual return 1 year 1.15% -16.97% -12.32% 24.42% 10.96% 24.49%
Average annual return 2 year -8.36% -14.68% 4.45% 17.50% 17.53% 12.07%
Average annual return 3 year -9.70% -3.24% 6.58% 19.79% 11.70% -
Weighted average portfolio during (No. of days)
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June:
Bank Balances 4.22% 8.72% 11.91% 23% 29% 5%
GoP ljarah Sukuks - - - - -
Placement with Banks and DFIs - - - - -
Corporate Sukuks - - - - -
Stock / Equities 94.24% 87.76% 87.46% 77% 70% 88%
Others 1.54% 3.52% 0.63% - 1% 7%

Note:
The Launch date of the Fund is May 29, 2014

Disclaimer:

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.

Annual Report-2020



PROXY VOTING DISCLOSURE

As at June 30, 2020

Summary of Actual Proxy voted by CIS

HBL ISQF Meetings Resolutions For Against
Number 2 7 7 -
(%ages) 100% 100% -

(h)  AMC did not participate in shareholders' meetings

Investee Company AGM Meeting Dt EOGM Meeting Dt
AGP Limited 05-May-20
Banklslami Pakistan 07-May-20
Engro Corporation Ltd 12-May-20
Engro Fertilizer Ltd 08-05-20
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd 23-04-20
Fauji Fertilizer Co Ltd 16-03-20
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Ltd 21-05-20
Highnoon Lab 12-05-20
ICI Pakistan Ltd 24-04-20
K-Electric Limited 30 Jul 2019;
Kohat Cement Co Ltd 28-10-19
Lucky Cement Ltd 27-09-19
Meezan Bank Ltd 26-03-20
Nishat Mills Ltd 31/03/2020 28 oct 2019
0Oil & Gas Development Co Ltd 24-10-19
Pakistan National Shipping Corp. 28-10-19
Pakistan Petroleum Ltd 04-10-19
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd 28-Oct-19
Systems Limited 29-05-20
Sitara Chemical Ind. 28-10-19
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Ltd 23-Jun-20
Thal Limited 26-10-19
The Searle Company Ltd 18-May-20
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TRUSTEE REFORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and Clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Islamic Equity
Fund {the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, heing the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June
30, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(1 Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units ar¢ carried out in accordance with the
reguirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iiiy  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, Sepltember 11, 2020
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September 23, 2020

The purpose of this report is to provide an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the Fund’s investment
and operational activities with respect to Shariah guidelines provided.

It is the core responsibility of the Management Company to operate the Fund and invest the amount
of money in such a manner which is in compliance with the Shariah principles as laid out in the Shariah
guidelines, In the capacity of the Shariah Advisor, our responsibility lies in providing Shariah guidelines
and ensuring compliance with the same by review of activities of the fund. We express our opinion
based on the review of the information, provided by the management company, to an extent where
compliance with the Shariah guidelines can be objectively verified.

Our review of Fund’s activities is limited to enquiries of the personnel of Management Company and
various documents prepared and provided by the management company.

Keeping in view the above; we certify that:

We have reviewed all the investment and operational activities of the fund including all transactions
and found them to comply with the Shariah guidelines. On the basis of information provided by the
management company, all operations of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 comply with the
provided Shariah guidelines. Therefore, it is resolved that investments in HBL Islamic Equity Fund
(HBL-IEF) managed by HBL Asset Management Company Limited are halal and in accordance with
Shariah principles.

May Allah (SWT) bless us and forgive our mistakes and accept our sincere efforts in accomplishment
of cherished tasks and keep us away from sinful acts,

For and on behalf of Shariah Supervisory Council of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited.

T
- laz = Fa+zﬁlﬁ. andukda, CFA
Member Shariah Council Chief Executive

Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt) Limited

Suite ROY, A™ Floor, Morison Towser, Com 106, Kheyaban-e-Saadi,
Block 03 Clitton, Karachi

Tl #8021 -35305031-37, Wb swwe alhilalus com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE UMITHOLDERS
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HBL Islamic Equity Fund (“the Fund™), which comprise the
statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2020, and the income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of movement in unit holders’ fund for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our cpinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund as at June 30, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (IS4g) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Fund in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Cede),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accerdance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

5.N0 [ Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Existence and valuation of investments | Qur audit procedures included the following:
As cisclosed in note & to the financial |« We  evaluated the design  and
statements of the Fund for the year ended implementation of key controls of
June 30, 2020, the investments held by the Investment and tested controls owver
Fund comprised of listed equity securities acquisiticn, disposals  and  periodic
which represent 94% of the total assets of the valuation of investments portfolio.

Fund as at the year end.
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| 5.NO | Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit |
As these investrments represent a significant |« We performed substantive audit
element of the statement of assets and procedures on  year-end balance of
liabilities, a discrepancy in the valuation or investrment portfolio including review of
existence of investments could cause the NAV custodian's  statement, and related
to be materially misstated which would also reconciliations and re-performance of
impact the Fund's reported performance as investment wvaluations on the basis of
the wvaluation of investments is the main quoted market prices at the Pakistan
driver of movements in the performance of Stock Exchange Limited as at June 30,
the Fund. Further, the Fund is required to be 2020 and matching the waluation of
compliant with the requirements of Mon- investment with that appearing in the
Banking Finance Companies and Notified financial statements,
Entities  Regulations, 2008 (the MBFC
Regulations) with respect to investments, = We assessed the Fund's compliance with
the requirements of Non-Banking Finance
In view of the significance of these Companies and  Notified  Entities
investments in relation to the total assets and Regulaticns, 2008 [the NBFC Regulations)
the NAVY of the Fund, we have considered the in relatiocn to the concentration of
existence and valuation of such investments investments and  expesure  limits
as a key audit matter. | prescribed  in such  Regulations and
reviewed the adequacy of disclosures as
may be applicable in situations of non-
compliance.

*+ We also evaluated the adequacy of the
overall disclosures in the financial
statements in respect of the investment
portfolic  in accordance with  the
requirements of the MBFC Regulations
and whether the Fund's disclosures in
relation to the valuation of investments
are compliant with the relevant
accounting requirements.

Z. | Recognition, measurement and | Dur audit procedures included the following:
| presentation of ‘Element of Income"
| = We reviewed the processes and controls
| Hon-Banking Finance Companies and Notified implemented by the Fund relating to the

Entities  Regulations, 2008 (the MNBFC |
Regulations) stipulates the requirements for
recegnition, measurement and presentacion
of element of income.

As per the HBFC Regulations, element of
income i a transaction of capital nature and
the receipt and payment of element of
inceme s taken to unitholders" fund.
Furthermeore, the NBFC Regulations also
prescribes certain disclosure requirements
with respect to presentation of element of
income in the ‘Statement of Mavement in Unit
Holders' Fund'.

+ We evaluated the accuracy of system

production  and review of system
generated reports and manual warkings
for the purpose of calculations of
element of income or loss and bifurcation
of amount paid on redemption of units
into “capital value” and "income already
paid on units redeemed”.

generated reports and manual workings
produced by the Fund to ensure that the
data is consistent with source documents
anc the said workings are in compliance
with all the statutery provisions relating
to element of income or loss.

Page - 2
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[S.ND | Key audit matter(s) | How the matter was addressed in our audit
[ The MBFC Regulations explains that the |« We zssessed the appropriateness of the
| accounting income as appearing in the recognition, MEasurement and
‘Income Statement’ excludes the amount of presentation of “element of income /
element of income and accounting income loss™ in accordance with the provisions of
available for distribution as appearing in the | the NBFC Regulations. We also considered
‘Income Statement” excludes income already the guidelines issued by MUFAP in respect
paid cn units redeemed., of the accounting for element of income
! loss as per the NBFC Regulations and

The Fund has to distribute not less than 90 assessed its implementation by the Fund.,

percent of its accounting income for the year
(excluding capital gains whether realized or |« We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures

unrealized). However, at the time of with respect to element of income / loss
distribution, in order to maintain the same along with the adequacy of disclosures
ex-dividend net asset value of all units with respect te ‘Income Statement’ and
cutstanding on the date of distribution, net ‘Statement of Movement in Unit Holders
element of income contributed on fssue of Fund in accordance with the NBFC
units lying in unit holders fund will be Regulations, the requirements of the
refunded on units in the same proportion as reievant financial reporting standards and
dividend bears to¢ accounting income the guidance issued by MUFAP in relation
available for distribution. thereto.

Due to the complex calculations involved in
determining the element of income, the
related impact on financial statements and
ensuring  compliance with the NBFC
Regulations, we considered recognition,
measurement and presentation of ‘Element of
Income” as a key audit matter.

L ! = l

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Management Company is responsible far the ather information. The ather information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our epinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing so, consider
whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materfally misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there i5 a materfal misstatement of this other information: we are
required 1o report that fact. We have nathing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management Company and its Board of Directars

The Management Company (“HBL Asset Management Limited™) of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accardance with the requirements of
the Trust Deed, the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Reguiation) Rules, 2003 (NEFC
Rules), the Mon-Banking Finance Companies and Netified Entities Regulations, 7008 (the NBFC
Regulations) and accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and for such internal
control as the Management Company determines i necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Page - 3
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In preparing the financial statements, the Management Company 18 responsible for assessing the Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management Company either intends to liquidate
the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Management Company is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reparting process,
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whele
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1S4s as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due ta
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
fnternal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Management Company's internal control,

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Cormpany.

= Cenclude on the approprizteness of the Management Company's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
reated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our conclusions are basbd on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other
matiers, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
stgnificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Board of Directors of the Management Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regerding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Management Company, we
determine those matters that were of mest significance in the audit of the financial stztements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our auditor's
report unless law ar regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that 2 matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, NBFC Rules and NBFC Regulations.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report fs Zulfikar Ali
Causer.

KARACHI s b——L

DATED: 2 ? AUE mﬂ BDO EERAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE UMITHOLDERS OM THE STATEMENMT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

Scope of our Work

We have performed an independent assurance engagement of HEL Islamic Equity Fund (the Fund),
Lo express an opinion on the annexed Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles (the
Statement) for the year ended June 30, 2020. Qur engagement was carried out as required undoer
Trust Deed and Shariah Principles of the Fund,

Applicable Criteria

The criteria for the assurance engagement against which the underlying statement (the subject
matter} is assessed comprises of compliance with the Shariah Principles specified in the Trust Deed
and the guidelings issued by the Sharlah Advisor lcriteria). Therefore, the underlying subject
malter may not be suilable for another purpose. Our engagement was carried oul as required
under Trust Deed and Shariah Principles of the Fund,

Management Company's responsibility

Management Company (HBL Asset Management Limited) of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the Statement (the subject matter) and for compliance with
the Shariah Principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor
{eriteria). This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal contrel to
ensure that operations of the Fund and the investments made by the Fund are in compliance with
the Shariah Principles,

Our Independence and Quality Control

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical raspansibilitios in
accordance with the Code, The firms apply International Standard on Quality Control 1 "Quality
Control for Firms That Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, And Other Assurance
and Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintain a comprehensive system of quality
control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with  ethical
requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements,

Responsibility of independent assurance providers

Our responsibility is Lo express our conclusion on the Statement based on our independent
assurance engagement, performed in accordance with the International Standards on Assurance
Engagement (ISAE 3000} ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Infermation’. This standard requires that we plan and perform the engagement to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the Statement reflects the status of the Fund's compliance with the
Shariah Principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor and
is free from material misstatement.
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The procedures selected depend on our Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
non-compliances with the Shariah Principles whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we have considercd internal controls relevant ta the Fund's compliance with the
principles in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, for gathering
sufficient appropriate evidence Lo determine that the Funed was not materially nen-compliant with
the principles. Qur engagement was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control,

The procedures performed included:

*  Checking compliance of specified guidelines issued by the Sharfah Advisor relating to charity,
maintaining bank accounts and for making investments of the Fund; and

= Checking that the Shariah Advisor has certified that the operations of the Fund and investmants
made by the Fund during e year ended June 30, 2020 are in compliance with the Shariah
Principles and where required, purification of income from nen-compliant sources has been
made in consultation with the Shariah Advisor,

Canclusion
In our oginicn, the Statement, in all material respects, presents fairly the status of the Funds

campliance with the Shariah principles specified in the Trust Deed and the guidelings issued by the
shariah Advisor for the year ended June 30, 2020,

KARACHI ﬁ\ - 5
DATED: SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 BDO EBRAHIM & CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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HBL Islamic Equity Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
ASSETS
Bank balances 5 10,190 24,030
Investments 6 227,483 241,786
Dividend and profit receivable 7 698 1,640
Receivable against sale of investments - net 5 5,002
Advances, deposits and prepayments 8 3,001 3,001
TOTAL ASSETS 241,377 275,459
LIABILITIES
Payable to the Management Company 9 955 915
Payable to the Trustee 10 43 65
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 72 663
Payable against redemption of units 2,804 -
Dividend payable 93 -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 8,824 8,352
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,791 9,995
NET ASSETS 228,586 265,464
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 228,586 265,464
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13
------- Number of units -------
Number of units in issue 14 2,946,835 3,457,222
------------ Rupees ------------
Net assets value per unit 77.5699 76.7854
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Equity Fund

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------

Income
Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net 37,229 (93,590)
Dividend income 14,748 24,415
Profit on bank deposits 3,343 7,356

55,320 (61,819)
Unrealised diminution on remeasurement of investments
classified as financial assets at 'fair value through profit or loss' - net 6.1.3 (4,198) (44,108)

51,122 (105,927)
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 9.1 7,041 13,963
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 9.2 915 1,815
Remuneration of the Trustee 10.1 715 1,361
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 10.2 93 177
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11.1 72 663
Allocation of fee and expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 696 699

Selling and marketing expenses 9.4 2,663 2,793
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and flotation costs - 183
Auditors' remuneration 15 235 236
Fee and subscription 27 74
Securities transaction costs and settlement charges 4,137 3,096
Bank charges 446 534
Shariah advisory services 212 227

17,252 25,821
Net income / (loss) for the year from operating activities 33,870 (131,748)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12 (677) -
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation 33,193 (131,748)
Taxation 16 - -
Net income / (loss) for the year after taxation 33,193 (131,748)
Allocation of net income for the year
Income already paid on redemption of units 9,957 -
Accounting income available for distribution:
Relating to capital gains 23,236 -
Excluding capital gains - -

23,236 -

33,193 -
Earnings per unit 17
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Equity Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Net income / (loss) for the year after taxation 33,193 (131,748)

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 33,193 (131,748)

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

Annual Report-2020



HBL Islamic Equity Fund

Statement of Movement in Unitholders' Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Capital Accumulated Total Capital Accumulated Total
value loss value loss

Net assets at beginning of the year 481,681 (216,217) 265,464 1,402,368 (84,469) 1,317,899
Issuance of 12,154,616 units (2019: 730,985 units)

Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year) 933,298 - 933,298 67,603 - 67,603
Element of income 57,597 - 57,597 213 - 213
Total proceeds on issuance of units 990,895 - 990,895 67,816 - 67,816

Redemption of 12,665,003 units (2019: 11,523,886 units)

Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year) (972,487) - (972,487)| (1,065,769) - (1,065,769)
Income already paid on redemption of units - (9,957) (9,957) - - -
Element of (loss) / income (78,227) - (78,227) 77,266 - 77,266
Total payments on redemption of units (1,050,714) (9,957) (1,060,671) (988,503) - (988,503)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 33,193 33,193 - (131,748) (131,748)
Interim distribution of Rs. 0.1 per unit declared on June 26, 2020
as cash dividend
Refund of capital (19) - (19) - - -
Distribution during the year - (276) (276) - - -
(19) 32,917 32,398 - (131,748) (131,748)
Net assets at end of the year 421,843 (193,257) 228,586 481,681 (216,217) 265,464
Accumulated loss brought forward
Realised loss (172,109) (40,048)
Unrealised loss (44,108) (44,421)
(216,217) (84,469)
Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains 23,236 -
Excluding capital gains - -
23,236 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (131,748)
Interim distribution of Rs. 0.1 per unit declared on June 26, 2020 as cash dividend (276) -
Accumulated loss carried forward (193,257) (216,217)
Accumulated loss carried forward
Realised loss (189,059) (172,109)
Unrealised loss (4,198) (44,108)
(193,257) (216,217)
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 76.7854 92.4834
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 77.5699 76.7854
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Equity Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note = —--meeee (Rupees in '000)----------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation 33,193 (131,748)
Adjustments for:
Capital (gain) / loss on sale of investments - net (37,229) 93,590
Dividend income (14,748) (24,415)
Profit on bank deposits (3,343) (7,356)
Amortisation of preliminary expense and flotation costs - 183
Unrealised diminution on re-measurement of investments classified as
financial assts at fair value through profit or loss - net 4,198 44,108
(17,929) (25,638)
Decrease in assets
Investments - net 52,331 785,892
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 40 (4,394)
Payable to the Trustee (22) (377)
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (591) (531)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 472 (2,410)
(101) (7,712)
Cash generated from operations 34,301 752,542
Dividend received 15,328 25,605
Profit received on bank deposits 3,705 7,561
19,033 33,166
Net cash generated from operating activities 53,334 785,708
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issue of units 990,895 67,816
Payment against redemption of units (1,057,869) (988,508)
Dividend paid (200) (93)
Net cash used in financing activities (67,174) (920,785)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year (13,841) (135,077)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 24,030 159,107
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10,190 24,030
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Islamic Equity Fund

Notes To The Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Islamic Equity Fund (‘'the Fund') was established under a Trust Deed executed between PICIC Asset
Management Company Limited (now, HBL Asset Management Limited) as the Management Company and Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was approved by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/PISF/965/2014 dated April 23, 2014 and the
Trust Deed was executed on February 20, 2014.

Through an order dated August 31, 2016, SECP approved the merger of PICIC Asset Management Company Limited
with and into HBL Asset Management Limited effective from August 31, 2016 and the trust deed was revised on
February 17, 2017. Effective from September 1, 2016, HBL Asset Management Limited became Management
Company of the Fund which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Bank Limited. The Aga Khan Fund For Economic
Development (AKFED), S.A. is the parent company of Habib Bank Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 ( the NBFC Rules) and has obtained
the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered office of the
Management Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund has been categorised as a Shariah Compliant equity scheme as per the criteria laid down by the SECP for
categorisation of Open-End Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can be
redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund.

The objective of HBL Islamic Equity Fund is to provide the maximum total return to the unit holders from
investment in 'Shariah Compliant' equity investments for the given level of risk.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a long term management quality rating of '"AM2+' (AM Two Plus) to the
Management Company.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of

the Fund.
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of compliance
2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the 'NBFC Regulations') and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from
the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed
have been followed.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except certain financial assets
which are measured at fair value.

These financial statements have been prepared by following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow
information.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and presentation
currency.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise
judgement in application of accounting policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based
on the historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are
significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

Classification and valuation of investment
For details please refer notes 4.2.1.1 and 18 to these financial statements.

Impairment of investment
For details please refer note 4.2.1.2 to these financial statements.

Provision for taxation
For details please refer notes 4.4 and 16 to these financial statements.

Other assets
Judgement is involved in assessing the realisability of other assets' balances.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED STANDARDS
Standards / amendments that are effective in current year and relevant to the Fund
The Fund has adopted the standards / amendments to the following approved accounting and reporting standards

as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard:
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS9 Financial Instruments - amendments regarding prepayment features with
negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities January 01, 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019

Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements made to IFRS
that became effective during the year:

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2015 — 2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 01, 2019

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2019

IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019
3.2 Amendments that are effective in current year and not relevant to the Fund

The Fund has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard and are
not relevant to the Fund.

IFRS8 Operating Segments - Amendments regarding prepayment features with
negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities January 01, 2019

IFRS 16 Leases - Original issue January 01, 2019

IAS19 Employee benefits - Amendments regarding plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements January 01, 2019

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments regarding long-term

interests in associates and joint ventures January 01, 2019
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - Original issue July 01, 2019
3.3 Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from
the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS
38,IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to update these
pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the framework or
to indicate where they refer to different version of the Conceptual Framework. January 01, 2020

IFRS 3  Business Combinations - Amendments to clarify the definition of a business,
2020 January 01, 2020

IFRS 3  Business Combinations - Amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual
Framework January 01, 2022
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the expiry date of the deferral
approach January 01, 2023

IFRS 7  Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding pre-replacement
issues in the context of the IBOR reform January 01, 2020

IFRS9  Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the
context of the IBOR reform January 01, 2020

IFRS9  Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS
9 January 01, 2023

IFRS 16 Leases - Amendments to provide lessees with an exemption from assessing
whether a COVID-19 related rent concession is a lease modification January 01, 2020

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - Amendments to address concerns and implementation
challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 was published January 01, 2023

IAS1  Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the definition of
materiality January 01, 2020

IAS1  Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the classification
of liabilities January 01, 2022

IAS8  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Amendments
regarding the definition of materiality January 01, 2020

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments prohibiting a company from
deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received
from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its

intended use January 01, 2022

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Amendments regarding
the costs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous January 01, 2022

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendments regarding
pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform January 01, 2020

The annual improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against respective standards:

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2018 — 2020) Cycle:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards January 01, 2022
IFRS9 Financial Instruments January 01, 2022
IFRS 41 Agriculture January 01, 2020
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3.4

4.1

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.1.1

Standards or interpretations not yet effective

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The Funds expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards will not have
any material impact and therefore will not affect the Fund's financial statements in the period of initial application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabilities
at nominal amount.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment, FVOCI — equity investment or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model on which a

financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
income statement.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses (refer note 4.2.1.2). Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in income statement.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in income statement. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in OCIl. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to income statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in income statement unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never reclassified to
income statement.

4.2.1.2 Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pattern of deterioration or
improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or
provision depends on the extent of credit deterioration since initial recognition. Under the general approach, there
are two measurement bases:

- 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from initial recognition) as long as there is no significant
deterioration in credit quality.

- Lifetime ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred on an
individual or collective basis.
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4.2.1.3

4.2.1.4

4.2.2

4.23

4.3

4.4

4.5

The Fund's financial assets include mainly investment, deposits, dividend and profit receivable, receivable against
sale of investment and bank balances.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and
liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as

reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed in cash to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate
Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing
the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least 90% of its accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are not
recognised before the reporting date.
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4.6 Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of
the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net assets value
per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any duties, taxes, charges on
redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable. Redemption of units is recorded on acceptance of
application for redemption.
4.7 Element of income

Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption
date, as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting
period. Element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is
taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on
the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on
units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.

4.8 Net assets value per unit

The net assets value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the
net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

4.9 Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date
at which the transaction takes place.

- Dividend income from equity securities is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Profit on bank deposits is recognised on a time apportionment basis.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

4.10 Expenses
All expenses including NAV based expenses are recognised in the income statement on a time apportionment basis.
4.11 Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end exchange
rates are recognised in the income statement.
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4.12 Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are based at arm's length at normal commercial rates on the
same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

2020 2019
5 BANK BALANCES Note = —--m-mee- (Rupees in '000)----------
Cash at bank
In savings accounts 5.1 8,746 22,595
In current accounts 1,444 1,435
10,190 24,030
5.1. These accounts carry profit at the rate ranging between 8% to 13.5% (2019: 6.5% and 13.5%) per annum. This

includes an amount held in Habib Bank Limited (a related party) amounting to Rs. 3.648 million (2019: Rs. 0.648
million) on which profit is earned at 13.6% (2019: 13.6%) per annum.

6 INVESTMENTS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 6.1 227,483 241,786
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6.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Listed equity securities

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, unless stated otherwise.

Number of shares .
Unrealised Parvalue asa
Name ofinvestee companies Carryingvalue | Marketvalue | appreciation/ | Marketvalueasa |Marketvalueas| percentage of
(Sectorwise) Asat Purchasesmade |Bonus/right | Salesmade | AsatJune30, | asatlune30, [asatjune30, | (diminuti oftotal | ap ge of | issued capital of
July1,2019 duringthe year issues duringthe year 2020 2020 2020 re-measurement investments netassets the investee
ofinvestments company
Rupeesin 000:
Investment Banks
Dawood Herculus Corporation Limited 26,400 13,100 - 39,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Automobile Assembler
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited - 168,000 - 93,000 75,000 9,675 9,344 (331) 411% 4.09% 0.03%
AutomobilesPartsand Accessories
Thal Limited (Parvalue Rs 5 per share) 21,950 126,400 - 135,400 12,950 4,143 4,208 65 1.85% 1.84% 0.02%
Cement
Kohat Cement Limited (6.1.1) 55,210 122,500 - 146,000 31,710 2,058 4,359 2,301 1.92% 1.91% 0.02%
Lucky Cement Limited (6.1.1) 25,300 129,900 - 117,100 38,100 16,990 17,586 596 7.73% 7.69% 0.01%
Maple LeafCement Factory Limited - 661,500 - 328,500 333,000 9,387 8,651 (736) 3.80% 3.78% 0.06%
Cherat Cement Company Limited (6.1.1) - 107,500 - 56,500 51,000 3,588 4,446 858 1.95% 1.95% 0.03%
D.G.Khan Cement Company Limited - 13,500 - - 13,500 1,168 1,152 (16) 0.51% 0.50% 0.00%
80,510 1,034,900 - 648,100 467,310 33,191 36,194 3,003 15.91% 15.83%
Chemicals
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 294,452 1,722,500 - 1,927,000 89,952 2,868 2,247 (621) 0.99% 0.98% 0.01%
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited 100,000 764,000 - 864,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sitara Chemicals Industries Limited - 37,600 - 29,000 8,600 2,194 2,383 189 1.05% 1.04% 0.04%
ICI Pakistan Limited - 14,250 - 500 13,750 9,609 9,552 (57) 4.20% 4.18% 0.01%
Sitara Peroxide Industries Limited - 104,000 - - 104,000 2,377 2,123 (254) 0.93% 0.93% 0.02%
394,452 2,642,350 - 2,820,500 216,302 17,048 16,305 (743) 7.17% 7.13%
Commercial Banks
Meezan BankLimited (6.1.1) 124,675 464,500 - 504,000 85,175 6,627 5,864 (763) 2.58% 2.57% 0.01%
BankIslami Pakistan Limited - 987,000 - 550,000 437,000 4,829 3,304 (1,525) 1.45% 1.45% 0.08%
124,675 1,451,500 - 1,054,000 522,175 11,456 9,168 (2,288) 4.03% 4.01%
Engineering
International Steels Limited - 256,000 - 234,000 22,000 1,173 1,136 (37) 0.50% 0.50% 0.01%
International Industries Limited - 34,500 - 22,100 12,400 1,325 1,137 (188) 0.50% 0.50% 0.01%
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited - 57,500 - - 57,500 2,419 2,293 (126) 1.01% 1.00% 0.02%
- 348,000 - 256,100 91,900 4,917 4,566 (351) 2.01% 2.00%
Fertilizers
Engro Corporation Limited (6.1.1) 85,530 259,100 - 282,500 62,130 18,888 18,199 (689) 8.00% 7.96% 0.01%
Engro Fertilizers Limited 168,500 622,000 - 770,500 20,000 1,162 1,205 43 0.53% 0.53% 0.00%
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (6.1.1) 118,000 384,600 - 462,500 40,100 3,998 4,411 413 1.94% 1.93% 0.00%
372,030 1,265,700 - 1,515,500 122,230 24,048 23,815 (233) 10.47% 10.42%
Glassand Ceramics
Tariq Glass Industries Limited - 37,000 - 37,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0il and Gas Exploration Companies
Mari Petroleum Company Limited (6.1.2) 21,715 46,320 3,817 54,380 17,472 19,453 21,607 2,154 9.50% 9.45% 0.02%
0il & Gas Development Company Limited (6.1.1) 207,800 820,800 - 831,500 197,100 24,918 21,484 (3,434) 9.44% 9.40% 0.00%
Pakistan Oilfields Limited 36,720 95,800 - 119,620 12,900 4,591 4,523 (68) 1.99% 1.98% 0.01%
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 157,580 801,500 82,076 1,041,156 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
423,815 1,764,420 85,893 2,046,656 227,472 48,962 47,614 (1,348) 20.93% 20.83%
0Oil and Gas Marketing Companies
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited (6.1.1and 6.1.2) | 77,940 325,300 24,588 366,900 60,928 10,245 9,636 (609) 4.24% 4.22% 0. 02%}
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 74,800 357,500 - 308,000 124,300 9,233 6,787 (2,446) 2.98% 2.97% 0.02%
152,740 682,800 24,588 674,900 185,228 19,478 16,423 (3,055) 7.22% 7.18%
Power Generation and Distribution
The Hub Power Company Limited (6.1.1) | 303,987 842,500 - 974,500 171,987 14,052 12,469 (1,583) 5.48% 5.45% 0.01%
K-Electric Limited (Par value Rs 3.5 per share) 1,257,000 4,650,500 - 5,907,500 - - - - - - 0.00%
1,560,987 5,493,000 - 6,882,000 171,987 14,052 12,469 (1,583) 5.48% 5.45%
Pharmaceuticals
AGP Limited 20,500 155,000 - 175,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
The Searle Company Limited (6.1.2) 18,443 114,500 - 131,700 1,243 216 248 32 0.11% 0.11% 0.00%
Abbott Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited - 15,000 - 15,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Highnoon Laboratories Limited - 24,500 1,950 6,500 19,950 9,336 10,001 665 4.40% 4.38% 0.00%
Glaxosmithkline Pakistan Limited - 114,100 - 58,400 55,700 10,280 9,696 (584) 4.26% 4.24% 0.02%
38,943 423,100 1,950 387,100 76,893 19,832 19,945 113 8.77% 8.73%
Vanaspati and Allied Industries
Unity Food Limited - 830,000 - 360,000 470,000 5,709 5,241 (468) 2.30% 2.29% 0.09%
Textile Composite
Nishat Mills Limited (6.1.1) | 67,800 339,800 - 350,100 57,500 5,328 4,486 (842) 1.97% 1.96% 0.02%
Interloop Limited 162,250 452,000 - 536,500 71,750 3,652 3,415 (237) 1.50% 1.49% 0.89%
230,050 791,800 - 886,600 135,250 8,980 7,901 (1,079) 3.47% 3.46%
Transport
Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 23,500 109,500 - 133,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Technologyand Communication
Systems Limited (6.1.2) | 3,300 79,000 - 4,500 77,800 10,190 14,290 4,100 6.28% 6.25% 0.07%}
Avanceon Limited - 125,000 - 125,000 - - - - 0.00% .00% 0.00%
,300 204,000 - 29,500 77,800 ,190 14,290 ,10 6.28% .25%
AsatJune 30,2020 3,453,352 17,385,570 112,431 18,098,856 2,852,497 231,681 227,483 (4,198) 1 99.52%
AsatJune 30,2019 14,161,262 7073074 159653 18,841,537 3,453,352 285,894 241,786 (44,108) 100% 91.08%
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6.1.1 As at June 30 2020, the Fund has pledged shares with the National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)
as collateral for guaranteeing settlement of the Fund's trades in accordance with Circular no. 11 dated October 23,
2007 issued by the SECP of following companies :

- Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (139,400 shares having market value of Rs. 15.195 million).
- The Hub Power Company Limited (170,000 share having market value of Rs. 12.325 million).

- Meezan Bank Limited (60,000 shares having market value of Rs. 4.131 million).

- Lucky Cement Limited (20,000 shares having market value of Rs. 9.232 million).

- Kohat Cement Limited (31,210 shares having market value of Rs. 4.290 million).

- Cherat Cement Company Limited (10,000 shares having market value of Rs. 0.872 million).

- Pakistan State Oil Company Limited (50,000 shares having market value of Rs. 7.908 million).

- Fauji Fertilizers Company Limited (10,000 shares having market value of Rs. 1.010 million).

- Nishat Mills Limited (30,000 shares having market value of Rs. 2.340 million).

- Engro Corporation Limited (55,000 shares having market value of Rs. 16.111 million).

6.1.2 These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee companies.
Finance Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received
by the shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares
determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by
the investee company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the
Management Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association
of Pakistan has filed a petition in Honorable Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not
applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the
final outcome of the case. However, the investee companies have withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus
announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 1.117 million at June 30, 2020 (2019: Rs. 0.719
million) and not yet deposited on CDC account of department of Income tax. The final outcome of the case is
pending, however management is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded
the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at year end.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Supreme Court of Pakistan passed a judgment on June 27, 2018 whereby
the suits which are already pending or shall be filed in future must only be continued/entertained on the condition
that a minimum of 50% of the tax calculated by the tax authorities is deposited with the authorities. The CISs failed
to deposit the minimum 50% of the tax liability and accordingly the stay got vacated automatically during the
previous year.

Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2019, the CISs have filed a fresh constitutional petition via CP4653 dated
July 11, 2019. In this regard, on July 15, 2019, the Honorable High Court of Sindh has issued notices to the relevant
parties and has ordered that no 3rd party interest on bonus shares issued to the Funds in lieu of their investments
be created in mean time. The matter is still pending at Jurisdiction and the Funds have included these shares in their
portfolio, as the management is confident that the decision of the constitution petition will be in favor of the CISs.

Finance Act, 2018 effective from July 01, 2018 has omitted Section 236M of the ITO, 2001 requiring every company

quoted on stock exchange issuing bonus shares to the shareholders of the company, to withhold 5% of the bonus
shares to be issued. Accordingly, post July 01, 2018 shares are not being withheld at the time of bonus issue.
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2020 2019
6.1.3 Net unrealised diminution on re-measurement of Note = —--m-mee- (Rupees in '000)----------
investments classified as financial assets at 'fair value
through profit or loss'
Market value of investments 227,483 241,786
Less: Carrying value of investments (231,681) (285,894)
(4,198) (44,108)
7 DIVIDEND AND PROFIT RECEIVABLE
Dividend receivable 385 965
Profit receivable on savings accounts 7.1 313 675
698 1,640
71 This includes an amount receivable from Habib Bank Limited (a related party) amounting to Rs. 0.238 million (2019:
Nil ) on which profit is earned at 13.6% (2019: 13.6%) per annum.
8 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposit with:
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 2,500
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
2,600 2,600
Advance tax 8.1 279 279
Prepaid listing fee 122 122
3,001 3,001
8.1 The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax

Ordinance 2001 (ITO 2001). Further, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO
2001 from withholding of tax under section 150, 150A, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001.

The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-Vol. Il- 66417-R” dated May 12,
2015, made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from
Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under
section 150 of ITO 2001. The management is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing refund

application.
2020 2019
9 PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY Note -ooeee (Rupees in '000)----------

Remuneration payable to the Management Company 9.1 381 448
Sindh Sales Tax payable on Management

Company's remuneration 9.2 50 59
Allocation of fee and expenses related to registrar,

accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 472 386
Selling and marketing expenses payable 9.4 31 22
Sales load payable 21 -

955 915
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10

10.1

10.2

As per the amendment introduced through SRO 639(1)/2019, dated June 20, 2019, in regulation 61 of the NBFC
regulation, the Management Company may charge variable fee or fixed fee or the combination of both which shall
not exceed the limit disclosed in the offering document, further subject to the guidelines as may be issued by the
Commission from time to time. During the year, the fee has been charged, accordingly, at the rate ranging between
1.7% to 2% of average annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is being charged at the rate of 2% from October 1,
2019 onwards. The fee is payable monthly in arrears.

The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2019: 13%) on the remuneration of
Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the amended NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the
CIS, maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets or the actual cost whichever is lower.

However, SECP vide S.R.0. 639(1)/2019 dated June 20, 2019 has removed the maximum limit of 0.1%. During the
year, the fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.1% to 0.5% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund.
The fee is being charged at the rate of 0.161% from October 1, 2019 onwards.

As per SECP vide its circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/361/2016, dated December 30, 2016, selling and marketing
expenses was chargeable to open end equity, asset allocation and index funds only, upto maximum 0.4% of the
average annual net assets of the fund or the actual expense, whichever is lower.

However, circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/04/2019, dated July 5, 2019, issued by SECP, supersedes all previous
circulars issued with respect to selling and marketing expenses, according to which, selling and marketing expenses
is allowed on all categories of open end mutual funds, except fund of funds with no cap. During the year, the fee
has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.4% to 0.75% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is
being charged at the rate of 0.75% from July 8, 2019 onwards.

2020 2019
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
Trustee fee payable 10.1 38 58
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 10.2 5 7
43 65

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the
Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the Trustee
monthly in arrears.

Earlier the tariff structure applicable to the Fund were as follows:

Up to Rs. 1 billion  Rs 0.7 million or 0.20% per annum of net assets whichever is higher
Over Rs. 1 billion  Rs 2.0 million plus 0.10% per annum of net assets, on amount exceeding Rs 1 billion

CDC vide notification CDC/CEO/L-112/02/2019, dated June 27, 2019, has revised the rates of the Trustee fee, with
effect from July 1, 2019, according to which, Trustee fee shall be charged by permanently eliminating the minimum
fee component as mentioned in the offering documents. During the year, Management Company has charged the
Trustee fee accordingly.

The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2019: 13%) on the remuneration of
Trustee through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.
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2020 2019
11 PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN - (Rupees in '000)----------
Annual fee payable 11.1 72 663
111 Under the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) categorised as an equity

scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.095% of the average net assets of the
Scheme. However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 685 (1)/2019, dated June 28, 2019, has reduced the rate of the fee to 0.02% of
the average annual net assets applicable on all categories of CIS(s), with effect from July 1, 2019. During the year,
Management Company has charged the fee accordingly. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

2020 2019
Note = —--—-mem- (Rupees in '000)----------
12 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for Federal Excise Duty 12.1 3,268 3,268
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.2 3,871 3,194
Donation payable 1,069 1,359
Withholding tax payable 108 58
Auditors' remuneration 166 169
Printing charges 153 195
Brokerage payable 144 79
Others 45 30
8,824 8,352
12.1 As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration

of the Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the
view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial 